
I. ROLL CALL

Greg Trzupek, Chairman

September 2L,2015
7:30 P.M.

Mike Stratis
Dehn Grunsten
Robert Grela

Luisa Hoch
Greg Scott
Mary Praxmarer
Jim Broline, Alternate

II. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MEETING MINUTES

A. August 17,2015 Plan Commission Regular Meeting

III. PUBLIC HEARINGS

V-01-2015: 512 Kirkwood Cove (Bennett); Fence Variation and Findings of Fact; continued
from August 17,2015

Requests a variation from Section IV.J.b of the Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance to permit
replacement of a wood fence with an aluminum fence in an interior side yard (south side of home)
rather than restricted to the rear yard (west side of home).

B. Y-02-2015: 39 Fawn Court (Beck); Variation and Findings of Fact

Requests variations from Section IV.I of the Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance to permit the
replacement of a patio, patio seat walls, fire pit and outdoor kitchen located in a front and side yard
rather than in the rear yard.

C Z-12-2015: 15W800 91't Street and 9101 Kingery Highway (Spectrum); Rezoning Upon
Annexation, Planned Unit Development and Findings of Fact; continued from August 17,
2015

Requests rezoning upon annexation from the R-l Single-Family Residence District to the O-2
Office and Hotel District and the B-2 General Business District of the Burr Ridge Zoning
Ordinance; and requests special use approval as per Sections lX.D.2.g and VIII.C.2.ii of the Burr
Ridge Zoning Ordinance for a Planned Unit Development consisting of a senior care facility with
approximately 190 total units on 15.5 acres and 24,000 square feet of retail space on 3.5 acres.

A.

REGULAR MEETING
VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE

P]AN COMMISSION



September 21,2015
Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals
Page2 of2

D. Z-13-2015: 15W300 South Frontage Road; (Vega Hospitality); Special Use and Findings of
Fact

Requests special use approval as per Sections VIII. C.2.w and VIII.A.9 of the Burr Ridge Zoning
Ordinance to permit additions to an existing hotel and remodeling of the building fagade.

IV. CORRESPONDENCE

Board Report - September 14,2015

Building Report -August, 2015

v

A. PC-05-2015: Subdivision Fence Approval; Carriageway Club

VI. FUTURE SCHEDULED MEETINGS

A. October 5,2015: The following public hearings are scheduled:

o 2-14-2015: 100 Harvester Drive; PUD Amendment
o 2-15-2015: 8080 Madison Street; Special Use
o 2-16-2015: 7950 Bucktrail Drive;Rezoning from R-l to R-2B

B. October 19, 2015: The filing deadline for this meeting is September 28,2015

VII. ADJOURNMENT

PLEASE NOTE: All Plan Commission recommendations are advisory and are submitted to the Mayor and Board
of Trustees for review and final action. Any item being voted on at this Plan Commission meeting will be forwarded
to the Mayor and Board of Trustees for consideration at their September 28,2015 Regular Meeting beginning at7:00
P.M. Commissioner Broline is the scheduled Plan Commission representative for the September 28, 2015 Board
meeting.

A.

B.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS



PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE

MINUTES FOR RE,GULAR MEETING OF

Aueust 17.2015

1. ROLL CALL

The Regular Meeting of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals was called to order
at7:30 P.M. at the Burr Ridge Village Hall,7660 County Line Road, Burr Ridge, Illinois
by Chairman Trzupek.

ROLL CALL was noted as follows:

PRESENT: 4 - Grunsten, Broline, Scott, and Trzupek

ABSENT: 4 - Stratis, Hoch, Grela, and Praxmarer

Also present was Community Development Director Doug Pollock. In the audience was
Trustee Bolos.

2. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MEETING MINUTES

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Grunsten and SECONDED by Commissioner
Scott to approve minutes of the August 3,2015 Plan Commission meeting.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:
AYES: 2 - Broline and Trzupek
NAYS: 0 - None
ABSTAIN: 2 - Grunsten and Scott

MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 2-0.

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS

Chairman Trzupek confirmed all those wishing to speak during any public hearing on the
agenda for tonight's meeting.

A. V-01-2015: 512 Kirkwood Cove (Bennett); Fence Variation and Findings of
Fact

Chairman Trzupek announced that due to a lack of quorum for the Zoning Board of
Appeals, this public hearing should be continued to the next meeting. Mr. Pollock
explained that Illinois State law does not permit an altemate Commissioner, Commissioner
Broline, to serve as a Zoning Board of Appeals member and, therefore, there are only three
members of the Zoning Board of Appeals present which is not sufficient to conduct a
hearing. Mr. Pollock said that he notified the petitioner and the immediate neighbor earlier
in the day.

Due to a lack of quorum, the Zoning Board of Appeals meeting was canceled and the public
hearing continued to September 21,2015.

B. Z-ll-2015: 8310-8361 Waterview Court (McNaughton); Rezoning

Chairman Trzupek asked Mr. Pollock to summarize this request.



08/17 /2015 Regular Meeting
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
Page 2 of8

Mr. Pollock summarize the request as follows. The petitioner requests rezoning of the 8
lots in the Waterview Estates Subdivision from the R-2B District to the R-3 District. The
petitioner is also requesting a preliminary plat of subdivision which is scheduled for review
by the Commission later in this agenda.

Chairman Trzupek asked the petitioner for their presentation.

Mr. Robert Sodikoff introduced himself as the attorney for the petitioner. Mr. Sodikoff
said that the property was rezoned in 2004 to the R-2B District but with a 7 to 0
recommendation for the R-3 District. He said that the failure for any homes to be built in
this subdivision under the R-2B District is evidence that the market will not support the R-
28 District in this location. He said that the R-3 District is a more appropriate zoning for
this property and referenced the existing zoning surrounding the property.

Chairman Trzupek asked for comments and questions from the public.

Mrs. Sharon Semmer, l5w6ll 83'd Street, said she lives across the street from the
property. She said that 83'd Street floods and her car was damaged due to the flooding right
after the 2006 completion of this subdivision. She wondered what the Village would do to
protect area properties from flooding.

Mr. Sodikoff responded that any new subdivision of the property will be required to retain
stormwater and release it at a controlled rate so it does not increase the amount of flooding
in the area. In response to an additional question, Mr. Sodikoff said the trees around the
perimeter of the property would be maintained.

Mr. Phil Semmer, 15W61 I 83'd Street, said that the developer of the 8 lots wanted $775,000
for each lot and that is the reason they were not sold.

Ms. Marianne Sreniawski, 15W735 83'd Street, said that there is a 37 foot drop from her
property to the Waterview property. She said that three more lots can mean 8 to l0 more
cars on 83'd Street. She said the Village should keep the property with three-quarter acre
lots. She said Burr Ridge is known for its large lots and should maintain the large lots.

Mrs. Nancy Montelbano,8437 Charleston Drive, asked where the water would go from the
subject property. Mr. Sodikoff said that it currently flows off the street to 83'd Street and
that would not change.

Mr. Sodikoff said that the Village has a good engineer and that run off will be improved as

a result of the subdivision. He said the Village will not allow new development to
adversely impact stormwater.

Mrs. Montelbano said the Village wants more green space and preserving the existing large
lots would help to preserve more green space.

Mr. Adolph Galinski, 8413 Charleston Drive, asked about the zoning of the petitioner's
developments on 87th Street. Mr. Pollock said the four lots at 87th and Madison are within
an R-3 District and the three lots at 89th and Madison are within an R-2B District. Mr.
Galinski asked what the logic is for rezoning these properties.

Mr. John Barry of McNaughton Development responded that the logic is these lots have
not sold over the course of9 years.

Mr. Andrew Berridge, l5W59l 83'd Street, said he was also concerned about drainage.



08/ 17 12015 Regular Meeting
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
Page 3 of8

Mr. Richard Stevens, 676 Carrelot Drive, asked if the trees around the perimeter of the
property would be preserved. Mr. Barry said they would be preserved.

Mrs. Pat Pavic, 8324 Clynderven, said that the frontage of the proposed lots are actually
less than in the R-4 District. She was referring specifically to the cul de sac lots.

Ms. Loretta Forsner, 8437 Charleston Drive, said that the Board of Trustees approved the
larger lots for green space. She suggested that the developer could sell a home built on the
existing lots for one million dollars.

Chairman Trzupek asked if there were any more questions or comments from the public.
There being none, he asked for questions and comments from the Plan Commissioners.

Commissioner Scott said that he looks at the surroundingareato determine the appropriate
zoning for a property and noted that the property was next to R-3 on three sides and R-4
on the fourth side. He noted that stormwater is a separate issue and that he would rather
see the property improved with homes than to have the lots continue to sit vacant. He said
pond and property maintenance could become an issue if there are not homeowners present.

Commissioner Broline said that the issues that have been mentioned all pertain to
stormwater and not to zoning. He said that the R-3 would potentially increase lot coverage
and impact stormwater.

Commissioner Grunsten asked if they were eliminating any wetlands. Mr. Barry said they
were not. Commissioner Grunsten said the loss of green space is a concem. She asked
Mr. Barry if the R-2B lots at 89th and Madison were sold and at what price. Mr. Barry said
they were sold about one year after the homes were completed for 1.215 million dollars.
Commissioner Grunsten said she was concerned about voting without the other members
of the Commission present. She added that she gives a lot of consideration to the opinion
of the neighbors when considering zoning. Mr. Barry responded that they have a contract
on the property that is set to expire and they cannot afford a continuation.

Chairman Trzupek said that he believes the only reason to rezone the property would be if
the R-2B lots cannot be sold. He said he is not convinced that R-3 lots would sell any
better. He said he does not support going to R-3 at this time.

There being no further questions or comments, Chairman Trzupek asked for a motion to
close the hearing.

At 8:45 P.M., a MOTION was made by Commissioner Scott and SECONDED by
Commissioner Grunsten to close the hearing for Z-ll-2015.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:
AYES: 4 - Scott, Grunsten, Broline, and Trzupek
NAYS: 0 - None

MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 4-0.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Scott and SECONDED by Commissioner
Grunsten to adopt the petitioner's findings of fact and recommend that the Board of
Trustees approve Z-11-2015 to rezone the Waterview Estates Subdivision from the R-2B
District to the R-3 District.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:



081 17 /201 5 Regular Meeting
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
Page 4 of8

AYES:
NAYS:

2 - Scott and Grunsten
2 - Broline, and Trzupek

MOTION FAILED By a vote of 2-2.

Mr. Pollock suggested that another motion should be considered to deny the request.
Chairman Trzupek asked if anyone would like to make an alternate motion.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Grunsten and SECONDED by Commissioner
Scott to recommend that the Board of Trustees deny Z-ll-2015. to rezone the Waterview
Estates Subdivision from the R-2B District to the R-3 District.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:
AYES: 2 - Broline, and Trzupek
NAYS: 2 - Scott and Grunsten

MOTION FAILED By a vote of 2-2.

Commissioner Broline initially voted Nay but stated he was mistaken and changed his vote
to Aye.

Mr. Pollock said that due to a lack of four votes for or against the rezoning, the petition
would be forwarded to the Board of Trustees without a recommendation.

Chairman Trzupek suggested that the consideration of the preliminary plat of subdivision
should be moved to this point in the meeting.

5. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

A. Preliminary Plat of Subdivision: Waterview Estates (McNaughton)

Chairman Trzupek asked Mr. Pollock to summarize this request. Mr. Pollock said that the
request was to re-subdivide the Waterview Estates Subdivision and was dependent upon
rezoning of the property to the R-3 District. He said the subdivision would increase the
number of lots from 8 to I l.

Mr. Pollock said that typically staff requires that the preliminary engineering be approved
prior to approval of the preliminary plat but the developer requested that the preliminary
plat be considered by the Plan Commission and Board of Trustees prior to approval of the
preliminary engineering plans. He added that the subdivision does comply with the Zoning
Ordinance.

Mr. John Barry was present on behalf of McNaughton Development. He requested that
the Board approve the preliminary plat without requiring any additional engineering or
stormwater improvements based on a commitment from the developer to limit the
impervious area of the 11 lots to equal the impervious area planned for the 8 lots approved
for the existing plat. He said McNaughton Development would record deed restrictions
that limited the size of each home.

Chairman Trzupek noted that some of the cul de sac lots have limited building area and
asked the developer if they were buildable lots or if they would have to come back and ask
for setback variations. Mr. Barry responded that they were confident they could build on
all of the lots without any variations. Mr. Pollock further confirmed that the lots do comply
with the R-3 District standards for lot area and lot width.



081 17 /201 5 Regular Meeting
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
Page 5 of8

Chairman Trzupek said his problem with the R-3 District is that it allows the two lots on
the east side of the street where previously there was only one lot. He said he would prefer
to see one larger home at this corner.

In response to Commissioner Scott, Mr. Barry confirmed that the houses on Clynderven
were at a higher elevation than the proposed homes.

Commissioner Broline asked how the developer would know the location of the wetlands.
Mr. Barry said a wetland delineation was done by the original developer prior to
development of the subdivision.

Commissioner Grunsten expressed her concern with the wetlands and that more homes
would increase the run off into the wetlands. She noted that her subdivision has continuous
problems with lawn chemicals and other pollutants getting into the wetlands. She said she

wants to see a new wetland delineation and stormwater engineering before agreeing to any
new plat.

In response to Chairman Trzupek, Mr. Pollock confirmed that the proposed plat complies
with the R-3 District but that preliminary engineering has not yet been approved.

There being no further questions, Chairman Trzupek asked for a motion.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Scott and SECONDED by Commissioner
Grunsten to recommend that the Board of Trustees deny the preliminary plat for the re-
subdivision of the Waterview Estates Subdivision.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:
AYES: 4 - Scott, Grunsten, Broline, and Trzupek
NAYS: 0 -None
MOTION APPROVED By a vote of 4 - 0.

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS

C. Z-12-2015: 15W800 91't Street and 9191 Kingery Highway (Spectrum);
Rezoning Upon Annexation and Planned Unit Development

Chairman Trzupek asked Mr. Pollock to summarize the request.

Mr. Pollock described this request as follows: The subject property is not in the Village but
is contiguous. The petitioner has a contract to purchase the property and is seeking
annexation and zoning for development of a senior housing community with retail
development on Kingery Highway. The proposed zoning is O-2 for the senior housing and
B-2 for the retail. The petitioner also seeks a Planned Unit Development to permit more
than one building on a lot and with shared driveways and access.

Chairman Trzupek asked Mr. Pollock if staff was recommending a continuance of this
hearing. Mr. Pollock said that staff is recommending a continuance due to the need for
additional traffic analysis. He added that staff is also recommending that the public hearing
be opened and that testimony be taken prior to the continuance.

Chairman Trzupek asked the petitioner for their presentation.

Mr. David Shaw introduced himself as the Attorney for the petitioner. He said that they
were seeking approval for the senior housing but that the retail portion of the development
was only conceptual. He mentioned that the petitioner has met with the Fallingwater



081 17 /201 5 Regular Meeting
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
Page 6 of8

Homeowners Association on several occasions. Mr. Shaw introduced Mike Longfellow
from Spectrum Senior Living.

Mr. Longfellow said that Spectrum Senior Living was the owner, operator and developer
of senior living facilities. He said they are primarily operators as they have 1,800
employees but only 20 employees in the development part of their business. He said they
have 80 communities in 11 states including several in the Chicago area. He said the
proposed community would have independent living, assisted living, and memory care.
He said all of their projects have lots of amenities with 40%o of the floor area being common
areas.

Mr. Steve Cross was introduced as the engineer for the project. Mr. Cross described the
site plan including the following: The parking in the front yard is not really in a front yard
but in a court yard that is behind the front of the building. Parking is provided at a rate of
0.8 spaces per unit which exceeds the amount necessary for the project. There will be 40%
green space which exceeds the code requirement. The main building will be 400 feet from
the east line where the nearest homes in Fallingwater are located. Ponds along the east and
south yards will be provide additional buffer. He said they do not want to re-align the
building with the driveway entry because they do not want to move the independent living
units closer to the retail. There is a large drop in the topography from west to east and in
order to the trees and brush along the east lot line, it is necessary to keep that area
undisturbed and the use of large retaining walls is necessary. The detention ponds will
include an open channel of water in the middle bounded by wetland plantings on the sides.

Mr. Brian Van Winkle was introduced as the Architect for the project. Mr. Van Winkle
said the chief challenge of the building design was to make it look residential. He said they
did that by using different materials to break down the mass of the building.

Mr. Larry Dziurdik was introduced as the Landscape Architect for the project. He said a
tree survey was completed and he worked to preserve as many trees as possible on the east
side of the property. He said 30% of the trees have emerald ash borer and will have to be
removed. He said there is a grove of oak trees on the east side which will be preserved.
He said the understory shrub will also be preserved along the east side. He said the new
landscaping is intended to maintain sight lines to the building but to also enhance the
appearance of the property. Mr. Dziurdik noted the staff review comments and that the
plans would be revised to comply with the additional landscaping required.

Mr. Shaw summarized the petitioner's request and stated that covenants would be recorded
to ensure continued maintenance of the property. He noted that the existing zoning in Du
Page County would permit 10,000 square foot lots and the proposed development would
be better for the community than existing zoning may allow.

Chairman Trzupek asked for public comments and questions.

Ms. Laurie Chang, 9550 Pacific Court, asked if the senior housing would be subsidized in
any way. Mr. Shaw said it would all be private pay. Ms. Chang said that no one in
Fallingwater knows about this project. She said that the project needs to be top notch and
that the south end of Burr Ridge does not get as many benefits as other parts of town.

Mr. Longfellow said that they had several meetings with the officers of the Homeowners
Association and that public notices were sent to the residents within 750 feet. He assured



081 17 /201 5 Regular Meeting
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
Page 7 of 8

Mrs. Chang that the project would be very high quality and that Spectrum considers it a
high priority to be an asset to the community.

Ms. Laura Delair from Palisades Drive said she is concerned with cut through traffic in the
subdivision north of this project. Mr. Longfellow said the project would not generate very
much traffrc. He said there are a total of 80 to 90 employees with a maximum at any given
time of 30 employees. He said senior living facilities are amongst the lowest traffic
generators ofany use.

A resident from 93'd Place said that she was concemed about the retail development and
traffic that may be generated by the retail development. Chairman Trzupek asked what the
retail would include. Mr. Pollock said it was undetermined at this time but that all future
development of the retail portion would require a public hearing at which time traffrc would
be reviewed. Mr. Pollock said that the retail would likely be similar to the retail that exists
at the other three corners.

There being no further public testimony, Chairman Trzupek asked for questions and
comments from the Plan Commission.

Commissioner Grunsten said she appreciates the high quality of the submittal package and
of the development.

Commissioner Broline said he agrees. He said that this seems to be the perfect project for
this location and likes what they are proposing.

Commissioner Scott said he agrees with the others. He asked about the process and Mr.
Pollock explained that the senior housing would not come back to the Plan Commission if
approved as requested but that the retail is only preliminary and will require a new public
hearing prior to development.

Commissioner Scott asked how the floor area ratio compares to the floor area ratio of other
projects the developer has done. Mr. Cross said that the Green Oaks project has an FAR
of 0.38. Mr. Longfellow said that there projects usually range from 0.4 to 0.45. He added
that the parking ratios are usually 0.7 spaces per unit but that they were proposing 0.8 for
this project.

In response to Commissioner Scott, Mr. Cross said the ponds will be green except for a
wet channel that will run through the middle of the pond and that he does not believe
additional parking will be needed on the cottage street.

Chairman Trzupek asked about the circulation between the main entry ofthe senior housing
and the 9l't Street entryway shared with the retail. He was concemed about putting too
much traffic at the shared driveway as it is close to the intersection of 91't Street and
Kingery Highway. Ms. Kelly Connelly, traffic engineer for the petitioner, said that she
would look at that as part of her continuing traffic analysis. Chairman Trzupek questioned
why the cross drive between these two driveways is necessary.

Chairman Trzupek asked about the type of stucco proposed for the main building. Mr. Van
Winkle described the stucco and said it was being used to provide a contrast to the masomy.
Chairman Trzupek suggested that a lighter color brick could accomplish the same
objective.



08/17 12015 Regular Meeting
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
Page 8 of8

Chairman Trzupek said he was concemed with the 10 foot retaining walls. Mr. Cross said
that the walls would be maintained by one owner and that the scale of the property will
mitigate the size of the walls. He said they may be able to break up the walls somewhat to
reduce the size.

Chairman Trzupek said he agrees that the building should not be flipped and believes that
the separation may actually be a benefit in terms of stacking at the entryway drive.

Ms. Chang asked about fencing on the property. Mr. Longfellow said they prefer not to do
a fence along the entire east lot line because it would require removal of underbrush. He
said it may be appropriate to extend the 91't Street fence south for a short distance to create
the appearance of enclosure.

Chairman Trzupek asked if there were any more questions or comments on this matter.
There being none, Chairman Trzupek asked for a motion to continue the hearing.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Grunsten and SECONDED by Commissioner
Scott to continue Z-12-2015 to the September 21,2015 meeting.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:
AYES: 4 - Grunsten, Scott, Broline, and Trzupek
NAYS: 0 - None
MOTION APPROVED By a vote of 4 - 0.

4. CORRESPONDENCE

There were no questions or comments regarding the Board Report or the Building Report.

6. FUTURE SCHEDULED MEETINGS

Mr. Pollock said the next scheduled meeting is September 21,2015.

7. ADJOURNMENT

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Grunsten and SECONDED by Commissioner
Scott to ADJOURN the meeting at 9:34 p.m. ALL MEMBERS voTING AyE, the
meeting was adjourned at 9:34 p.m.

Respectfully
Submitted:

September 21,2015

J. Douglas Pollock, AICP



VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE
COM MUNITY DEVELOPM ENT DEPARTM ENT

STAFF REPORT AND SUMMARY

V-01-2015; 512 Kirlrwood Cove @ennett); Requests a variation from Section IV.J.b of the Burr
Ridge ZoningOrdinance to permit replacement of a wood fence with an aluminum fence in an
interior side yard (south side of home) rather than restricted to the rear yard (west side of
home).

Prepared For:

Preparcd By:

Date of Hearing:

Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission I Zoning Board of Appeals
Greg Trzupek, Chairman

Doug Pollock, AICP
Community Development Director

September 21,2015; continued from August 17,2015

GENERAL INFORMATION

Petitioner:

Propefi Owner:

Petitioner's
Status:

Land Use Plan:

M.J. Bennett

Trustee

Recommends Single-Family
Residential Use

L

f,t
z
!

RFX}IACOTT

Existing Zoning: R-4 Planned Unit
Development

Existing Land Use: Single-Family Residence

Site Area: 13,950 square feet

NoneSubdivision:

M.J. Bennett Trust

U

| ,;_

J:

!, I
L.l

l',lBl'iv!OOD CO'.'E



Staff Report and Summary
V-0 l-20 I 5:5 I 2 Kirkwood Cove (Bennett)
Page 2 of 2

SUMMARY

The petitioner owns a comer lot at Kirkwood Cove and Walredon Avenue (south of 83'd Street).
The home had a legally established wood fence enclosing the rear and side yards (erected prior to
the current regulations that permit only open fences and restrict fences to the rear yard). The
petitioner replaced the wood fence in the rear yard with a conforming aluminum fence. Due to the
current prohibition on fences in side yards, she did not replace the wood fence in the side yard.

At this time, the petitioner seeks a variation to permit the replacement of a non-conforming fence
in a side yard. The replacement fence would be identical to the aluminum fence already erected
in the rear yard of the property and would conform to the Zoning Ordinance except that it would
be located in a side yard. Attached are all of the regulations for residential fences.

If not granted the variation, the petitioner would have the option of continuing to maintain the non-
conforming fence. Maintenance is allowed to the extent that 50Yo of the value of the fence is not
replaced and that the fence remain in its exact configuration and location.

Findings of Fact and Recommendation

The petitioner has submitted findings of fact which may be adopted if the Plan Commission is in
agreement with those findings. The petitioner suggests that the orientation of the home to the
corner side lot line (Kirkwood Cove) rather the front lot line (Walredon Avenue) and the location
of patio doors and a patio on the side of the house (as defined by the Zoning Ordinance) are unique
circumstances to this property that create a hardship. The petitioner has also submitted a letter of
support from the neighbor adjacent to the proposed location ofthe new fence.



Regulations for Residential Fences Village of Burr Ridge Zoning
Ordinance - Section lV.J

Fences in residential districts shall be not more than five feet in height measured from the
ground level at the lowest grade level within five feet of either side of the fence.

Fences shall be permitted, unless olheruvise provided herein, along the rear lot line and along
the side lot lines extending no further toward the front of the lot than the rear wall of the principal
building on the lot. Except, however, on corner lots such fences shall extend not nearer to the
corner side lot line than the required corner side yard setback.

!@e! !-g[r.$!.1

--.-.-l

t
!

,iltilI i. I

iiil,
ttil
il

1
t
I
I
,

1

I

r!
i,

t'

I

!

It
llI

I

r.i.a fdYd
I
I

I

All fence posts and all supports must face the interior of the property on which it is located.

Chain link, solid, barbed wire and fences which are electrically charged to produce a shock
when touched are specifically prohibited.

All fences in residential districts shall be open fences as defined
Section XIV Open fences are defined as a fence, including
which has, for each one foot wide segment extending over the
length and height ofthe fence, 50 percent ofthe surface area in
spaces which afford direct views through the fence.

by
gates,
entire
open

Fences for Swimmlng Pools; ln{round swimming pools must be enclosed with a fence that is 4
to 5 feet in height. Openings in the fence may not pass a 4 inch diameter sphere through the
spaces. The clearance between the ground and the bottom of the fence may not exoeed 2 inches.
Fences must have 50% ofthe surface area in open spaces as defined above.
Access gates shall open outward away from the pool and shall be self-closing and have self-

latching devices. The release mechanism of the seltlatching device shall be located 54 inches

above the bottom of the gate. When the 54 inch height requirement for lalching devices cannot

be accommodated, the release mechanism shall be located on the pool side of the gate, 3 inches

below the top of the gate, and the gate shall have no opening greater than one-half inch within 16

inches of the release mechanism.

I
,l

"A" muat bo aqualto or grcatgrthan "8"

t
4

!!
1



July 22,2015

Shahran Javidan
8348 Walredon Avenue
Burr RidBe, lllinois 60527

Village ol Burr Ridge
Plan Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals

The purpose of this letter is to provide support for Ms. Bennetfs fence variance reguest to replac€ the
existint wooden fence adjacent to my prop€rty with the extension of the aluminum fence. The new,
open aluminum fence would positively impad the property app€al of my residence and provide a more
attractive p€rimeter f eature.

We would greatly appreciate thir fence replacement as soon as possible,



July 22,2015

Village of Burr Ridge
Plan Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals

Description of Public Hearing Reouest
The purpose of this Plan Commission Public Hearing request is to saek a fence zoning variation-
I recently purchascd the propcrty at 512 Xirkwood Cove, with the intent of improvint the residencc,
including the existirE fencc. The e{sting wooden fence was in need of substantial repair.
l-ast fall, I applied for a fence permit in order to install a Village approved aluminum fence. At that time, I

replaced the western portion of the fence according to the zoning permit. The remaining wooden fence
to the East was not replaced.

The existing wooden fence is comprised of 3 differmt panel styles, including a section which is

constructed of solid wooden privacy panels. ln seeking this variance, it is my obiective to create a
uniform and aesthetically pleasing landscape feature that r.rill enhance the neighboring properties. This

Proposal would provide a more attractive fencint option for my soutfiern nei8hbor as well as reduced
obstructive presence. Furthermore, rather than simply repairing the eristing wooden fmce, the
extended aluminum f€nce are would then con{orm to the Village's current 5096 open space fencint
ordinance. ln addition, order to visually screen the fence from the Walredon east view, I propose
installing landscape bushes along the exterior of the eastern fence.

I have discussed this concept with Shahram jayidan, my next door neighbor, whose property is located
adjacent to the wooden fence at 8348 Walredon. He is fully supportive ofthis improved fencing
proposal and personally endorses the plan to the VillaSe. He and his wife are most eager for the fencing
and landscapint improvements to occur asap.

Upon your authorization, I will submit an updated fencing permit application and procecd with the work
immecliately.

Thank you for your consideration.
Marta B€nnett

The fence section that still remains to be replaccd/repaired ls locaGd drccdy south of the housc which
is designed as the residence's bactyard. The house was consfucted in 1977 and at this time, this
house's rear space was sited with the southern orientation. The house backyard patio door and rear
entrances are all located to sefle this area as the backyard living space. Since this area was planned as

the residence's backyard, the fence was installed alont the perimeter of this area. lt is lor this reason
that I am petitionint the PlanninB Commission to dc{ine this rear facing prop€rty area as the backyard
for fence replacement purposes.



o i{lr Jrsr ,rErr 6rct ;r. rurtlt -!rit3!*ra*-itrtllltElon xE

,rorE ro-!a-r4!t
ra: ,ur-5it-r,xr.

LOI 12 
'{ALOq(3NERAEIPOR 

UNN NUUAER 1, EEING A SUEOMSK}I Of PAR] OF IHE SOUTH 1l2Of SECTION 36.
TOffISIiP 3E ORI}I. RAIiGE 1I. F'ST Of IHE T}IRD PRI'C?A iERDUII. ACCGDII{G TO TIIE PIAT TI€REOF
RECORItO JULY 31. lg73 AS O@Ura€r{I F,3a7!O2. W rru PAGE @t,{tY, !-llD}S,

SCHOMIG IAND SURYEYORS, LTD.
PIAT OF SURVEY

COTI ON ADoRESS: 512 xR<lvOOO CO{E

z

I

;

E

E

)

I

3r

II;o

o{
I

I

t
,

x
,
e
I

q
E

slgJll a{l'Y

-a

q
I
a

I

i

P

!

cE

iH:
Ei-
6lE
-d:

.l 'l
I

I

I

,lJz
a

I

.l
ot

" qd

5r

B

t"
I
a

T,i

36

rlt clt u utlo a.t ,loE r'a t!!.a rlalo. 96.
rLra0r( ra D ror q*Irlt firt tr.l ! l|. cmcl uaaa
uEcttu a6 ll{c rtlaacrE :llraED,
D rt. mtt LIur oEEttlllr l! laID (n rrE rorEt n'pl.l l-Er MEr r Er*aE^rDr - cllf,crEr ID.tEl.
rItES O'rdGa ralt , rG art lqE ral ltcl tr.lL t Gl (,l

CO ,OI lCrll O.fLarA ,Ea tLa ir: tl{ UE IOa 6 sOIt
FtlnEt It E araErr l!, Rl qrfi. ro ar* q E6 sY -sE ru'rI LErtE $!tr irrorr i{ llnrDr ,rt*E q
-k* lrro grYai(lt LtD. o.r trrt! it ,a. lED r. .r(.rErf rrrsrr aED rE :a otrtrllED rtt ga/Er Na
rE tD Er. @ colriclr, llr tlrltl rEIll@

sr.nFr BlE: t gl*l lOrH. 2l}14,

urDtE trllt} oqro8tl loll( 2ola,

TDDaESS llVEtU Ootrr llttt, 2014.

@tltD gY: R YUOiO I/IORRESEY ArIOeiEY

aJ|I trxll: l'2m1 !c'rl !' - lo

lL-

EAaJ@ O-r€rOta

ll-Dlc tt'r
n a.E urvlY arso{x,

caxltl t a
cri*, ttl FElca 

-
rcOO FD-E-
vrlYt tEaaa 

-

LEGE.ID

t".

,t{t s, ul.G ) -co.i.Y E cr )

-. rcro.c uro tl/xlE lro. .]t - {rra.3

'0EEA! 
oEFa rI' lrp s{Irt!(, @atlDtE( Ffiall,r calrY nrt i |xit slMYED ,xE ,cErr

rrr Dcioraa * r tat $ Ery. ,{l!t ot ^ 
tdt

re tG o. trE .f, lo rc qr:aE F
il.!.as r{ rgs r EArc, t !,roi ato lllsoD.ffi ErE, rt rsgr@ xlo llor rD rErE
aElar lt tpcr 0r t rrG.
i- li EI|lt.. laiEa coalE r! trc f ltxr rIIcsr SardEt l A Etoft 3rvE .

\*.u*.

..do

la

dgt rrls uro r.rr:tr !aEr.= , oJo-oas
ll-lo-itort

rN
XF

.lDuxlrAiY . T(f'o(,laPt* 1. sr.rtpr\rEDrs. 
^Lrvr.sr 

. @|Dor'rr6. s,rt Prrr'6. con..lrucrror . Era ctilFtc lE .

e'.,.

lDl.iEA rlrla !at{t rEEr

I
.^{

I

r



tLt. L:c,vntr'rT

3tA dr Q6-a''-'\ C'>JA ' 
Be UrEgrVterN

ii ,t
+

v*
+t t'

,r{,
lf'l

{ v

i* ,,

j

sh,,.. f'^ -'l-

,,Q

3 *-' {

a)

l--

l

t i t

F
I

\

\ t

\

t t t t
\ t

\
\

\

\



M J1gr^1c"rETl

{t,,} t<'rr?,(tjd,J> ( ovE UsE<T{ t Ft<)

t

-

rlll

s*il
'r,t -: ''

I



{

f/.; {r t E ut.c,>i> G o.) €, 7Q - W ?fvt r-v<)

I

a'
: .'. a.t

.t

I\. , rG

a.

' *l'*'

I
t .'t

rt,

ffi

$\
t

r

a

(
'{ry
-l

f
?,

-ad - la'.e
It

.\

\l
^*.4-,

'l, .-

I

\



Vq demN €v M ,*-xt*.tE ls

9a KttQ,( u.oQ.li> Cc'A - ?Xsft/reW

'tr

b**
I

t

I
,l,ii

j.

t

i

t.:r
i';

t..



Ft t xrryEr7

ft .a- r<t rc( .r,4.t D 63uE - E Asr Vr ?tr*t - td A!78 T>r:rV

I
:

j. .:

-t

l
I

.t

*

."\
I

"'\

rs
I&r

\

il i-1 E-7
.r I

F]!F

,5{

I

t
t

L\.'\

a

I
l'

(l

!
I

!?-ti
> {

\:

I ;5\\ I

t
q



r:ta

r-J
-\

style feetu€s e5(tended pickets

Single, doublc and archcd walk gatcs

ted

this fcnce

style arc 'rlso aveilablc.

Lu.' 2-rail ?anek in 3i 31/z

fusb bottom rail
nd 5' heigbts, atitlt a s or

A/

(q Qlrpt tV flSr)*-c 7n

+ 3-rail4mek in 3:3%',4', 5'and 6'beights, aitb a s

orJ1ush bottom rail

Majestic's flush top rail proiects a clean, streamlined look that make it one

of the most popular styles in the Montage family. Single, double and

arched w'alk gates that perfecdy match this fence sryle are available as well

+ 2-rail lanek in 3i 311',4'and 5'hcigbts, u:ith a standard or

fush bottom ruil
,n 3-rail Panek in.?: |lh', 4', 5' aad 6' heights, ttitb a standard or

fasb bottom rail (41h'2atek availoblc rDithfusb bottom rail onty)

I
HE!:;:

Hliiri

,

lllltt

:l

ia

r,
'l&.
.'.t

hrr
xt!l

-.:

rI
EI lllllt ,o

jl ,t&r
iiH:I _:= !-:+

NIAJEST]C'"I

rl':

ii;rtrir

t.

!,

CLASSIC''

tr
)

:

r\

fE$
ittt

I
,,:

speer capture the beauti.firl look ofold

I

Genesis stfet ertended flet-topped pickets serve as a foundetion for your
choice of eccent finiels providing a customized design. Single, double and

arched walk gates t}at perfectly match this fence sty'e are available as well.

* 2-rail panek ia 3i 31/z', 4'and 5' bcigbts, witb a standard or

furh bottom rail
+ 3 rail ?anels in 3: 3k', 4', 5'and 6' lxighx, witb a standard

orfush bottom rail

GENESIS'"

',i llll,

.t

..E:
!'I !lllglli..r,,,,

-;-rfllfrr"'



VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE
COM M UNITY DEVELOPM ENT DEPARTM ENT

STAFF REPORT AND SUMMARY

V-02-2015; 39 Fawn Court (Beck); Requests variations from Section IV.I of the Burr Ridge
Zoning Ordinance to permit the replacement of a patio, patio seat walls, fire pit and outdoor
kitchen located in a front and side yard rather than in the rear yard.

Preparcd For:

Preparcd By:

Date of Hearing:

Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission I Zoning Board of Appeals
Greg Trzupek, Chairman

Doug Pollock, AICP
Community Development Director

September 2l , 2015 ; continued from August 17 , 207 5

GENERAL INFORMATION

Petitioner:

Property Owner:

Petitioner's
Status:

Land Use Plan:

Existing Zoning:

Existing land Use:

Site Area:

Subdivision:

Richard A. Beck

Richard A. and Jo Anne
Beck
Property Owner

Recommends S ingle-Family
Residential Use

R-3 Planned Unit
Development
Single-Family Residence

24,817 square feet

Deer Path Lakes

R.2B

R.2BI
-R-2

.................ffi
isJe*'
I

A

t

4i ts."

w-
t /

3C

)*^

,r
)

43



Staff Report and Summary
Y-02-2015:39 Fawn Court (Beck)
Page 2 of 2

SUMMARY

The subject property has a non-conforming patio with seat walls located in a side and rear yard.
That portion of the patio and seat walls located in the front yard is non-conforming as the Zoning
Ordinance restricts patios and patio seat walls to side and rear yards. The petitioner seeks a
variation to replace the patio and the seat walls and to add a built-in fireplace and outdoor kitchen.
Outdoor fireplaces and kitchens are restricted to rear yards.

Compliance with the Zonins Ordinance

There is an existing patio with perimeter walls located at the southwest corner of the house. The
patio is located primarily in the front yard of the property (the front yard is defined by the Zoning
Ordinance as the nalrower of the street lot lines on a corner lot which is the Deer Path Trail lot line
for the subject property). Non-conforming structures such as the subject patio and walls may be
maintained but cannot be replaced or modified without being made to conform to the Zoning
Ordinance or without the grant of a variation.

The proposed new patio and patio seat walls conform to the Zoning Ordinance except for their
location. The seat walls are 2l inches in height (not including the fireplace or outdoor kitchen)
and the Zonrng Ordinance permits patio seat walls to be 24 inches in height.

In addition to replacing the existing patio and walls, the petitioner proposes to add a fireplace and
an outdoor kitchen to the patio. Fireplaces and outdoor kitchens are not permitted in a front or
side yard and are only permitted in arear yard. The proposed fireplace and outdoor kitchen comply
with all other requirements of the Zoning Ordinance relative to height and size (kitchens are
restricted to 5 feet in height and 60 square feet in area; fireplaces are restricted to 15 feet in height
and20 square feet in area).

Findinss of Fact and Recommendation

The petitioner has submitted findings of fact which may be adopted if the Plan Commission is in
agreement with those findings. The petitioner's findings state that the primary reason for the
variation request is the location of the existing patios and the patio doors from the house that access

the patio. The findings do not specifically address the addition of the fireplace and the outdoor
kitchen.



Attachment to

Village of Burr Ridge

Petition For Public Hearing

Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals

DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST:

Replace current patio in same location. When the home was built in 1982 the
patio was installed. The way the house was designed and place on the lot the

current codes do not support the current location of the patio. Base on the home

design the walk out to the current patio with two glass sliding doors at ground

level (same level as the 3 % car garage). Based on the current home location,

there is no other place on the lot to have the walk out patio. The current owner is

the second owner currently living in the home.

lncluded in the information are pictures of the current patio and the 4 sides of the
home.



Findings of Fact

Section XIII.H.3 of the Village of Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance requires
that the P.tan Commission/zoning Board of Appeals determine compliance with
the following findings. 1n order for a variation to be approved, the
petitioner must respond to and confirm each and every one of the followinq
findings by indicating the facts supporting such f.ind.ings.

Because of the parLicular physical surroundings, shape,
topographical conditlons of the specific property involved,
particular hardship to the owner would result, as dlstinguished from
mere inconvenience. if the strict Ietter of the regulati-ons were to
carried out

or
a
a

be

a

C

Nl xg\rltueoJt

b The property in question cannot yj-eld a reasonable return
permitted to be used only under the conditions allowed by
regulations governing the zoning district in which it is located.

if
the

Atr xc[\\sr'.rt

A f-R t,\.vvreuT-

The purpose of the variation j-s not based prj-mariJ'y upon a desire to
increase financial n.tr. 

n

A tf rrc \nnPr:T-

d

Variation from the Village of Burr Ridge
Zoning Ordinance

The condltions upon which an appllcation for a variation is based are
unique to the property for which the variance is sought, and are not
applicable, generally, to other property within the same zoning
classification.



e The alleged difficulty or hardship is caused by this Ordinance and
has not been created by any persons presently having an interest. in
the property.

f The granting of the variation wil-l- not be detrj-mentaf to the public
wel-fare or injurious to other property or improvements j-n the
neighborhood in which the property is located.

A t\l r[r,ngNt

l+ trnc[Mnuf

Hxrn e\tu@r)t

Atro cVtn@N(

g The granting of the variation will- not alter the essential- character
of the neighborhood or IocaIity.

h The proposed variation wil-l- not impair an adequate supply of light
and air to adjacent property or substantially increase the congestion
of the public streetsr or increase the danger of fire, or impair
natural drainage or create drainage problems on adjacent properties,
or endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair
property values withj-n the neighborhood.

f,*Tn cV vwsruJ-/\ I

The proposed variation is consistent with the official- Comprehenslve
Plan of the Village of Burr Ridge and other development codes of the
Vj-1J-age.

]-

(Pl-ease transcribe or attach additional pages as necessary.)



39 Fawn Ct., Burr Ridge, lL 60521-8360

Attachment to

Finding of Facts

Variation from Village of Burr Ridge

Zoning Ordinance

a. Based on the location of the home to the lot, replacing of the current patio

if the strict letter of the regulations were to be carried out would make the
patio unusable. The sliding doors to the current patio are the only place

there would be access to a patio.

b. This property at 39 Fawn Ct., Burr Ridge would not be useful under the
regulations governing the zoning district in which it is located because

there would not be a functional patio in comparison to other homes in the

neighborhood.

c. The home at 39 Fawn Ct., Burr Ridge is very different because of its location

on the lot and to my knowledge being a residence since 1987 is not

consistent with other properties within the same zoning classification.

d. The purpose ofthe variation is to be able to have a replacement patio in

the same place as the current patio.

e. The difficulty is caused by this Ordinance because when the home was built

in 1982 the patio was a part ofthe ori8inal construction. The current

owner bought the home in 1987.

f. The granting of the variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare

or injurious to other property or improvements in the neighborhood in

which property is located because the current patio being replaced has

been in this location since the home was built 1982.

g. Thegrantingof the variation will not a lter the essentia I characterofthe
neighborhood or locality because the current patio being replaced has been

in this location since the home was built.

h. The current patio is very worn-out and the 49 inch wood walls are getting

questionable as far as remaining in place. The replacement patio will have a

l lPage cf 2



stone wall at 36 inches and will blend in with the current house stone with
shrubs hiding the patio walls. Because the current patio being replaced will
have the same footprint it will not create drainage problems will not
diminish or impair property values with in the neighborhood.

i. To the best of the owner's knowledge the proposed variation would be

consistent with the official Comprehensive Plan of the Village of Burr Ridge

and other development codes of the Village because of the replacement of
the current patio.

2lPage of 2



39 Fawn Ct., Burr Ridge

Pictures of the Four Exterior Views

Taken from the Fawn Ct. Street Side

Taken from the Deer Path Street Side

Page Lof2

,t

a.!
-"!

t*
ir

a

Jg't{

'\ 
"r?.- r-'1

L|tr
.'.-/

f-

I

w
/

j$



39 Fawn Ct., Burr Ridge
Pictures of the Four Exterior Views

Taken from the opposite side of the driveway on Fawn Ct. Street

Taken from the opposite side of Deer Path Street Side

Page 2 of 2

ffi$,
,'.

i.

"n'*1il
L

*--.a-*f

I

I

t

rr
)

a.

I



Pictures of the Current Patio Area
39 Fawn Ct., Burr Ridge, ll60527-8360

T

r

-

Page t of 4

a\

l'

aa-lry

3\



Pictures of the Current Patio Area
39 Fawn Ct., Burr Ridge, lL60527-8360

Page 2 of 4

lL

.t

r-

:*

\



Pictures of the Current Patio Area
39 Fawn Ct., Burr Ridge, lL60527-8360

Page 3 of 4

,:j

#Frw

r'--
J-1
fl

t

!

I "f,1

,l

t



7

Pictures of the Current Patio Area
39 Fawn Ct., Burr Ridge, lL60527-8360

I

Page 4of4

'ry

ffi ra

-IE
Ib--=--

1

t
I

- i,{l

t
T

?e" fl
r

t







VILTAGE OF BURR RIDGE
COM MUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

STAFF REPORT AND SUMMARY

2-12-2015:15W800 91st Street and 9101 Kingery Highway (Spectrum); Request rezoning upon
annexation from the R-l Single-Family Residence District to the O-2 Oflice and Hotel District
and the B-2 General Business District of the Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance; and requests
special use approval as per Sections IX.D.2.g and YIII.C.2.ii of the Burr Ridge Zoning
Ordinance for a Planned Unit Development consisting of a senior care facility with
approximatety 190 total units on 15.5 acres and 241000 square feet of retail space on 3.5 acres.

Prcpared For:

Preparcd By:

Date of Hearing:

Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission / Zoning Board of Appeals
Greg Trzupek, Chairman

Doug Pollock, AICP
Community Development Director

September 21,2015; continued from August 17 ,2015

SUMMARY

The public hearing for this petition was opened on August 17,2015 and continued to September
21,2015. At the August meeting, the outstanding issues included the following:

l. A revised traffic study has been provided and reviewed by the Village's traffic consultant. The
key issues related to the traffic study include:

a. The traffic study recommends keeping the internal drive that runs parallel to 91st Street
and connects the two entry points on 91st Street. The Plan Commission had asked that
this drive be removed. The petitioner is willing to proceed with either alternative.

b. The traffic study also recommends that the entry drive on 91st Street that is shared with
the commercial property be aligned with O'Neil Drive. The revised traffic study
submitted by the petitioner showed this entry drive being relocated and not aligned with
O'Neil Drive. The latest proposal by the petitioner is to comply with the
recommendation of the Village consultant and align this drive with O'Neil Drive. Final
details for the left turn lanes on 9l't Street will require further review by the Village's
traffic consultant.

c. The main drive from 9l't Street for the senior living property has been aligned with
Palisades Drive and the exit lanes have been extended.

d. The drives and parking located in the courtyard of the main
building have also been revised. Two of the parking spaces
are located forward of the front wall of the building and
should be removed.



Staff Report and Summary
2-12-2015: 15W800 9l't Street and 9l0l Kingery Highway (Spectrum)
Page 2 of 3

2. The private street providing access to the cottage units has been widened to 27 feet to permit
on-street parking.

3. Ten land banked parking spaces have been designed on the south side of the building. These
spaces would not be constructed unless the owner or the Village determined there was a need
for the additional parking spaces.

4. It was suggested that the fence along 91st Street and in front of the Fallingwater Subdivision
be extended south along the property's east lot line. The revised plans include a "cedar
privacy fence" extending 150 feet south of the 9lst Street property line. The location of the
fence is appropriate but the type of fence should match the masonry and decorative
aluminum fence located along 91st Street in front the Fallingwater Subdivision.

5. The retaining walls located east of the cottage units have been terraced to lower the maximum
height from l0 feet to 7 feet. Instead of two wall sections there are now three wall sections.
The walls still exceed the 42 inch maximum permitted by the Subdivision Ordinance but are
necessary to preserve the existing grade under the tree and brush line along the east lot line.

6. Subsequent to the August meeting, the Pathway Commission has considered the petitioner's
request to construct the sidewalk on 9l st Street and provide a donation in lieu of the sidewalk
for Kingery Highway. The Pathway Commission considered this request at their September
10, 2015 meeting and is recommending that sidewalks be constructed on both 9l't Street and
Kingery Highway. This recommendation will be forwarded to the Village Board for their
consideration.

7 . Revised landscaping plans have been provided to reflect the changes to the site and engineering
plans. At the time of final plan review, staff may require some additional landscaping along
the south lot line and in other selective areas.

8. The stucco accents previously shown on the main building have been replaced with different
stone veneers.

Findinss of Fact and Recommendations

In summary, the petitioner is requesting rezoning of the property upon annexation from the R-l
District to the B-2 District and the O-2 District and is requesting designation of the entire property
as a Planned Unit Development. Final plan approval is requested for Phase I of the PUD which
includes the senior living building and cottage units. Preliminary approval is requested for the
retail property. As per the review comments above, the petitioner has responded to all of the
comments and suggestions provided by the Plan Commission at the August 17, 2015 public
hearing. The petitioner has submitted Findings of Fact and those may be adopted if the Plan
Commission is in agreement with those findings.

Annexation. Subdivision and PUD Process

Upon conclusion of the public hearing, the Plan Commission should forward a recommendation
regarding the zoning and PUD to the Board of Trustees. The process for this request after the Plan
Commission public hearing will be as follows:



Staff Report and Summary
2-12-2015:15W800 9l't Street and 9l0l Kingery Highway (Spectrum)
Page 3 of3

a. The Board of Trustees will consider the PC recommendation at their September 28,2015
meeting. If the Board supports the proposal they will direct staff to prepare an Annexation
Agreement and schedule a hearing for the agreement.

b. A hearing would be scheduled for the October 26,2015 Board meeting. Prior to that
meeting, staff will prepare a draft Annexation Agreement for review by the petitioner.

c. At the 10-26 Board meeting, the Board will consider approval of the Annexation
Agreement.

d. As soon as the Agreement is signed by the property owner, the Board of Trustees will adopt
Ordinances annexing and zoning the property.

e. After recording of the Agreement, the petitioner will submit final engineering and
landscaping plans for the subdivision improvements with an engineer's cost estimate. The
subdivision improvements will include all stormwater facilities, curb and gutter and
widening of the adjacent side of 9lst Street, any turn lanes and similar public street
improvements, the 9lst Street sidewalk, and public water and sewer mains.

f. Upon approval of final engineering and final landscaping by staff, the petitioner will submit
a final plat for review and approval by Village staff and the Board of Trustees.

g. A letter of credit equal to 125% of the approved engineer's cost estimate will be required
prior to recording the final plat. The letter of credit will guarantee the completion of the
subdivision improvements within 2 years of recording the final plat.

h. Building permits for the construction of the cottage units and the senior living building
may be requested and issued upon recording the hnal plat and receipt of the letter of credit.

Prior to construction of any retail buildings, review and approval of the final site plan, landscaping
plan, and building elevations by the Plan Commission and Board of Trustees will be required.



IcllAPSllT^ltUllTI
Project Traffic Review #2

To: Doug Pollock
Village of Burr Ridge

C O N S U LT I N G E N G I N E E R 5

625 Forest EdSe Drive, Vernon Hills, It, 60061

TEL a47.47E.97U) . lix 847.478.9701

wwr.r,.gha-engineers.com

From Bill Grieve

Date: September 16,2015

Sublect: Spectrum Senior Living
l[ 83 @ 91st Street - SE Comer

GEWALT HAMTLToN AssocrATES, lNc. (GHA) has reviewed the Sam Schwartz Engineering D,P.C, (SSE) Traffic
lmpact Study (TlS) dated August 2015 for the proposed Spectrum Senior Living Development. The TIS
included an updated site plan prepared by Cross Engineering & Associates, lnc,

Discussion Pornt The vast majority of traffic study and site plan comments from our fimt revlew dated July
31, 2015 have been positively addressed. I offer the following brief comments for your consideration
regarding our findings and any remaining questions and issues,

SSE Traffic lmpact Study

1 , We concur with the SSE findings regarding existing conditions.
2. We concur with the trafflc characteristics of the proposed development, including trip generations, trip

distribution, traffic assignments, and results of the capacity analyses.
3. We concur that separate eastbound right turn lanes at the site drives on g1 st Street should not be

needed.

4. Would it make sense to further extend the proposed left turn lane on 91st Street so that it also serves
the main access / Palisades intersection?

5. We also concur with the SSE parking demand analysis.

Cross Site Plan

1 . We concur that vehicle sight distance along g1 s Street is acceptable.
2. We concur that the main access on 91 st Street opposite Palisades Road should provide one inbound

and two outbound lanes, The second outbound lane helps to provide additional exiting capacity, since
the internal east-west circulation aisle is qurte close.

3. Where will guests park who are visiting residents of the independent villas? Some street parking could
be provided on one side, but the resident driveways will limit the supply. Could one or two areas be set
aside for a few spaces of off-street parking, should it determined to be needed?

Kev Findinq. The east-west link from the main build ing to the northern commercial area is important
and should be included. This link helps minimize the traffic impacts along 9'lst Street by allowing travel
between the residential and commercial components,



Spectrum Senior Living

Burr Ridge, lL.

Kev Findinq. We believe that the commercial access on 91st Street should align opposite Oneill Drive
as originally planned. Offsetting these two intersections create unwanted vehicle conflict points. Traffic
should be monitored over time to determine if left turns out should be restricted during peak travel
hours or prohibited all together, so as to not create congestion in the busy IL 83 / 91st Street
intersection infl uence area.

This project traffic review conducted by:

b;, b''L,.,e
I
William C. Grieve, P.E., PTOE

Senior Transportation Engineer

bgrieve@gha-eng i neers.com

GEWALT HAMTLToN AsSocrATES, lNc. - Page | 2



Sam
Schwartz

D.P.C.

Spectrum Senior Living Development
Traffic lmpact Study
Burr Ridge, !llinois
August 2015

SOS N LaSalle Street, Suite 300 I Chicago, lL 60654 | T 773.305.0800 | www.samschwartz.com

Engineering

t

3

?

$

g
it

I L i.:;,:'

f

t
a

I

SITE

*

'.t

a

t
&

--t....1

\

i1
J



Spectrum Senior Living Development - Burr Ridge, lL

INTRODUCTION

Sam Schwartz Engineering, D.P.C (SSE) was retained by Spectrum Retirement Communities LLC to
conduct a traffic impact analysis for the proposed Spectrum Senior Living development located at
lllinois Route 83 (lL 83) and g1't Street in Burr Ridge, lllinois. The site location is illustrated on

Figure 1. A site plan is contained in the Appendix.

As proposed, the site will consist of a continuing care retirement community with a total of 190 dwelling

units including a mix of independent living, assisted living and memory care accommodations.
Commercial outlots are also proposed along lL 83 and conceptually shown as two fast-food
restaurants and a 15,000 square-foot retail building. Access is proposed via two full-access driveways
on 9l"tStreet and one right-in/right-out driveway on lL 83.

The following report presents and documents SSE's methodology, data collection, analyses, and

identifies improvements, as necessary, to mitigate impacts the development's traffic may have on the

adjacent roadway network.

Sam
Schwartz
Engineering
D.P.C.

Page 1



Not to Scale

Figure 1

Site Location
Sam
Schwartz
Engineering
D.P.C.

:,
;r"-
-t,r

il
Gi.:

I

I

(_

*
Ft
-

4
,"7

{

.-
3.fr

i a

,l
.\ !(

t-
'

L -

-
't ; fi3*v:l

i

*6]

S ITE

f
,idf



Spectrum Senior Living Development - Burr Ridge, lL

EXISTING CONDITIONS

SSE conducted field visits to collect relevant information pertaining to existing land uses in the area,

the surrounding roadway network, existing traffic volumes, traffic controls, and roadway lane usage at

all critical intersections. This section of the report provides a description of these existing characteristics.

Site Location
The site is located on the southeast quadrant of lL 83 and 91"t Street in Burr Ridge, lllinois. The site is
currently operated by Legacy USA LLC as a horse riding school. Adjacent land uses consist of mostly

residential in all directions, with a number of commercial buildings at the intersection of lL 83 and 91't
Street.

Existi ng Street Characteristics
lL Route 83, also known as Kingery Highway, is a divided north-south strategic regionalarterial(SRA)
under the jurisdiction of IDOT. At its signalized intersection with 91't Street, lL 83 provides a left-turn

lane, two through lanes, and a rightturn lane in the northbound and southbound directions. lL 83 has

a posted speed limit of 45 miles per hour in the vicinity of the site.

97't Streef is an east-west minor arterial roadway serving a residential community north of the site.

At its signalized intersection with lL 83, 91"1 Street eastbound and westbound traffic are provided a
left-turn lane and a shared through/right-turn lane. At its unsignalized intersection with Oneill Drive,

Palisades Road, and Skyline Drive, free flow traffic in both directions on 91"1 Street is provided a

shared through/turn lane.

Oneill Drive is a north-south local roadway serving a residential community north of the proposed

site. At its unsignalized intersection with 91"t Street, Oneill Drive provides a single travel lane,

operating as a shared left-turn and rightturn lane under STOP sign control.

Palrsades Road is a north-south local roadway serving a residentialcommunity north of the proposed

site. At its unsignalized intersection with 91"1 Street, Palisades Road provides a single travel lane

operating as a shared left-turn and rightturn lane under STOP sign control.

Skyline Drive is a north-south local roadway serving a residential community north of the proposed

site. At its unsignalized intersection with 91"1 Street, Skyline Drive provides a single travel lane
operating as a shared leftturn and right-turn lane under STOP sign control.

Sam
Schwartz
Engineering
D.P.C.

Page 3



Existing Traffic Volumes
Existing traffic volumes were determined by manual traffic counts conducted in July 2015 during
weekday morning (6:00 to 9:00 AM) and weekday evening (3:00 to 6:00 PM) at the following
intersections:

. lL Route 83 and 91"1 Street

. 91"tSheet and gas station access drive

. 91"t Street and Oneill Drive

. 9l"tStreet and Palisades Road

. 9l"tStreet and Skyline Drive

These peak periods were chosen since they coincide with the typical peak traffic periods of the
proposed development and the adjacent street traffic.

Based on traffic count data retrieved from the lllinois Department of Transportation website, the
average daily traffic on lL 83 in the vicinity of the development is 32,800 vehicles (year 2013) north
of 9'l "r Street, and 24,10O vehicles (year 201 3) south of g1"t Street. The average daily traffic on g1"t

Street is 5,450 vehicles (year 2012).

The existing peak hour volumes are illustrated on Figure 2. Summaries of the traffic count data are
contained in the Appendix of this report.

Existing Operations
The effectiveness of an intersection's operation is measured in terms of Level of Service ("LOS"),
which is assigned a letter from A to F based on the average total delay experienced by each vehicle
passing through an intersection. Level of Service A is the highest (best haffic flow and least delay),
Level of Service E represents saturated or at-capacity conditions, and Level of Service F is the lowest
(oversaturated conditions). LOS 'A' represents free flow conditions where the general level of
convenience experienced by motorists is excellent. The minimum intersection LOS that is generally
accepted by industry standards is LOS "D."

An intersection capacity analysis was utilized to analyze the study intersections for the weekday
morning and weekday evening peak hours using HCS 2010 and based on the methodologies outlined
in the Highway Capacity Manual (HCM)1 . All intersections inthestudyarea, with the exception of lL
83 and 91"tStreet, are STOP controlled on the local roadway, while 9lstStreet operates in a free flow
condition. The results of the capacity analyses are shown in Table 1. The minor streets under stop
sign control all operate at LOS B or better. The signalized intersection of lL 83 and gl"tStreet

operates overall at LOS B or C with east-west movements operating at LOS D or E in order to favor
green time on lL 83. The worksheets containing the intersection analyses are provided in the
Appendix.

Page 4

Spectrum Senior Living Development - Burr Ridge, lL

lHighway Capacity Manual, Transportation Research Board, National Research Council, Washington, D C , 2010.

Salrr
schwartz
},ngineering
D. P.C.



Spectrum Senior Living Development - Bun Ridge, lL

Table 1:

Level of service.

I ntersection Level-of-Service

per
B

Weekday AM
Peak Hour

Weekday PM
Peak Hour

LOS
I ntersection/Peak Hou r/Lane

Delay A LOS B Delay
lL Route 83 at 91"1 St

91st St EB
91"1 StWB
lL Route 83 NB
lL Route 83 SB
Overall lntersection

56.2
65.4
6.8
9.3

16.1

E
E
A

B

60.4
50.4
12.2
12.3
23.0

E
D
B
B
c

Gas Station at 91"t St
Gas Station SB 9.6 A 11.5 B

Oneill Dr at 91st St
Oneill Dr SB 10.4 B 9.8 A

10.9 B
Palisades Rd at 91s St

Palisades Rd SB 9.5 A
Skyline Dr at 91"1 St

Skyline SB 10.0 B 11.9 B

Sam
Schwartz
Engineering
D.p.c.

Page 5



Not to Scale
(,

=fo
U
-

-o
OJ

(,1
o)
o-o
(

D
o-

az
3
U
-l

4
f

-

CO
'N

+L

l-
n
o
C
rD

@
L^J

(107) 128 J

N
trr

o\o
\\- 48 (50)

+:g (110)

-) 46 (1061f
(177\ 60 +
(61) s6 _\

L

a'
\o
e9
(n
\o
t/)

+

F\
Ol
fn

o^t\O
NF\ L

+--)L
o

trL 1g (+s) < (4)

29 (268)

o
\r

)

L3 (2)
+ 126 (266)

lL- 3 (8)
+127 (262)

91st St

NF
C.l \O)L110

(8)3J
(318)168 ->

C)- - I

f-"
rtr ,,,,J

(315) 165 +
ril *ruJ (1) 4 _t;

I

:(3
NJ

N)
\o

UUJ

A!
@^

UJ

11) 169+ (326)172 +
-i'i'-

I

Sam
Schwartz
Engineering xx = Weekday AM Peak Hour

PM Peak Hour(xx) =D.P.C

Traffic
Figure 2

ttl



Spectrum Senior Living Development - Burr Ridge, lL

FUTURE TRAFFIC GHARACTERISTICS

This section of the report presents the traffic characteristics associated with the proposed development
and evaluates the impact of future traffic on the area street system. This includes discussions
regarding site development plans, site-generated traffic volumes and their distributions on the
surrounding roadway network. Site access, site traffic assignment, and future traffic volumes and
horizon years are also discussed.

Development Plans
The existing facility located in the southeast quadrant of lL 83 and 91't Street will be eliminated to
accommodate the proposed development that is a senior living residential community with a mix of
independent living, assisted living and memory care units in a main building along with 6 free standing
cottages for independent living. Commercialoutlots will also be developed within the site along lL 83. At
this time, uses have yet to be determined and are shown in concept only as three outlots - two 4,500
square-foot drive-thru fast food restaurants and a 15,000 square-foot pharmacy.

Access to the site is proposed via two full-access driveways on gl"tStreet and one right-in/right-out
driveway on lL 83. The western driveway on 91"1 Street is proposed to be offset to the east of Oneill
Drive and the eastern driveway is proposed aligned with Palisades Road. Under these proposed

conditions, the northbound and southbound traffic will operate under stop control, while the eastbound
and westbound traffic on 91't Street continues to operate as a free flowing traffic.

Trip Generation
The estimates of traffic to be generated by the site are based upon land use type and size. The lnstitute
of Transportation Engineers' (lTE) Trip Generation, 9b Edition was used to estimate a base volume of
traffic generated by the proposed development as detailed in Table 2. Land Use Codes used were
255- Continuing Care Retirement Community, 934 - Fast-Food Restaurant with Drive-Thru Window and
BB1 - Pharmacy/Drugstore with Drive-Thru Window.

According to ITE data, as many as half of the trips generated by the commercial uses are expected
to be pass-by trips, or trips that are attracted from the traffic passing the site on the roadway and not
new to the system. For a more conservative estimate that tests the maximum impacts, these trips
were not reduced.

Table 2: Estimated Site Trip Generation

Land Use / Size AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour

ln Out Total ln Out Total
Spectrum Senior Living / 190 Units 20 6 25 10 20 30
Restaurant w/ Drive-Thru / 9,000 sf 210 200 410 155 140 295
Retail/Pharmacy Outlot/ 15,000 sf 30 15 45 60 65 125

Total 260 220 480 22s 225 450

Sanr
Schrvartz
lingineerin.g
D.P.C.

PageT



Spectrum Senior Living Development - Burr Ridge, lL

Directional Distribution
The directional distribution of the site-generated traffic is dependent upon various factors including
the existing traffic volumes, the proposed land use and development layout, and the adjacent roadway
network. The anticipated directional distribution of the expected generated site traffic is shown on
Figure 3. Directional distribution is shown separately for commercial and residential traffic.
Commercial traffic will mostly be oriented to and from lL 83, as well as a small portion that will be
captured internal on the site as residents visit the commercial uses along lL 83. Residential traffic is
expected to be more evenly distributed on the roadway network.

Site Traffic Assignment
The site-generated traffic volumes were assigned to the external roadway system and proposed site
access system based on the site-generated trips shown in Table 2 and the directional distribution
shown in Figure 3. Figure 4 illustrates the site traffic assignment to and from the proposed
development upon completion of the project.

Total Traffic
To represent conditions of a build-plus-five horizon year, traffic volumes were projected to year 2026
based on a growth factor determined from information provided by the Chicago Metropolitan Agency
for Planning (CMAP). The Total Traffic assignment represents the total projected traffic in Year 2026
including all site traffic, a 4 percent growth to existing traffic on lL 83 and an 18 percent growth to existing
traffic on 91"1Street. The TotalTraffic volumes are shown on Figure 5. The CMAP traffic projection
information (letter) is contained in the Appendix.

Srm
Schwartz
Engineering
D.P,C.

Page 8



+
35o/o (25o/ol

*

<-10o/o->
(25o/o)

=:ao
I

!
O)

o,
o-o
u
o-

azI
o

4
=
rD

-

=t-
n
oc.+o
@(,

Not to Scale
(tr

<-1Oo/o*
(25o/o)

91st St

<-1Oo/o->
(-o/o)

I+

35o/o (25o/o)

*

Sam
Schwartz
Engineering
D.P.C.

Figure 3
Directional Distribution

xxolo = Percent Commercial
(xxolo) = Ps16s.1 gesidential



5'o
(]

!
O)

a'
(U
o-oa
7
o-

a
z.
3
U
-t

4
:f
o

T

t-
u
oc
a
@
L^J

Lr,r,
*-(10)

f 
7s (70)

+-s (10)

f 2s (20)
*25 (20)

l-s(s) 91st St

6
99
16
@

L
(25) 30+

I-t

L

(20)20+
(s)1o_\

a.>ll
ur-i
^(ro

NJOoo

(s) 10 + 1r(100) 10s _\
;8
38

100 (100)
<-2s (20)
(20)20+r

\oo
!tjt

I

Sam
Schwartz
Engineering
D.P.C.

Figure 4
Site Traffic

xx = Weekday AM Peak Hour
(xx) = Weekday PM Peak Hour

Not to Scale



Not to Scale
(/r

='o
I

!
o,
6'
OJ
o-o
f,
o-

az
g
I

-̂)
o

-

:r-
Do
C
rD

@
LrJ

66
N--

,+L
(1 10) 13s
(23s) 100

(6s) 60

J
-\

Lrr,uo, gg
4s (r40) Kg,,- r 25 t]801 r r

7 j?\>

6C

.JL
IL 20 (45)

<- 200 (340)

L (s)
+- 14s (310)

f 2s l2o)

Ls (s)
<- 160 (320)

f s (s)

l\_ 5 (10)
<- 165 (320)

9'lst 5t

oo!1c

)+

:G

,L
,z-J-- 

-I (ss) 6s-J c) s
l(4ss) 3oo ---> (370) 2oo
: (r00) 10s
;

f- 100 (r 00)

ra- (10) s J
(375) 205 --->

(s) r0 -\

- r.-r sJ
(375) 205 --->

__t

Figure 5
2026 TotalTraffic

xx = Weekday AM Peak Hour
(xx) = YY""16u, PM Peak Hour

N,)

.{o
lo^l-@

o

-\
\IN

oo

t
;
G
l,

r
\o

.-J

Sam
Schwartz
Engineering
D.P.C.



Spectrum Senior Living Development - Burr Ridge, lL

ANALYSIS

Analyses were conducted to determine whether the adjacent roadway network would be able to
accommodate the needs of the proposed development. The analyses conducted include capacity
analyses for future traffic conditions at the study intersections and the examination of turn lane needs.

Capacity Analysis
Capacity analyses were conducted for assessing the various future traffic conditions of the weekday
morning and weekday afternoon peak hours using HCS 2010. Summaries of the capacity analysis
results indicating the LOS for all study intersections are presented in lable 3 for Total Traffic. All
output worksheets used for these analyses are contained in the Appendix.

Table 3: Future lntersection Level-of-Service - Total Traffic

Average per
B Level of service.

Comparison of existing and future conditions capacity analyses show that study area intersections
will continue to operate at LOS C or better in the future, and will experience minimal increases in

delay as a result of the proposed project.

91st Street Site Access
The western site driveway is proposed off-set approximately 50 feet to the east of Oneill Drive in order
to maximize the distance from the lL 83 intersection. Site improvements will include the widening of
91st Street to provide a two-way left-turn lane that serves both eastbound to northbound left turns to

Oneill Drive and westbound to southbound left-turns into the site. Even though IDOT guidelines

suggest this improvement is not required, it provides several benefits to traffic operations including

Sam
Schrvartz
Engineering
D.P.C.

Weekday AM
Peak Hour

Weekday PM
Peak HourI ntersection/Peak Hou r/Lane

Delay A LOS B Delav LOS
lL Route 83 at 91"t St

91st St EB
91st StWB
lL Route 83 NB
lL Route 83 SB
Overall lntersection

60.8
56.1
1s.9
18.5
24.9

E
E
B

B
c

73.3
bo.J
19.5
21.5
33.8

E
E
B

C
c

Gas Station at 91"t St
Gas Station SB 11.0 13.s B

Oneill Dr at 91"t St
91St St EB LT
91't StWB LT
Oneill Dr NB LT
Oneill Dr SB
NB Approach

7.5
7.9
'13.9

11.2
13.0

A
A
B
B
B

7.9
8.4

21.5
12.3
19.2

A
A
C
B
c

Palisades Rd at 91st St
91St St EB LT
91St StWB LT
Palisades Rd NB
Palisades Rd SB

7.6
7.7
11.3
10.4

A
A
B

B

8.0
8.1
14.8
13.4

A
A
B
B

Skyline Dr at 91"t St
Skyline SB 10.1 12.6 B

Right-ln/Right-Out at lL Route 83
Risht-ln/Risht-Out WB 15.4 C 12.5 B

Page 12

B

B



Spectrum Senior Living Development - Burr Ridge, lL

storage and more clarification for left turns to ONeill Drive, storage for 1-2 cars turning left into the
site, and storage for two-stage left turns out of the site. Westbound queues were analyzed and the
capacity results indicate the westbound left-turn 95th percentile queue will extend at most 185 feet
from the stop bar at lL 83, which ends prior to Oneill Drive, still allowing left turns both to and from
Oneill Drive. An aerial image is provided in the Appendix illustrating the maximum queue. The new
site access driveway should provide one inbound lane and two outbound lanes under STOP sign
control. Outbound traffic will operate well with a maximum projected queue of one vehicle.

The eastern site driveway is proposed aligned opposite Palisades Road, generally in the same
location as the existing site access driveway. Palisades Road and the site access driveway will
operate well under stop sign control. Given the low traffic volumes expected at the driveway, no turn
lane improvements are recommended on 91"tStreet. The new site driveway should provide a single
inbound lane and a single outbound lane under STOP sign control.

lL 83 Right-in/Right-Out
Site access is also proposed on lL 83 approximately 600 feet south of 9lstStreet. Access will be
restricted to right turns in and out only given the roadway's SRA designation and the presence of a
median. The driveway will operate well with one inbound lane and one outbound lane with the
outbound lane under STOP sign control. The drive will be designed per IDOT standard design for
channelizing islands.

lnternal Circulation
Cross access between the commercial and residential portions of the site is provided on the south

side of the main building. Trucks and deliveries will occur on the south side of the building and will

need to either use the commercial access drives or circulate around the east side of the site by the

cottages. Visitors will enter via the main drive aligned with Palisades Road and travel to the parking

spaces in front of the building while residents will enter either via the main drive and circulate around

the east side of the site or via one of the two commercial drives and circulate to the south side of the

building. Commercial traffic will generally be contained on the western portion of the site using one

of the two commercial access drives. All internal drives will be two-way.

Residential Parking
The residential portion of the site will provide '196 total parking spaces as follows:

. 148 surface spaces for the main building, 44 spaces on the north side of thebuildingand 104

on the south side (including 12 garage spaces)
. 48 (4 each) for the 12 independent living cottages

Overall, parking is supplied at a rate of 1.03 spaces per unit. lf evaluated as a whole as a CCRC, the
overall peak residential parking demand per the lnstitute of Transportation Engineers (lTE) Parking
Generation Manual 4th Edition is 1.0 space per unit or a total of 190 spaces.

More appropriately, parking should be considered separate between the main building and the
cottages. The main building will supply parking at a rate of .83 spaces per unit and the cottages will
supply 4.0 spaces per unit. Since the main building accommodates a much more assisted lifestyle
than the cottages, an overall CCRC rate would not be appropriate for the main building (standalone)

Page 13Sam
schwartz
Engineering
D.P.C.



Spectrum Senior Living Development - Burr Ridge, lL

and the parking demand for the main building should be weighted more to reflect lower parking
generation. Table 4 shows the parking demand tabulation using a standalone model. lt shows the
site has an adequate supply of parking to meet the demands, even on special event days. Employees
should be encouraged to park in the spaces located in the rear of the building with the prime front
spaces reserved for visitors.

Table 4: Parking Demand

Land Use

Size

Peak Demand
Parking Supply

Rate
No.

Vehicles
Spectrum Retirement Communitv
Main Buildinq

I ndependent Livino/Conoreqate Care 114 5 57 95
Assisted Livinq & Memory Care 64 .41 27 53

Subtotal(Main Blds.) 178 84 148
Cottages 12 2.0 24 48

Total 190 108 196

Sam
Schwartz
t:ngineering
D.P.C.

Page 14



Spectrum Senior Living Development - Burr Ridge, lL

CONCLUSION

A traffic impact study was conducted forthe proposed Spectrum Senior Living development at lL Route
83 and 9l"tStreet in Burr Ridge, lllinois. Analyses were conducted for future development conditions
to determine what roadway improvements are needed as a result of the site. The following
summarizes the improvements required for the site development.

lane and two outbound lanes should be provided with the outbound lanes under stop sign

control and striped as a separate right- and left-turn lane.

way left-turn lane to be provided serving both Oneill and the western site access driveway.
The geometry will improve operations on 91"1 Street by providing storage for left turning
vehicles.

should provide one inbound lane and one outbound lane with the outbound lane under

stop sign control.

the building to maximize access flexibility and facilitate internal trips between the residential

and commercial portions. Additional cross access on the north side of the building would

further encourage internal trips and reduce traffic generated on the external street system.

Sam
Schwartz
Engineering
D.p.c.

Page 15



APPENDIGES

Site Plan
Traffic Counts
CMAP Traffic Projection Letter
lntersection Capacity Analysis
Signal Timings
Google Earth Aerial Queue Diagram



A i,i,

6fii;i
15

=L

ll l9oEauns
lssEt6 pmI

f00tu uunS - eNtAt't uotNfs v{nu1c3ds

r1c3rcud

a-'l-'t'salllunuuo3 luauaJlla8 un4.ads

@@ @ )'^q
wG&Seds@

6z

Y5

qi
I;J

;sgE!:E

:;iCEil

E;EEiEi

iiliiiir

H
5
1
q

FU

=U
o

eli

+z

E

.-ot
SE
3J

ill

=
=

-Ti

t

F

e
z
Fz
F
a
a

:{r

c|tiou tl
urca sYano

tii

I

--{

EE I

rE.i
gs 

El
E: TI

I

i

I

l^lu0 lNltlvs

E
?

xe

0v0u stovsnv-d

-)

(3

!5

=

E

IB
E

zqI
I 'atr
x.=E!t

E

==

ts

39

i.

.h rI#F. u

lYl___l

i
dl

>t

rl
=ldit

F
t{

z
o
F
z
e
i,1
o

I

C)

EEI:

)

i _ --__- -_

r 1---j i

r ,li i'

t-



Start Time

Sam Schwartz Engineering D.P.c.

Sam Schwartz Engineering (lL)

1000 W. lrving Park Rd., Suite 130
Itasca, lL, lllinois, United States 60143

630.21 3. 1 000 pwojtkiewicz@samschwarE. com
lngenuity . Accessibility . lntegrity

Turning M Data
lL 83

Southbound

nisht 
RlsJt 

rhru Lefr ,Y; iSti

91 st St.

Westbound

nisnt 
Rlslt 

rhru Lefr ,Y; f|,h

tL 83

Northbound

nisht 
Rlslt 

rhru Left ,Y; f3,3i

Count Name: lL 83 @ 91st St.
Site Code.
Start Date: 0710812015
Page No: 'l

91 st St.

Eastbound

nisnt 
RlsJt 

rhru Left ,U; f3,o;
lnt.

Total

6:00 AM

6:15 AM

6:30 AM 509

457

1977

532

617

570

659

2514

13408

1247 4

93.0

934

7.0

Total

7100 AM

7:15 AM

7:30 AM

7:45 AM

8:00 AM

8:15 AM

8:30 Ai,

3:00 PM

3:15 PM

3:30 PM

3:45 PM

Total

9i00 A[,1

." BRilK -
Total 0

4:00 PM

4:15 PM

4:30 Pi,

Total

5:00 Pl,
5:'15 PM

5:30 PM

5:45 PM

Grand Total

Tolal o/o

vo

Other

533

524

581

623

600

0

% Other
Vehicles

3 6 5 10 0 24 15 2 251 5 02 4 117 11 0 '134 33413023
6711891141 a21010030 16622910252 221416034
43141141163 7369025 23 I 250 2 't 285 331020036
6 4 10 2 157 63810027 '14530060325 2 18 23 0 4A

18 18 511 44 4 595 24 14 29 39 0 106 68 22 1030 ',t4 1 1135 13 10 46 72 0 141

3 1 6 0 '146 '11 4 7 14 0 36 26 3 244 6 0 3'19 1',l 3 17 33 0 64

2 A 120 22 0 '152 12098029 17 7 272 1t 0 307 741419044
7 7 158 0 181 4 6 14 0 30 17 7 270 I I 303 7 I 10 26 0 51

4 7 '149 23 't 1U 8317't0038 26929150331 1241929064
16 563 60 I 663 35 s 0 '111786 26 30 1 1260 37 19 60 107 0

81159162186 a21514039 23525490291 931824054
0 144 11 0 160 't76l014047 25524570282 6 3 8 18 0 35

5 5 't39 14 't 1U 831515041 12924961277 291920050
6 0 16 0 161 8 14 11 0 49 6 208 I 0 244 152 7 18 0 42

24 6 581 57 3 671 41 25 51 59 0 176 82 25 956 30 1 1094 19 22 60 80 0 181

0 0 0 0 0 0000000 000000 000000

000000 000000 000000 000000
59205190238 98'182606'l 12 6 162 11 1 192 17I 1 '10 0

69200 10022.s 851326052 17418/100215 9 1 20 1't 0 41

a 7 219 16 ',l 249 1'152422066 20417080202 11 5 2A 18 0

74194132220 1t 9 24 24 0 68 20 7 144 10 0 181 1402912055
24 29 818 58 3 932 39 27 83 98 0 247 69 21 660 39 1 790 437510195
8 't 232 14 0 255 682730071 13 7 151 11 0 182 943822073
19 6 216 11 0 252 731835063 '13 5 154 16 0 188 15 2 32 0 a2

11 2 199 11 ',t 224 952834076 14 I 150 11 0 183 1414615076
22 4 22',\ 14 0 261 11 0 31 u 0 76 21 13 166 7 0 207 1114423079
60 13 868 50 I N2 33 16 104 t33 0 286 01 33 621 45 0 760 49 8 161 92 0 310

12 2 216 19 2 251 10322.32067 22 7 147 13 0 189 1514532093
14 9 238 14 0 275 742626063 19 8 192 12 1 232 11 I 29 0 81

13321581240 1003424068 33 11 200 10 0 2U 1234537097
12 6 '194 16 1 229 1152824068 21 8 '174 13 0 216 10 1 54 30 0 95

51 20 863 57 4 995 38 12 110 106 0 266 95 34 71s 4A 1 891 8 13 177 124 0 366

0 0 0 0 0 0 000000 0 0 0 0 0 0 000000
193 109 42U 326 16 4A4A 210 ',to7 4't6 81 0 1214 461 '16't 5097 206 s s930 209 79 598 530 0 1416

6.74.0 2.2 86.7 0.3 17.3 8.8 34.3 39.6 0.0 7.4 2.7 86.0 3.5 0.1 14.8 5.6 42.2 37.4 0.0

1.4 0.8 3',t.4 2.4 0.1 fi.2 't.6 0.8 3.1 3.6 0.0 9.1 1.53.4 1.2 38.0 0.0 44.2 1.6 0.6 4.5 4.0 0.0 10.6

183 106 3893 31't 15 4508 203 102 403 433 0 ',t141 434 154 4668 198 5 5459 200 n 575 514 0 1366

.8 97.2 92.6 95.4 93.8 93.0 96.7 95.3 96.9 90.0 94..0 94.1 95.7 91.6 96.1 100.0 92.1 96.595.7 97.5 96.2 97.0

10 s 311 15 1 340 751344073 27742980471 922316050

5.2 2.4 7.4 4.6 6.3 7.0 6.03.3 4.7 3.1 10.0 5.9 4.3 8.4 3.9 0.0 7.9 4.3 2.5 3.8 3.0



Sam Schwartz Engineering D.P.c.

Sam Schwartz Engineering (lL)

1000 W. lrving Park Rd., Suite 130
Itasca, lL, lllinois, United States 60143

630.21 3. 1 000 pwojtkiewicz@samschwarU. com
lngenuity . Accessibility . lntegrity

Turning Movement Data Plot

Count Name: lL 83 @ 91st St.
Site Code:
Start Date: 07lOBl2O15
Page No: 2

oo l

o
F

@

N
N d o

J

@
@ o

N N F

a

o
o

N

F
F
N

E

ln

4508

458 340

5960 4A4A 10808

289 3893 311 '15

311 15 1

302 4204 326 16

R T L U

07/082015 6:00 AM
Ending At
07/08120'15 6:'15 PM

Lights
Other Vehicles

a { N o
{
N !

oc

I
a

E

i o
N ! j

-
N{
o

No :
s2.

C o o

U L T R

5 198 4668 588

0 8 429 34

5 206 5097 622

4608 5459 1 0067

370 471 841

4978 5930 10908

Out ln Total

tL 83

1

d t bLr

i.

c
5
I



Sam Schwartz rngineering o.r.c.

Sam Schwartz Engineering (lL)

1000 W. lrving Park Rd., Suite 130
Itasca, lL, lllinois, United States 60143

630.2 1 3. 1 000 pwojtkiewicz@samschwarz.com
lngenuity . Accessibility . lntegrity

Count Name: lL 83 @ 91st St.
Site Code:
Start Date: 0710812015
Page No: 3

tL 83

Southbound

ing Movement Hour Data (7:15 AM)
91st St.

Westbound

tL 83

Northbound

u- App.
Tum Total

Right
Right on Thru *o ,Y, f8,o; Right

Right
on Thtu Lefr u- App.

Tum Total

9'lst St.

Eastbound

nisr,t 
RleJt 

rhru Left ,Y; f3&
lnt.

Total

Start Time Right
Right on Thru Leff

7:15 AM

7:30 AM

7:45 AM

Total o/o

Other
Vehicles

0.925

906

215

9.4

28120220152 12098029 't7 7 272 lt 0 307 7 4 14 19 0 44

7 7 154 o 181 46614030 17727081303 7A1026051
4 7 149 23 '.t 1A4 831710038 269291 50331 12 4 '19 29 0 64

8 1 159 16 2 ',t86 421514039 23525490291 931824054
21 23 586 70 3 703 32 1'l 47 & 0 138 83 28 1087 33 1 1232 '19 61 98 0 213

3.0 33 834 100 04 235 8'1 346 334 00 6.7 2.3 88.2 2.7 0.'l 16.4 8.9 28.6 46.0 0.0

0.9 1.0 25.7 3.1 0.1 30.8 14 05 21 20 00 60 3.6 1.2 47.6 1.4 0.0 53.9 1.5 0.8 2.7 4.3 0.0 9.3

0.656 0.7'19 0.921 0.761 0.375 0.945 0.667 0.458 0.691 0.821 0000 0872 o79A O77A 0S34 0750 0250 0931 0.729 0.594 0.803 0.845 0.000 0.832

18 21 524 66 3 636 29942420122 75 27 97'1 31 1 1105 35 19 59 93 0 206

91 3 90.185.7 943 100 0 905 89.790.6 81.8 89.4 91.3 90.4 96.4 89.3 93.9 100.0 89.7 96.7100.0 100.0 96.7 94.9

32584067 3254014 811'1620127 002507

14.3 A.7 9.9 5.7 0.0 9.5 9.4 18.2 10.6 8.7 9.6 3.6 10.7 6.1 0.0 10.3 0.0 0.0 3.3 5.1



Sam Schwartz Engineering D.P.c.

Sam Schwartz Engineering (lL)

1000 W lrving Park Rd., Suite 130
Itasca, lL, lllinois, United States 60143

630.2 1 3. 1 000 pwojtkiewicz@samschwar2.mm
lngenuity . Accessibility . lntegrity

Turning Movement Peak Hour Data Plot (7:15 AM)

Count Name. lL 83 @ 91 st St.
Site Code:
Start Date: 0710812015
Page No: 4

o
U

a

o

6
oF

@ N

o o o l

oo

s @o N

N ts

)o
N N

o E

tL 83

Out ln Total

1105 636 1741

39 528 66 3

5 58 4 0

44 586 70 3

R T L U

07loal201:
Ending At
07lo8Do1

5 7:15 AM

5 8:15 AM

Liohts
oiher Vehicl€s

U L T R

1 31 971 102

0 2 116 I
1 33 1087 111

625 1'105 1730

62 127 189

687 1232 't919

Out ln Total

tL 83

a @

N

N

N
N{ oc

@

@

5E

i { N

N
N f

r

{ N
Io
9t-

C o

Peak Hour Data

5l tr t r)

d + $Lr

i.

e

5
I

j
-f
+

1



IL 83

Southbound

91st St.

Westbound

Right
Right on Thru Left u- App.

Tum Total nrsnt 
RoisJt 

rhru Lefr ,Y; f3&

Sam Schwartz Engineering D.P.c.

Sam Schwartz Engineering (lL)

1000 W. lrving Park Rd., Suite 130
Itasca, lL, lllinois, United States 60143

630.2'l 3. 1 000 pwojtkiewicz@samschwartz.com
lngenuity . Accessibility . lntegrity

ng Movement Peak Hour Data (a:a5 PM)
tL 83

Northbound

Right rhru Len ,Y; ffti Right

Count Name: lL 83 @ 91st St.
Site Code:
Start Date: 0710812015
Page No: 5

9'1st St.

Eastbound

Start Time Right
Thru *o ,Y. f8tl

I nt.
Total

4:45 PM

5:00 PM

5:15 Pi,

623

651

2423

110

4.3

Total %

Other
Vehicles

% Oher
Vehicles

22 4 221 14 0 26'l 110313'4076 21 13 166 7 0 207 't114423079
12 2 216 19 2 251 1032232067 2. 7 147 13 0 189 15'l 4532093
14 9 238 14 0 275 742626063 19 8 '192 12 't 232 1183329081
1332't58I240 1003424068 33 ',t1 200 '10 0 254 '1234537097
61 18 890 55 3 1027 38 7 113 116 0 274 95 39 705 42 1 aa2 49 13 167 121 0 350

1.8 867 54 03 13.9 2.6 41.2 42.3 0.0 10.8 4.4 79.9 4.8 0.1 14.O 3.7 47.7 U.6 0.0

2.4 07 35.1 2.2 0.1 40.5 1.5 0.3 4.5 4.6 0.0 10.8 3.8 1.5 27.8 1.7 0.0 ua 1.9 0.5 6.6 4.A 0.0 13.8

0.693 0.500 0.935 0.724 0.375 0.934 0.84t 0.438 0.831 0.853 0.000 0.901 0.720 0.750 0.881 0.808 0.250 0.868 0.817 0.406 0.928 0.818 0.000 0.902

61 18 835 s5 3 972 37 7 113 103 0 260 94 39 673 42 1 849 $ 12 163 't21 0 y2
100.0 100.0 93.8 100.0 100.0 94.6 94.997.4 100.0 100.0 88.8 98.9 100.0 95.5 100.0 100.0 96.3 97.793.9 92.3 97.6 100.0

00550055 't0013014 10320033 314008

0.0 0.0 6.2 0.0 0.0 5.4 5.'l2.6 0.0 0.0 11.2 1.1 0.0 4.5 0.0 0.0 3.7 6.1 7.7 2.4 0.0



Sam Schwartz Engineering D.P.c.

Sam Schwartz Engineering (lL)

1000 W. lrving Park Rd., Suite 130
Itasca, lL, lllinois, United States 60143

630. 2 1 3. 1 000 pwojtkiewicz@samschwartz.com
lngenuity . Accessibility . lntegrity

Turning Movement Peak Hour Data Plot ( :aS PM)

Count Name: lL 83 @ 91st St.
Site Code:
Start Date: 0710812015
Page No: 6

o o l
o
o
F

@
N

N o N )
E o

@
N F

a

)o o
N

N E

rL 83

ln

972

1027 1901

835 55 3

0 0 0

79 890 55 3

R T L U

17lOBr2US 4:45 PM
Ending At
07/0812015 5:45 PM

Liohts
oiher Vehicles

a
oc

@

I
a

E

I o
N{ Noo a

r o

@
o Io

!L
C o o

L T RU

673 IJJ1

0 10

42 705 1341

997

72

882

ln

IL

j
_t

Peak Hour Data

fl r)

d + bLr

i_

(-

5
I



Sam Schwartz Engineering, D.P.C.
Gas Station Access @ 91st St

File Name
Site Code
Start Date
Page No

GASSTATTON@91ST
00000000
7t7t2015
1

GAS STATION ACCESS
From North

9,IST ST.
From East

GAS STATION ACCESS
From South

91ST ST.
From West

Start Time Riqht Thru Left Peds ADo. Total Riqht Thru Left Peds Rioht Thru Left Peds App. Total Riqht Thru Lefi Peds App. Tolal lnt. Total

5
3
7
5

0
0
0
0

1

4
1

3

0
0
0
0

6
7
8
8

t)
8
4
6

1

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

7
B

4
6

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
1

2

0
0
0
0

o
17
13
'15

8
17
14
17

06:00 AM
06:15 AM
06:30 AM

AM
Total

2',1

32
26
31

2009029 2410025 00000 0353056
07:00 AM
07:1 5 AM
07:30 AM

Total

4
10

3

4
11

7

3
b
3

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

3
6
3

0
0
0

0
1

4

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

16
18
14

0
0
0

16
,18

14

1',tl

23
35
24

2307030 'r900019 0 0 63063 112

29
27
30

17
14
13

0

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
U

0

1

0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0 105

42
23
34

00

16
14
13
I

0
0
0

6
b
I

0
0
0

0
0
0

,|

0
0

5
6
I

6
7
o

0
0
0

3
2
3

0
0
0

J
E

5

08:00 AM
08:15 AM
08:30 AM
08 AM

Total

*. BREAK *-
51 52017011028 2410025

03:00 PM
03:15 PM
03:30 PM

Total

0
0
0
0

2
0
0
0
2

0
0
0
0

7
5

13
5

19
3

11

16

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

2
I
2

0
0
0

0
0
0

17
2
I

I
E

'13

5

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
U

0

14
't5

10

'14

15
10

4108049 30 520s2 '133

11

9
30
39
JO

47

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0

22

32

5
16
4

20

11

I
22

0
0
0

14
14
12

0

0
0
0
U

0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

10
11

5

5
16
4

0
0
n

4
3
b

0
0
1

04:00 PM
04:15 PM
04:30 PM

Total
U

520040 1'16057 154

46
26
30

tl
10
10

n

0
0
0

52

16
10
10
12
48

1

0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
0
U

45

1',!

I
7

0

0
0
0

45

1'l
I
7

0
0
0

5
1

4
2

0
0
0
0

35

181

35120

0

0
0
0

0

18
7

13

'13

6
I
5

05:00 PM
05:15 PM
05:30 PM
05:45 PM

129

743

49

324

n45Total 33

174
73.',|

23.4

1

0.4
0.1

63
26.5

8.5

238 177
97.8

5
1.5
0.7

319
98.5

0

0
0
U

0

4
2.2

0

0
0
0

0

0

0

0
0

0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

Grand Total
Apprch %

o/o

CARS

TRUCKS
% TRUCKS

42.

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1

0.6
0
0

1

0.6
0
0

00
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
n

742

0.1

0
0

238
100

174
100

bJ
100

1

100
0
0

0
0

176
99.4

180
99.4

4
100

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

319
100

324
100

05
0 100

0
0
0

0
0
0

1



Sam Schwartz Engineering, D.P.C.
Gas Station Access @ 91st St.

File Name
Site Code
Start Date
Page No

GASSTATTON@91ST
00000000
7t7t201s
1

GAS STATION ACCESS
From North

91ST ST.
From East

GAS STATION ACCESS
From South

91ST ST.
From West

Start Time Rioht Thru Leff Peds Rioht Thru Left Peds Rioht Thru Left Peds Riqht Thru Left Peds lnt. Total

5
3
7
5

0
0
0
0

1

4
1

3

0
0
0
0

6
7
8
8

6
8
4
6

1

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

7
8
4
6

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
U

0

0
0
0
0

0
0
1

2

0
0
0
0

8
17
14
17

o
17
'13

15

06:00 AM
06:'15 AM
06:30 AM

Tolal 2009029 2410025 0000

2',!

32
26

53056
07:00 AM
07:15 AM
07:30 AM

Total

4
10

J

4
11

7

2307030

3
6
3
7

1900019 00000

0
1

4

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

3
6
3

0
0
0

3

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

16
18
14

110

23
35
24

'16

18
14

0 63063 112

29
27
30
19

0
0
0
0

0
U

0

0
0
0

0

,|

0
0
0
1

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

105

42
23
33

051011

16
14
'13

8

't7
14
13
8

0
0
0

o
6
9

0
0
0

0
0

5
6
I
4

6
7
8
7

I
0
0

0
0
0
0

3
5
5
4

3
2
3
3

0
n

0
0
0

08:00 AM
08:15 AM
0B:30 AM
08:45 AM

Total 52U10025 00000

14
15
10

14
15
10

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

I
5
2

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

2
0
0
0

0
0

0

0

24

7
5

12
5

28

19
3

11

16

2
1

2
3

0
0
0
0
0

17

't7
2
I

13

03:00 PM
03:'15 PM
03:30 PM
03:45 PM

Total o520520041 132

30
39
38

11
o

0
0
0

11

I
22

0
0
0

0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

2

0
0
0
0

31

5
16
4

20

29

5
16
4

20

49

14
14
12
17

0
0
0
0

I

4
3
6
3

0
0
1

10
1',!

5

04:00 PM
04:'15 PM
04:30 PM

Total

22

15440116057

05:00 PM
05:15 PM
05:30 PM

Total

Grand Total
Apprch %

Total %

0
0
0

5
1

4

45

11

I
7

18
7

13

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

035

76 4
2.2
0.5

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

n

0
0

45

11
o

7

1

0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

52

17
10
10
12

52

16
10
10
12
48

0

0
0
0
0
U

0
0
0

46
26
30
27

330120 45

238

32.1

0

0
0
0

35

180

24.3

5
1.5
0.7

319
98.5

43

49

324

43.7

129

742174
73.1
23.5

163
0.4 26.5
0.1 8.5

0
n

U

0
97
23

B

7 0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

13
6
I



Sam Schwartz Engineering, D.P.G.
Gas Station Access @ 91st St.

File Name
Site Code
Start Date
Page No

: GASSTATION@91ST
: 00000000
:71712015
,1

GAS STATION ACCESS
From North

91ST ST.
From East

GAS STATION ACCESS
From South

91ST ST.
From Wesl

Start Time Rioht Thru Left Peds Rioht Thru Left Peds Riqht Thru Left Peds App. Total Riqht Thru Left Peds App. Total lnt. Total*- BREAK "*

03:30 PM I o o o o ol 1 o o o 1l o o o o ol o o o o ol 1

Total

Grand Total
Apprch %

Total %

00000 10001 00000 00000

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

0

1

00
00 100

0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

0



Sam Schwartz Engineeritrg, D.P.C.
O'neil Dr. @ 91st St.

File Name
Site Code
Start Date
Page No

: ONEIL@91ST
: 00000000
:71712015
:1

O'NEIL DR.
From North

91ST ST.
From East

O'NEIL DR.
From South

91ST ST.
From West

Start Time Riqht Thru Left Peds Rioht Thru Left Peds App. Total Riqht Thru Left Peds App. Total Riqht Thru Left Peds ADo. Tolal lnt. Total*- BREAK *-
06:30 AM

Total

07:15 AM-* BREAK *-

0000 0 'I 0001

1000
00000 0

0
000

0
0

0
0

2
0

2
0

3
1

00101 0 420200 0

0

0

0

0

o o ol o o o o ol o o o o ol o o 3 o 31 3

07:45 AM
Total

08:OO AM I

0
0

0 1 2

3

4

2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

0 1000 0

0

tt0

0

0

000U0

0

ol

0

0

4

01l 2 ol

Total

*- BREAK *-

03:oo PM I o

03:30 PM | 2

U

00

0 000 20002 n

0000

0

000

0

ol

ol

0

0000

3000

00

0

020 2l o o o o ol

1l

ol

ol

2

3000 2l 00 0

Total 2020 0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

4

0
0
I

0

0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0 0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

000 5

1

1

2

o4:ooPMl o o
04:15PMl 0 o
04:30PIr/l 1 0

Totarl 1 o o o 1l o o o o oFo o o o

*- BREAK *-
2
3

0
I

0
0

0
1

1

0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0

0
0

1

0
2

0
0

0
0

0
n

1

2
1

0
0

0

0

1

2

4

I

n
tt

0

05:15 PM
05:30 PM
05:45 PM

o00104300Total 2

010
0 100

10 29

0

0
0

0

0
0

0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0

0
0

0

0
0

9103
30

7
70

24.1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

100
0
0

0
0

Grand Total
Apprch %

T
CARS

TRUCKS
% TRUCKS

29
100

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

10
100

7
100

3
100

0
0

U

0

U

0
I

001

I
100

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0 10
0 100

'10

100

1

1

1

1



Sam Schwartz Engineering, D.P.C.
O'neil Dr. @ 91st St.

File Name
Site Code
Start Date
Page No

oNErL@91ST
00000000
7t7t2015
1

O'NEIL DR.
From North

91ST ST.
From East

O'NEIL DR.
From South

91ST ST.
From West

Start Time Rioht Thru Left Peds Rioht Thru Left Peds Riqht Thru Left Peds App. Total Riqht Thru Lefl Peds App. Total lnt Total

2
0

1

0
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0

0
0

0
0

3
1

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

2
0

0
0

0
0?l ;l

0
0

06:30 AM
06:45 AMrm

-1 

o o o m
*- BREAK *-

o7:15AMl O O O 0 Ol O 0 O O*- BREAK *-
07:45AMl O O O 0 0l 1 o 0 o

0

0

0

0

0

0

ol 0 0

0

3 o 31 3

1 o 11 2__il el
Total I

O8:OO AM I

0000

1000
ol

1l

1 O 0 O 11 0 O o O 0

00000

o

o 3

0

0

4

0

0

0

il
ol2000 2l

Total

*- BREAK "*

03:00 PM I-* BREAK -T-

03:30 PM I

10001 2000 2

1l

00000 0

00000

0 0 0tt 3

0

2

o 2 o 2l o o o o ol o o o o ol 0000 2

30 0 000 2l 0 0 n 0

Total

04:00 PM
04:15 PM
04:30 PM

0

0
0
0

1

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

2

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

2

0
0
1

4l 0 0

0
0
0

1l

1

1

2

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

ol ms
o
o
1

0
0
0

o
o
0

0
0
0

1l
1l
1l

Total 0 0U tl000000 0 0 00303 4

-* BREAK *-
05:15 PM
05:30 PM

Total

Grand Total
Apprch %

Total %

1

0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

1

2
0
0

0
U

1

2
1

0
0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
0

0

0
0

0
0

0
0
0

0
n

0
0
0

0
1

2
3

7
70

24.1

3

10

34.5

q

100
31

4

o

31

3000 4000 00000 00'r0
010
0 100
0 34.5

1

10

34.5

o

2903
030
0 10.3

0

0

ol 0

0

1

1

1

0



Sam Schwartz Engineering, D.P.C.
O'neil Dr. @ 91st St.

File Name
Site Code
Start Date
Page No

: ONEIL@91ST
: 00000000
:71712015
:1

O'NEIL DR.
From North

9,,IST ST.
From East

O'NEIL DR.
From South

91ST ST.
From West

Start Time Riqht Thru Left Peds Rioht Thru Leff Peds Rioht Thru Left Peds Rioht Thru Left Peds lnt. Total

Grand Total
Apprch %

Total %

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

0

0 0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

U 0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0 0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0 U



Sam Schwartz Engineering, D.P.C.
Palisades Rd.@ 91st St.

File Name
Site Code
Start Date
Page No

PALTSADES@g1ST
00000000
7t8t2015
1

PALISADES RD.
From North

9,1ST ST.
From East

PALISADES RD.
From South

91ST ST.
From West

Start Time Riqht Thru Left Peds ADo. Total Rioht Thru Lefl Peds ADD. Total Rioht Thru Left Peds Rioht Thru Leff Peds lnt Total

2
1

1

0

0
0
0
0

0
0
,|

1

0
0
0
0

2
1

2
1

0
0
0
I

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
1

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0

0

0

0

0
0
0
0

0
0
1
,|

0
0
0
0

0
0
1

1

06:00 AM
06:15 AM
06:30 AM

Total 0 tt 10001 0000

2
1

3

I

2
2
1

2

0
0
0

0
0
0

2

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

1

0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

1

0
0

6

1

2
I

0
0
0

2

0
2
1

0
0
0

4

,|

0
0

07:00 AM
07:'15 AM
07:30 AM

Total 1000 6

2
5
4

0

0
0
0

0

0
1

1

0

0
0
0

1

0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

1

1

1

4

0
3
2

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

3

0
2
0

2

0

0
0
0

1

0
1

2

08:00 AM
0B:15 AM
08:30 AM

Total

*- BREAK -*
130J000000o00 4J30004

03:00 PM
03:15 PM
03:30 PM

Total

0
1

1

0
0
0

0
0
2

1

0
0

1

1

3

0
0
0

n

0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
1

0

0
1

0
0

0

0

0

0
0
n

0

0
0
0

0
2
0
0

0
0
2
1

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
1

I
3
5

0
0
2
2

20316 20002 10102 14

3
3
7

4

1

0
2

3

1

0
2
1

0

0
0
0

0

1

0
0
0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
1

0
0

0

0

0

0
0
0

1

0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

1

0
0

,|

2
5

0
0
0

1
,|

2

0
0
0

0
1

3

04:00 PM
04:'15 PM
04:30 PM

Total 17r) 10001 00101
7
3
5
8

0
0
0

0

0

0

0

4

2
1

3

B

0

0
0
0

4

2
1

3

0
1

0

2

5

0
0
0

0
U

0

2
1

1

0
n

0

0
1

0

2

0
0
0

1

0
0

,|

0
0

0
1

1

1

0
0
1

11

3
0
1

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

5

2
0
1

bTotal

05:00 PM
05:15 PM
05:30 PM

PM
23

82

80A2210o02

22
53.7
26.8

0

0
0
0

1

2.4
't.2

1

7.7
1.2

0

0
n

0
0

0

2
40

41 3
60

0
0

102
76.9 15.4
12.2 2.4

0

0
0

U

0
0

J
'13

U

0
0

Grand Total
Apprch %

Total o/o

CARS

TRUCKS
% TRUCKS

0
0 E

0
n

0
0

0
0

2
20

1

2.4
0
0

1

.6

,,18

43.9
22

0
0

20
0

13

15.4
0
0

0
0

0
0

20
87

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

79

23

28

0
0

2

3.7

0
0

17 ,|

94.4 100
22

100
40

97.6
o

BO

0
0

11

84.6
2

100
I

100
0
0

0
0

5
00

2
100 1

3
100

0
0

0
0

20
100

23
100

3
100

1

1

1



Sam Schwartz Engineering, D.P.C.
Palisades Rd. @ 91st St.

File Name
Site Code
Start Date
Page No

: PALISADES@91ST
:00000000
:71812015
:1

PALISADES RD.
From North

91ST ST.
From East

PALISADES RD.
From South

91ST ST.
From West

Start Time Riqht Thru Left Peds Riqht Thru Left Peds App. Tobl Rioht Thru Left Peds Riqht Thru Left Peds ADD. Tobl lnt. Total

2
1

2
1

2
1

1

0

0
0
0
0

0
0
I
1

0
0

0

U

0
0
0
1

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
,|

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
1

1

0
0
0
0

0
0
1
,|

06:00 AM
06:15 AM
06:30 AM

Total 2

2
1

3

10001 00000 00202 9

2
1

1
,|

0
0
0
1

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
1

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

1

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0

1

0
0

6

1

1

1

0

0

0
n

0
1

1

0

0
0
0

4

1

0
0

07:00 AM
07:15 AM
07:30 AM
07:45

Total 0 5

2
5
4

0

0
1

1

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

3

0
J

2

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

1

0
1

2

0

2

0
2
0

2

08:00 AM
0B:'15 AM
08:30 AM

1330n0n000060 433Total 4

*- BREAK *-

I
3
5
4

0
0
2
2

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
2
1

0
0
0
1

0
2
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0
0
0

0
,|

0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
1

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0
1

1

1

3
,|

I
0
0
0

0
1

1

1

0
U

0
0

0
0
2
0

03:00 PM
03:15 PM
03:30 PM

PM
Total 13

3
3
7
4

4

1

0
2
1

0

0
0
0
0

3

1

0
2
1

0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

2

0
1

0
0

0

0
0
0
0

1

0
1

0
0

0

0
0
0
0

1

0
0
0
0

1

1

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0

I
0
0

0

6

1

2
5
3

1

0
0
0
0

3

1
,|

2
2

0

0
0
0

2

0
1

3
1

04:00 PM
04:15 PM
04:30 PM

Total 170

7
2
5

0

0
0
0

1

0
1

0

0

0
0
0

1

0
0
0

1

2
0
1

0
0
0

0

1

0
0

0

1

0
0

U

0
1

11

3
0
1

0

0
0
0

22

7920
87

25.3

0

2
40
2.5

0

0
0
0

4

2
1

3

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

4

2
,|

3

3
13

3.8

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
1

0

2

6

1

0
0

2

0

0
0
0

0

5

2
0
1

05:00 PM
05:15 PM
05:30 PM
05:45 PM

Grand Total
Apprch %

Total o/o

Total b

1

2.5
'1.3

o

40

50.6

4

't1

13.9

2

5

6.3

B

23

29.1

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

1

B

7
1

3
60
3.8

72.
10.

2100

017
0 42.5
0 21.5

2
18.2
2.5

1

9.1
1.3

22
55

27.8

1

1

1

1

0
0

0
0
0



Sam Schwartz Engineering, D.P.C.
Palisades Rd. @ 91st St.

File Name
Site Code
Start Date
Page No

: PALISADES@91ST
: 00000000
:71812015
.1

PALISADES RD.
From North

9,IST ST.
From East

PALISADES RD.
From South

91ST ST.
From West

Start Time Riqht Thru Left Peds Riqht Thru Left Peds App. Total Riqht Thru Left Peds App. Total Riqht Thru Lefi Peds App. Total lnt. Total*- BREAK *-

07:15 AM ]*- BREAK -*
0 0 10 1l o 0 0 0 ol o o o o ol o o o o ol

rotarl o o 1 o 1J o o o o ol o o o o

*- BREAK -*

o3:45PMl o O O O Ol 1 o 0 o 1l O 0 o O

of

ol o o o o ol 1

Totarl o o o o 0l 1 o o o 1l o o o o 0l o o o 0 oT 1

*- BREAK *-

os:1spMl 0 0 0 0 0l 1 o 0 o 1l o 0 o o ol o o o o ol r

Grand Total
Apprch %

Total oh

0
0
0

0
0
0

1

100
33.3

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0 33.3

2
100

66.7

,| 2

66.7

0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0 3

0



Sam Schwartz Engineering, D.P.C.
Skyline Dr. @ 91st St.

File Name
Site Code
Start Date
Page No

SKYLtNE@91ST
00000000
71912015
I

SKYLINE DR.
From North

91ST ST.
From East

SKYLINE DR.
From South

91ST ST.
From West

Start Time Rioht Thru Leff Peds Rioht Thru Left Peds Rioht Thru Left Peds Rioht Thru Lefi Peds App. Total lnt. Total

3
2
0

0
0
0
0

1

2
0
,|

0
0
0
0

4
4
U

I

0
1

0
0

0
0
0
U

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

I
0
1

2

0
0
0
0

I
0
1

2

06:00 AM
06:15 AM
06:30 AM

Total 0

5
5
1

10001 00000 0040 14

a

U

0
2

B

1

5
2

2
0
1

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
U

0
0

0
0
0

4

3
0
0
2

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
n

0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0

2
0
1

I
3
1

4

0

0
0
0

4

3
1

2

0
0
0

0
0
0

5

0
0
2

07:00 AM
07:15 AM
07:30 AM

Total 160

2
5
4

5

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

3

0
1

1

2

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

3

0
1

I

8

2
4
3

I

0

0
0
0

6

1

1

3

5

0

0
0
0

2

1

3
0

4

0B:00 AM
08:15 AM
08:30 AM

AM
Total 1000000020 0 12

11

6
6
7

3
2
2
2

0
0
0

3
2
2
2

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

1

1

0
1

0
0
0

5
0
3

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

,|

1

0

7
3
4

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

2
3
1

03:00 PM
03:15 PM
03:30 PM

Total 0006012018 30003 I
0
0
3
4

0

0
0
0

30

5
6

13

I
0
0
3
4

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

1

2
3
2

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

1

2
3
2

4
4
7

0
0
0

2
1

6

0
0
0

2
3
I

04:00 PM
04:15 PM
04:30 PM
04:45 PM

Total 07011018 33

't0

4
I

29

7

2
0
4

6

0

n

U

0

7

2
0
4

b

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

8

1

3
2

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

8

1

3

2

I

7
1

3

0
0
0

4
,|

0

0
0
0

3
0
3

05:00 PM
05:15 PM
05:30 PM

Total 0

0

I707014 0

0
0

0

0
0

0

0
0

0

0
0

0
U

0

0
0

0

0
0

0

0
0

26
100

260
059.2

0
0

32 134

132

3.1
2
q

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

o32
0 100

3.1
0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1

.3

764531

40.8

0
0

1

2.2
0
0

0
0

Grand Total
Apprch %

CARS

TRUCKS
% TRUCKS

0
n

3'r
't00

044
0 97.8

75
98.7

0
n

0
0

0
0

zo
'100

26
100

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

3'l 31

96.996.9



Sam Schwartz Engineering, D.P.C.
Skyline Dr. @ 91st St.

File Name
Site Code
Start Date
Page No

SKYLTNE@91ST
00000000
71912015
1

SKYLINE DR.
From North

91ST ST.
From East

SKYLINE DR.
From South

91ST ST.
From Wesl

Start Time Rioht Thru Left Peds ADD. Total Riqht Thru Left Peds ADD. Total Riqht Thru Lefl Peds Rioht Thru Left Peds App. Total lnt. Total

3
2
0
0

0
0
0
0

1

2
0
1

0
0
0
0

4
4
0
1

0
1

0
0

0
n

0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
0
U

U

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

1

0
1

2

0
0
0
0

1

0
1

2

06:00 AM
06:15 AM
06:30 AM

AM
Total

5
5
1

50409 10001 00000 0040 14

o

1

5
2

4

3
0
0
2

0
U

0
0

3
0
0
2

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

U

0
0

0
0
0

2
0
I

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

2
0
1

3
1

4

0
0
0

3
1

2

0
0
0

0
0
2

07:00 AM
07:15 AM
07:30 AM

'16320608 3000Total

2
5
4
1

0
0
0

0
0
0
1

0

0
0
0

5

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
1

1

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

n

0
U

0
1

1

2
4
3

0
0
0

1

1

3

0
0
0

1

J

0

08:00 AM
08:15 AM
08:30 AM

Total

*- BREAK'*

12

11

6
6

00000040509 20002

3
2
2

0
0
0

3
2
2
1

0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

,|

1

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

1

1

0

7
3
4

0
0
0

5
0
3

0
0
0

2
3
1

03:00 PM
03:15 PM
03:30 PM

Total 29012018 30003
4
b

'13

B

0
0
3
4

0
0
0

8

0
0
3
4

0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

U

0

0
0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

1

2
3

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

1

2
3

3
4
7

0
0
0

1

1

6

0

0
0
0

b

2
3
1

04:00 PM
04:15 PM
04:30 PM

Total '10 0 17 8000 32

10
4
I
6

29

7

2
0
4
0
6

0

0
0
0

7

2
0
4

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

3'1

100
23.5

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

U

0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

o

1

3
2

0

0
0
0

0
0
0

1

3
2
3

0

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0

7
1

3
3

0
0
0
0
0

0
n

0

4
1

0
2

05:00 PM
05:15 PM
05:30 PM

PM
Total

Grand Total
Apprch %

Total o/o

044
0 58.7
0 33.3

0

n

U

0
0

7

3
0
3
,|

7

75

56.8

26
100
19.7

I
26

19.7

31

23.5

132

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

0

0

0

0

0
0
0

0

0
0
0

91470

3'r

41.3
23.5

o



Sam Schwartz Engineering, D.P.C.
Skyline Dr.@ 91st St.

File Name
Site Code
Start Date
Page No

: SKYLINE@91ST
:00000000
:71912015
:1

SKYLINE DR,
From North

91ST ST.
From East

SKYLINE DR.
From South

91ST ST.
From West

Start Time Rioht Thru Left Peds Rioht Thru Left Peds Rioht Thru Left Peds Rioht Thru Leff Peds lni Total

o3:45pMl 0 0 o o ol 0 o o 0 0l o o o o ol 0 o 'r o 1l t
Total | 0

04:00 PM | 0

0

0

o o o 0 o o o ol o o 0 o 0l o o 1 o 1 1

1 o 1l o o o o ol o o o o ol o o o o ol 1

ffio 1

Grand Total
Apprch %

Total %

0
0
0

0
0
0

1

100
50

0
0
0

0
0
0

1

50

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0
0
0

0

0

0

0

01
0 100
050

2

50



Chicago Metropolitan
Agency for Planning

233 South w ker Oriv€
Suite 8OO

Chicago,lllinds 60506

312 454 0400
www cmap.illinois 90v

Irly 27,2015

Kelly Connolly, P.E.
Project Manager
Sam Schwartz Engineering
505 North LaSalle Street
Suite 300
Chicago, IL 60654

Suhject: IL 83 @ 91st Street
IDOT

Dear Ms. Connolly:

In response to a request made on your behalf and dared July 27, 2015, we have developed
year 2040 average daily traffic (ADT) projections for the subject location.

Traffic projections are developed using existing ADT data provided in the request letter
and the results from the March 2015 CMAP Travel Demand Analysis. The regional travel
model uses CMAP 2M0 socioeconomic projections and assumes the implementation of
the GO TO 2040 Comprehensive Regional Plan for the Northeastem Illinois area.

Sincerely,

0-'Aaz
Jose Rodriguez, PTP, AICP
Senior Planner, Research & Analysis

cc Sfir (S.m S(htrfiz FJryin !ril!i], Munor Albo (IDOT)
S \Admiicroops\Rclc{rhturlyliC.Lrfs}rlc\SadlAElTr.rfi.Fo.cails\CY t 5\Alr.IRidgttlu.23. I stdu.23 - l5 docx

INTERSECTION West I-eg North Leg East Leg South Leg
IL 83 @ 91" Street 8,000 35,000 6,000 28,000

If you have any questions, please call me at (312) 386-8806.



HCS 2010 Signalized lntersection Results Summary

General lnformation

15

183 15

EB NBWB SB

Period 1> 7:OO

Demand lnformation

Peak Hour -

lntersection lnformation
Duration, h

Area

PHF 95

Date

Time Period

Year

Jurisdiction

lntersection

File Name

Description

91ST

- lL 83.xus

Approach Movement L T R L T R L T R L T R

60 563 39Demand veh/h

lnformation
Cycle, s '130.0 Reference Phase 2

w EO m m 39 ffi m48 m

..?

Offset, s 0 Reference Point End
Green )

Uncoordinated No Simult. Gap EAN On Yellow 3.5 0.0 4.5 3.0 3.0 4.5

NEtr

Force Mode Simult.

Timer Results

E#.?tl N/S On

EBL NEIIEIEII TVilETT IrIrEIl SBL SBT

Assigned Phase 7 4 3 I 5 2 1 o

Case Number 1.1 4.0 1.1 4.O 2.0 3.0 2.0 3.0

Phase Duration, s '13.0 22.3 7.4 16.6 7.5 89.9 10.5 92.9
Change Period, (Y+Rc), s 3.0 6.5 3.0 6.5 4.5 6.5 4.5 6.5

Max Allow Headway (MAfl, s 4.1 o.z 4.1 o.2 4.1 0.0 4.1 0.0

Queue Clearance Time (gs), s 10.9 10.8 5.2 8.8 4.3 b.o

Green Extension Time (ge), s 0.0 1.4 0.0 1.3 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0

Phase Call Probability 0.99 1.00 0.83 1.00 0.68 0.90

ResultsMovement G

Max Out '1.00 0.01

EB

nz-H orE

WB NB

ordn 0rd.l

SB

Approach Movement L T R L T R L T R L T R

Assigned Movement 7 4 14 3 8 18 5 2 12 1 o 16

Adjusted Flow Rate (v), veh/h 135 122 48 92 32 1176 118 63 593 41

Adjusted Saturation Flow Rate (s), veh/h/ln 1774 17 14 1774 1694 1774 1 579 1774 1 867 1579

8.9Queue Service Time (gs), s 8.8 3.2 6.8 2.3 10.2 1.6 4.6 3.0 0.4

Cycle Queue Clearance Time (gc), s 8.9 8.8 3.2 6.8 2.3 10.2 1.6 4.6 3.0 0.4

Green Ratio (g/C) 0.17 0.12 0.11 0.08 o.02 0.64 0.64 0.05 0.66 0.66

Capacity (c), veh/h 225 208 164 40 2394 1012 82132 2481 1 049

Volume-to-Capacig Ratio (X) 0.599 0.587 0.296 0.693 0.782 0.491 0.116 0.770 0.239 0.039

Available Capacity (ca), veh/h 225 384 241 306 353 2394 1012 353 2481 1049

4.2Back of Queue (Q), veh/ln (50th percentile) 4.1 1.5 3.4 1.3 2.9 0.5 2.3 1.0 0.1

Queue Storage Ratio (RQ) (50th percentile) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Uniform Delay (dr), s/veh 48.8 54.0 52.9 58.4 62.7 4.1 3.5 60.3 2.52.7

lncremental Delay (dz), s/veh 4.4 5.5 1.0 13.0 27.0 0.7 0.2 14.O 0.2 0.1

lnitial Queue Delay (d:), s/veh 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Control Delay (@, s/veh 53.1 59.5 53.9 71.4 89.7 4.9 3.7 74.3 2.9 2.6

Level of Service (LOS) D E D E F A A E A A

56.2 EApproach Delay, s/veh / LOS 65.4 E 6.8 A 9.3 A

16.1

EB WB SB

B

NB

lntersection s/veh / LOS

Multimodal Results

Pedestrian LOS Score / LOS 3.0 C 3.0 C 2.2 B 2.2 B

Bicycle LOS Score / LOS 0.9 A 0.7 A 1.6 A 1.1 A

ITTTE EIIItrf,tr,

LTr#zr
I@

EI]E]ilNIrcI

@E@r@r

:IIIIf

1

8

Copyright O 2015 University of Florida, All Rights Reserved. HCS 2010iu Slreets Version 6.65 Generated: 812412015 2:42:53 Pitr

"I.

1 3

7

1 867

0.00



HCS 2010 Signalized lntersection Results Summary

General lnformation lntersection lnformation
Duration h

Analyst Analysis Date 8t3t2015 Area Type

Jurisdiction Tlme Period PHF 95

lntersection lL 83 @ 91Sr Analysis Year 2015 Analysis Period 1> 7:00

SB

File Name PM Existing - lL 83.xus

P Peak Hour -

Demand lnformation EB WB NB

Approach Movement L T R L T R L T R L T R

Demand veh/h

Ilnformation

107 177 61 106 110 50 48 713 129

a

57 863 71

Cycle, s 130.0 Reference Phase 2

Offset, s 0 Reference Point End

NBT

Uncoordinated No Simult. Gap EA/r/ On Yellow 3.5 0.0 4.5 ) I

Force Mode Fixed Simult. N/S On

Timer Results

Red 1.0 0.0 2.0

EBL EBT WBL

0.0

WBT NBL SBL SBT
Assigned Phase 7 4 J 8 5 2 I o

Case Number 1.1 4.O 1.1 4.0 2.0 3.0 2.0 3.0
Phase Duration, s 11.7 28.3 'l'1.6 28.2 9.3 80.0 10.2 80.8

S 3.0 6.5 3.0 6.5 4.5 6.5 4.5 6.5
Max Allow Headway (MAI), s 4.1 6.1 4.1 6.1 4.1 0.0 4.1 0.0

Queue Clearance Time (gs), s 8.8 19.7 8.7 13.4 5.7 o.J
Green Extension Time (ge), s 2.O 0.0 2.8 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.0

Phase Call Probability 0.98 1.00 0.98 1.00 0.84 0.89
tti'lax Out

Movement Results

1.00 0.56

EB

1.00 0.'t3

WB

0.00

NB

0.00

SB
Approach Movement L T R L T R L T R L T R

Assigned Movement 7 4 14 3 8 18 5 2 12 1 6 16

Adjusted Flow Rate (v), veh/h '113 251 112 168 5'l 751 136 60 908 75

Adjusted Saturation Flow Rate (s), veh/h/ln 1774 1781 1774 1764 1774 1867 1579 1774 1867 1579

Queue Service Time (gs), s 6.8 17.7 6.7 11.4 3.7 8.8 3.1 4.3 11.1 1.6

Cycle Queue Clearance Time (gc), s 6.8 17.7 o.t 11.4 3.7 8.8 3.1 4.3 11.1 1.6

Green Ratio (g/C) 0.23 o.17 0.23 o.17 0.04 0.57 0.57 0.04 0.57 0.57
Capacity (c), veh/h 269 298 190 294 oo 2109 892 78 2135 903
Volume{o-Capacity Ratio (X) 0.418 0.840 0.587 0.572 0.769 0.356 0.152 0.771 0.426 0.083
Available Capacity (ca), veh/h 294 389 216 385 275 2109 892 275 2135 903
Back of Queue (Q), veh/ln (50th percentile) 3.0 9.2 3.1 5.3 '1.9 3.2 1.1 2.2 3.8 0.6

Queue Storage Ratio (RQ) (50th percentile) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Uniform Delay (dr), s/veh 41.3 52.4 42.5 499 61.2 8.1 7.4 60.6 7.9 6.8

lncremental Delay (dz), s/veh 1.0 16.0 3.2 3.7 16.9 0.5 0.4 14.8 0.6 0.2
lnitial Queue Delay (do), s/veh 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Control Delay (d), s/veh 42.4 68.5 45.6 53.6 78.2 8.5 7.7 75.3 8.6 7.0

Level of Service (LOS) D E D D E A A E A A
Approach Delay, s/veh i LOS 60.4 E 50.4 D 12.2 B 12.3 B

lntersection s/veh / LOS

Multimodal Results

23.0

WBEB

C

SBNB

Pedestrian LOS Score / LOS 3.0 C 3.0 C 2.3 B 2.3 B

Bicycle LOS Score / LOS 1.1 A 0.9 A 1.3 A 1.3 A

7

Copyright O 2015 University of Florida, All Righls Reserved HCS 2010rM Streets Version 6.65 Generated: 812412015 2:47:26 PM

"{.

1 3 4

I

0.0



HCS 2010 Signalized lntersection lnput Data

General lnformation lntersection lnformation
h o.25

Analyst Analysis Date 8t3t2015 Area Type Other
Jurisdiction Time Period PHF 0.95
lntersection lL 83 @ 91ST Analysis Year 2015 Analysis Period '1 > 7:00
File Name AM 2026 Total - lL 83 xus

Peak Hour - 2026 Total

Demand lnformation EB NBWB SB

Approach Movement L T R L T R L T R L T R

Demand veh/h

Information
Cycle, s 130.0 Reference Phase 2

Offset, s 0 Reference Point End

Uncoordinated No Simult. Gap EAN On

135 100 125
'DZN

fitr m

NB

60 45 s m ffi @

1

A 0.0

6 7Red

EB WB SB

t

15.6

Force Mode Simult.

Traffic lnformation

Fixed NiS On

Approach Movement L T R L T R L T R L RT
Demand (v), veh/h 135 100 60 125 45 55 50 1240 115 150 585 40
lnitial Queue (Qo), veh/h U 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Base Saturation Flow Rate (so), veh/h 1900 1 900 1 900 1 900 1900 1 900 2000 1 900 1 900 19002000
Parking (Nm), man/h None None None None

Heavy Vehicles (Pnv), o/o 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Ped / Bike / RTOR, /h 0 0 0 0 00 0 0 0 0 0

Buses (No), buses/h 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

ArrivalType (AI) 3 3 e 3 43 4 4 4 4 4

Upstream Filtering (/) 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Lane Wdth (W), ft 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.012.0 12.0 12.O

Turn Bay Length, ft 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Grade (Pg), o/o 0 0 0 0

Phase lnformation

mi/h 35E E
Eh-TI EEII

3535 35

WBL WBT

3535 35

N:-If NEE

3535 35

FEII srin
Maximum Green (Gmax) or Phase Split, s 14.0 31.0 14.0 31.0 16.0 69.0 16.0 69.0

Yellow Change lnterval (Y), s 3.5 4.5 3.5 4.5 3.5 4.5 3.5 4.5

Red Clearance lnterval ( R"), s 1.0 2.0 1.0 2.0 1.0 2.0 1.0 2.O

Minimum Green ( Gmin), S 3 8 3 I 3 5 3 5

Start-Up Lost Tlme ( /f), s 2.0 2.O 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0

Extension of Effective Green (e), s 2.O 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0

Passage (PI), s 3.0 5.0 3.0 5.0 3.0 2.0 3.0 2.0

Recall Mode off otr off off off tvlin off Min

Dual Entry No Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes

Walk (tuValk), s 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Pedestrian Clearance Time S

Multimodal lnformation

m m
EB

m m
WB

m m
NB

0.00.0

SB

85th % Speed / Rest in Walk / Corner Radius U No 25 0 No 25 0 No 25 0 No 25

Walkway / Crosswalk Width / Length, ft 9.0 12 0 9.0 0 9.0 12 0 9.0 12 0

Street Wdth / lsland / Curb 0 0 No 0 No0 0 0 No 0 0 No

Wdth Outside / Bike Lane i Shoulder, ft 12 5.0 2.0 12 5.0 2.0 12 5.0 2.0 12 5.0 2.0

Pedestrian Signal / Occupied Parking No 0.s0 No 0.50 No 0.50 No 0.50

rEI@IIil:Eil@T

IE :E
EEI NEEIIItrIEEI

grrrr@

Copyright @ 2015 University of Florida, All Rights Reserved. HCS 2010rM Streets Version 5.65 Generated: 812512015 1 2:04:52 PM

"1.

I 3

8

12

1 900



HCS 2010 Signalized lntersection Results Sum

General lnformation lntersection lnformation
Duration h zc

Analyst Analysis Date 5 Area

Jurisdiction Time Period PHF 95

lntersection tL 83 91ST Year 2015 Period 1> 7:OO

File Name 2026Total - lL 83.xus

Descri Peak Hour - 2026 Total { ?,

Demand lnformation EB WB NB SB

Approach Movement L T R L T R L T R L T R

Demand veh/h

S lnformation

13s 100 60 125 45 55 50 1240 115

I

150 585 40

Cycle, s 130.0 Reference Phase 2

Offset, s 0 Reference Point End
Green 5. 69.4 9.5 15.6 0.0

NBT

Uncoordinated No Simult. Gap EA/i/ On Yellow ) |.5 4.5 0.0
Force Mode Fixed Simult. N/S On

Timer Results EBL EBT WBL WBT NBL SBL SBT
Assigned Phase 7 4 3 8 5 2 1 o

Case Number 1.1 4.O 1.1 4.0 2.0 3.0 2.0 3.0

Phase Duration, s 14.0 22.1 14.0 22.1 9.5 75.9 18.0 84.4
Change Period, (Y+R"), s 4.5 6.5 4.5 6.5 4.5 6.5 4.5 6.5

Max Allow Headway (MAll), s 4.1 6.2 4.1 6.2 4.1 0.0 4.1

Queue Clearance Time (gs), s 11.1 14.2 10.4 9.6 5.8 13.3

Green Extension Time (ge), s 0.0 1.4 0.0 1.7 0.1 0.0 0.3 0.0
Phase Call Probability 0.99 1.00 0.99 1.00 0.85 1.00

Max Out

Movement Results

1.00

EB

1.00 0.06

WB

0.00

NB

0.10

SB

Approach Movement L T R L T R L T R L T R

Assigned Movement 7 4 14 3 8 18 5 2 12 1 o 16

Adjusted Flow Rate (v), veh/h 142 168 132 105 53 1305 121 1s8 616 42
Adjusted Saturation Flow Rate (s), veh/h/ln 1774 1745 1774 1695 1774 1867 1579 1774 1 867 1 579
Queue Service Time (gs), s 9.'1 12.2 8.4 7.6 3.8 24.6 3.2 11.3 5.5 0.7
Cycle Queue Clearance Time (gc), s 9.1 12.2 8.4 t.6 3.8 24.6 3.2 11.3 5.5 0.7
Green Ratio (g/C) 0.19 0.12 0.19 0.12 0.04 0.53 0.53 0.10 0.60 0.60
Capacity (c), veh/h 245 210 198 204 68 1992 842 184 2236 946
Volume{o-Capacity Ratio (X) 0.581 0.803 0.664 0.517 0.769 0.655 0.144 0.856 0.275 0.045
Available Capacity (ca), veh/h 245 329 198 319 278 1992 842 278 2236 946
Back of Queue (Q), veh/ln (95th percentile) 7.6 10.3 7.4 o.2 12.8 2.1 9.5 3.6 0.5
Queue Storage Ratio (RQ) (95th percentile) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Uniform Delay (dr), s/veh 46.4 55.7 46.6 53.7 61.1 12.3 9.2 55.0 5.8 5.3
lncremental Delay (dz), s/veh 3.4 14.3 8.1 4.3 16.4 1.7 0.4 15.1 0.3 0.1
lnitial Queue Delay (da), s/veh 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Control Delay (d), s/veh 49.8 70.0 54.6 57.9 77.4 14.0 9.6 70.2 6.1 5.4
Level of Service (LOS) D E D E E B A E A A
Approach Delay, s/veh i LOS 60.8 E 56.'1 E 15.9 B 18.5 B
lntersection s/veh / LOS

Multimodal Results

24.9

WBEB

U

SBNB
Pedestrian LOS Score i LOS 3.0 c 3.0 C 2.3 B 2.3 B
Bicycle LOS Score / LOS 1.0 A 0.9 A 1.7 A 1.2 A

4

8

Copyright @ 2015 University of Florida, All Rights Reserved. HCS 20l0rM Streets Version 6.65 Generated: 8t251201 5 1 2:04:52 PM

'1.

Aqencv

3

6 7

0.0

3.6

0.00

0.27



HCS 2010 Signalized lntersection lntermediate Values

General Information

'15

15

An

EB WB NB SB

Duration h

Period 1> 7:00lL 83 91ST

Demand lnformation

lntersection lnformation

Area

PHF 95

Analysis Date

I rme Period

Year

2026 Total - lL 83.xus

Peak Hour - 2026foLal

Jurisdiction

lntersection

File Name

P Descri

Approach Movement L T R L T R L T R L T R

135 125 1240 115 '150100

'1.0 1.0 2.0 1.0 0.0

60 45 55 50 585 40

t;'2
3 1

7 8Red 2.0

EB WB NB SB

Simult. N/S

Demand veh/h

S nal lnformation

Uncoordinated No

Force Mode Fixed

Reference Phase

Reference Point

EA/USimult.

End

On

On

S 130.0

0Offset, s

Saturation Flow / Delay L T R L T R L T R L T R

1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000Lane Wdth Adjustment Factor (fw)

Heavy Vehicle Adjustment Factor (fiv) 0.980 0.980 1.000 0.980 0.980 1.000 0.980 0.980 0.980 0.980 0.980 0.980

Approach Grade Adjustment Factor (fs) 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000Parking Activity Adjustment Factor (fp)

Bus Blockage Adjustment Factor (foo) 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

Area Type Adjustment Factor (fa) 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

Lane Utilization Adjustment Factor (fru) 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 0.952 1.000 1.000 0.952 1.000

1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000Work Zone Adjustment Factor (fm)

0.000 0.952 0.000 0.952 0.000Left-Turn Adjustment Factor (fr-r) 0.952 0.952 0.000

Right-Turn Adi ustment Factor (fnr) 0.937 0.910 0.000 0 000

1.000 '1.000 1.000 1.000Left-Turn Pedestrian Adjustment Factor (f+o)

1.000 1.000Right-Turn Ped-Bike Adjustment Factor (fnpo) 1.000 1.000

Movement Saturation Flow Rate (s), veh/h 1774 1 091 1774 763 1774 3733 1774 3733

0.07 0.12 o.12 0.07 0.12 0.12 0.05 0.71 0.71 0.14 0.80 0.80Proportion of Vehicles Arriving on Green (P)

coa nrEt

IWsII IWIET'I-'I

m nE{n

NEIT NEIm

rE{.l Er6 rETiI

FTJII FEI?T{

NE{II

/ Movement

lncremental Factor

Timi

0.17 0.24

ET'II lIlErilrl
4.5 6.5 4.5 6.5 4.5 6.5 4.5 6.5Lost Tlme (fr)

o.12 0.04 0.10 0.60Green Ratio (g/C) 0.19 0.12 0.19

0 01283 0 1212 0 0 0Permitted Saturation Flow Rate (sp), veh/h/ln

Shared Saturation Flow Rate (ssi,), veh/h/ln

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.015.6 0.0 15.6 0.0Permitted Effective Green Time (gp), s

0.0 0.06.0 0.0 1.4 0.0 0.0 0.0Permitted Service llme (gu), s

1.2 1.4Permitted Queue Service Time (gps), s

0.0 0.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0Time to First Blockage (gr), s

Queue Service Time Before Blockage (gt), s

0 0Protected Right Saturation Flow (sn), veh/h/ln
0.00.0Protected Right Effective Green Time (gn), s

SBEB WB NBMultimodal
2.224 0.00 1.557 0.00 't.557 0.002.224 0.00Pedestrian Fw / Fu

0.000 0.106 0.000 0.0940.000 0.1 57 0.000 0.1 57Pedestrian Fs I Foaay

Pedestrian Mamer I Mc*
1 067.1 0 14.14 1197.93 10.45240.31 50.32 240.31 50.32Bicycle co / do

0.67-3.64 -3.64 1.22 -3.64-3.64 0.s1Bicycle F* I F,

IZIIIEIII!U

II

rE@fGil]EEEEil@@
EEililrcIreUilIEIreililEEil

-TII

Copyright@ 2015 University of Florida, All Rights Reserved. HCS 2010rM Streets Version 6.65 Generated: 8i25l2015 12:04:52 PM

Aqency

1

3

0.39

0.53



HCS 2010 Signalized lntersection lnput Data

General lnformation

*
15

15

.{ tn

EB WB NB SB

Period 1> 7:00lL 83 91ST

Demand lnformation

lntersection lnformation
hDu o.2s

OtherArea

0.95PHF

Analysis Date

Time Period

Year

PM Peak Hour- 2026 Total

PM 2026 Total - lL 83.xus

Analyst

Jurisdiction

lntersection

File Name

ect

Approach Movement L T R L T R L T R L T R

Demand veh/h

lnformation
Cycle, s 130.0 Reference Phase 2

Offset, s 0 Reference Point End

Uncoordinated No Simult. Gap EA|U On

IIE IM Ire IEts

8.7 '1.3

EB SB

N 6 EO m E[l 140 900 75

3 4

7 8

WB NB

24.5
4.5

Force Mode

Traffic lnformation

N/S OnFixed Simult.

Approach Movement L T R L T R L T R L T R

Demand (v), veh/h 110 235 65 180 140 60 70 820 135 140 900 75

lnitial Queue (Qo), veh/h 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Base Saturation Flow Rate (so), veh/h 1 900 1 900 1 900 1 900 1 900 1 900 1 900 2000 1900 1900 2000 1900

Parking (Nm), man/h None None None None

Heavy Vehicles (Puv), o/o 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Ped / Bike / RTOR, /h 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 n 0 0 0
Buses (No), buses/h 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 U 0
ArrivalType (AI) 3 J 3 3 3 3 4 4 4 4 4 4
Upstream Filtering (/) 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Lane Wdth (t4z), ft 12.0 12.O 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0
Turn Bay Length, ft 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Grade (Pg), % 0 0 0 0

Lim mi/h

Phase !nformation

35 Etr

IEEII

35

EBL

E5 35

llr=Tl

ffi

IWIETI

EE B
NBL NBT

35Etr 35

SBL SBT
lVaximum Green (Gmax) or Phase Split, s 13.0 31.0 13.0 31.0 16.0 68.0 18.0 70.0
Yellow Change lnterval (Y), s 3.0 4.5 4.5 3.5 4.5 3.5 4.5
Red Clearance lnterval ( R"), s 0.0 2.O 0.0 2.0 1.0 2.0 1.0 2.0
Minimum Green ( Gmm), s 3 8 3 8 3 5 3 5
Start-Up Lost Time ( /f), s 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
Extension of Effective Green (e), s 2.0 2.O 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
Passage (PI), s 3.0 5.0 3.0 5.0 3.0 3.0 2.O
Recall Mode off otr off off off Ivlin otr Min
Dual Entry No Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes
Walk (Walk), s 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Pedestrian Clearance Time

Multimodal !nformation

S 0.0 m
EB

0.00.0

WB

0.0 m

NB

0.00.0

SB
85th % Speed / Rest in Walk / Corner Radius 0 No 25 0 No 25 0 No 25 0 No 25
Walkway i Crosswalk Width / Length, ft 9.0 12 0 9.0 12 0 9.0 12 0 9.0 12 0
Street Width / lsland / Curb U 0 No 0 0 No U 0 No 0 0 No
Wdth Outside / Bike Lane / Shoulder, ft 12 5.0 2.0 12 5.0 2.0 12 5.0 2.0 12 5.0 2.O
Pedestrian Signal / Occupied Parking No 0.50 No No 0.50 No 0.50

JIIL

.t-

IIEIETfEil]E@E@IT

5w,l-

rIET Ir rErr
EIrcI@

r @

Copyright O 20'15 University of Florida, All Rights Reserued. HCS 2010rM Streets Version 6.65 Generated: 812512015 ll:57:49 AM

"+.

1

J

2.0

0.50

2.0

3.0

2.O



HCS 2010 Signalized lntersection Results Summary

General lnformation lntersection lnformation
h 0.25

Analyst Analysis Date 8t3t2015 Area Type Other

Jurisdiction Time Period PHF 0.95

lntersection lL 83 @ 91ST Analysis Year 2015 Analysis Period 'l> 7:00

File Name PM 2026 Total - lL 83.xus

SB

Peak Hour - 2026Total

NBEB WBDemand lnformation

Era+rflIEE

Approach Movement L T R L T R L T R L T R

Demand , veh/h

lnformation
Cycle, s 130.0 Reference Phase 2

m m EE

Offset, s 0 Reference Point End Green 6.9 1.2
No Simult. Gap EAN OnUncoordinated Yellow ) 3.5

135 140lm @ 900 75@ re m

,1

3 4

7 8

WBL WBT NBL NBT sErt Srrfi

Force Mode Fixed Simult.

Timer Results

NiS m

EBL EBT

7 4 J 8 5 2 1 6Assigned Phase

2.O 3.0 2.0 3.0Case Number 1.1 4.0 1.1 4.0

Phase Duration, s 11.7 31.0 13.0 32.3 11.4 68.9 17.1 74.6

3.0 6.5 3.0 6.5 4.5 6.5 4.5 6.5Change Period, (Y+Rc), s

4.1 0.0 4.1 0.0Max Allow Headway @Affl, s 4.1 6.'1 4.1 6.1

Queue Clearance Time (gs), s 8.8 24.6 12.O 16.1 7.3 12.6

0.0 0.0 0.0 2.8 0.1 0.0 0.0Green Extension Time (ge), s

Phase Call Probability 0.98 '1.00 1.00 1.00 0.93 1.00

1.00 1.00

EB

1.00 o.52

WB

0.93

NB

'1.00

SBResultsMovement

Max Out

R L T R L T R L T RApproach Movement L T

12 1 o to7 4 14 3 8 18 5 2Assigned Movement

316 189 211 74 863 142 147 947 79Adjusted Flow Rate (v), veh/h

1774 1774 1 867 1579 1774 1 867 1579Adjusted Saturation Flow Rate (s), veh/h/ln 1774 1793 1767

2.16.8 22.6 10.0 14.1 5.3 15.6 4.8 10.6 15.0Queue Service Time (gs), s

5.3 15.6 4.8 10.6 15.0 2.16.8 22.6 10.0 14.1Cycle Queue Clearance lime (gc), s

0.26 0.1 I o.27 0.20 0.05 0.48 0.48 0.10 0.52 0.52Green Ratio (g/C)

94 1793 758 171 1957 828261 338 208 351Capacity (c), veh/h

0.443 0.935 0.912 0.599 0.788 0.481 0.1 87 0.860 0.484 0.095Volume-to-Capacity Ratio (X)

351 157 1793 758 184 1 957 828279 338 208Available Capacity (ca), veh/h
4.4 8.3 3.1 8.5 7.6 1.44.8 16.9 5.6 9.3Back of Queue (Q), veh/ln (85th percentile)

0.000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.00 0.00Queue Storage Ratio (RQ) (85th percentile)

59.7 15.0 13.0 55.8 11.6 9.639.5 52.O 43.4 47.4Uniform Delay (dr), siveh
0.24.3 13.5 0.9 0.5 30.0 0.91.2 33.2lncremental Delay (dz), s/veh

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.0 0.0 0.0 0.0lnitial Queue Delay (ds), s/veh
13.6 85.8 12.440.7 85.2 82.5 73.3 15.9Control Delay (d), s/veh

AD E B B F BD F FLevel of Service (LOS)

19.5 B 21.5 C73.3 E 66.3 EApproach Delay, s/veh / LOS

NB

C

SBWBEB

siveh / LOSlntersection

Multimodal Results
2.3 B 2.3 B3.0 C 3.0 CPedestrian LOS Score / LOS

1.5 A1.1 A 1.4 A1.2 ABicycle LOS Score / LOS

TffiII@

tu@rrur@EE@

E
reIEI

II

II II

Copyright @ 2015 University of Florida, All Rights Reserved HCS 2010rM Streets Version 6.65 Generated: 812512015 11:57:48 AM

"1.

I

0.0

9.9

116

39.1

51.6

33.8



HCS 2010 Signalized lntersection lntermediate Values

General lnformation

EB WB NB SB

Duration h

Period 1> 7:00

Date 8t3t2015

Year 2015lL 83 91 ST

Demand lnformation

lntersection lnformation
25

Area

PHF 95Time Period

PM Peak Hour - 2026 Total

PM 2026 Total - lL 83.xus

lntersection

File Name

P Descri

Approach Movement L T R L T R L T R L T R

Demand , veh/h

!nformation
Cycle, s 130.0 Reference Phase 2

110 235

Offset, s 0 Reference Point End I l'
Uncoordinated No Simult. Gap EAN On r.5 lt

'180 tre ffi Ire65 ED re m m 7E

€
3 1

1

WB NB SB

Force Mode 1.0Simult. RedFixed N/S On

EB

Saturation Flow / Delay L T R L T R L T R L T R

Lane Wdth Adjustment Factor (f,) 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 '1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

Heavy Vehicle Adjustment Factor (f,rv) 0.980 0.980 1.000 0.980 0.980 1.000 0.980 0.980 0.980 0.980 0.980 0.980

Approach Grade Adiustment Factor (fs) 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

Parking Activity Adiustment Factor (fp) 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

Bus Blockage Adjustment Factor (foo) 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1 000

Area Type Adjustment Factor (fa) 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
Lane Utilization Adjustment Factor (fru) 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 '1.000 1.000 0.952 1.000 1.000 0.952 1.000

Work Zone Adjustment Faclor (fwz) 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
Left-Turn Adjustment Factor (fr-r) 0.952 0.952 0.000 0.952 0.000 0.952 0.000
Right-Turn Adiustment Factor (fnr) 0.962 0.949 0.000 0.000
Left-Turn Pedestrian Adjustment Factor (fipo) 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

Right-Turn Ped-Bike Adlustment Factor (fnpo) 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

Movement Saturation Flow Rate (s), veh/h 1774 1404 1774 1237 1774 3733 1774 3733
Proportion of Vehicles Arriving on Green (P) 0.07 0.19 0.19 0.08 0.20 0.20 0.07 0.64 0.64 0.13 0.70 0.70
lncremental

/ Movement

Factor

Tim

m m
EEII l:lIFrIit TWiETIiil

I'UE 0.28

IIIIEII

0.11

NBT/R

0.50 0EJ.1

NBL

NE{.I

srEfrlit

rrz rEIiI

SETT

Lost Time (fr) 3.0 6.5 3.0 6.5 4.5 6.5 4.5 6.5
Green Ratio (g/C) 0.26 0.19 0.27 0.20 0.05 0.48 0.10 0.52
Permitted Saturation Flow Rate (sp), veh/h/ln 1166 0 1 059 0 0 0 0 0

Shared Saturation Flow Rate (ssr,), veh/h/ln

Permitted Effective Green Time (gp), s 24.5 0.0 24.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Permitted Service Time (9u), s 9.8 0.0 1.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Permitted Queue Service Time (gps), s 1.6 1.9

Tme to First Blockage (gr), s 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Queue Service Time Before Blockage (grs), s

Protected Right Saturation Flow (sn), veh/h/ln 0 0
Protected Right Effective Green Time (gn), s 0.0 0.0

Multimodal EB WB NB SB
Pedestrian F, / F, 2.224 2.224 0.00 1.557 0.00 1.557 0.00
Pedestrian Fs I Foeray 0.000 0.1 51 0.000 0.150 0.000 0.115 0.000 0.108
Pedestrian Mcomer I Mc,

Bicycle co / do 376.92 42.81 397.50 41.73 960.67 17.55 1048.43 14.71

Bicycle F, I F, -3.64 o.71 -3.64 0.66 -3.64 0.89 -3.64 0.97

]!ilEE@TTI@@E

II I II

rL@rrm EI@riE{'r@
HEilil]EI3EE EEilil

IITI

:I

Copyright @ 20'15 University of Florida, All Rights Reserved. HCS 2010rM Streets Version 6.65 Generated: 812512015 11:57:48 AM

Aoencv

Analyst

Jurisdiction

I

5 6

0.00

reooo



Two-Way Stop Control

Hcs+TM version 5.6

Page I of I

Generaled: 8/2412015 3116 PMCopynghtO 2010 University of Florida, All Rights Reserved

General lnformation Site lnformation
Analyst lxs
Aqency/Co lssE
Dale Performed 18/3/2015
Analysis Time Period IAM PEAK

7Sr GAS SIA I/ON

s r/A/G

ntersection
urisdiction

Project Description SPECTRUM BURR RIDGE
EastMest Street: 97Sf North/South Street: GAS SI/4IION
lntersectionOrientation; Easlwest Studv Period (hrs): 0.25

Vehicle Volumes and Adiustments
Major Street Eastbound Westbound
l\.4ovement 1 2 3 4 5 6

L T R L T R

Volume (veh/h) 169 110 19
Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 0.95 095 1 .00 1.00 0.95 0.95
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 66 0 0 115 20

Percent HeaW Vehicles 0 0
L4edian Tvpe Undivided

RT Channelized 0 o

Lanes 1 0 o 1 0

Confiquration LT TR
Upstream Siqnal 0 0

f inor Street No(hbound Southbound
Movement 7 8 I 't0 11 12

L T R L T R

Volume (veh/h) 7 23
Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 1 .00 1.00 1.00 095 1 .00 0.95

0
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 7 0 24

Percent Heavy Vehicles 0 0 0 0 0 0
Percent Grade (%) 0 0
Flared Approach

Storage a 0

RT Channelized 0 0
Lanes 0 0 0 0 0
Configuration LR

Delay, Queue Length, and Level of Service
Eastbound Westbound NorthboundApproach Southbound

Movement 1 4 7 8 10 11 12

Lane Configuration LT LR

v (veh/h) 66 31

C (m) (veh/h) 1462 808

0.04

95% queue length 0.14 0.12

Control Delay (s/veh) 7.6 9.6

LOS A A

Approach Delay (s/veh) 96
AApproach LOS

II
-

---

II

-

III

EIITI

IIIIIIIIIIII

fi le:///C :fu sers/kconol lylAppData/Local/Temp/u2kF6A9.tmp 8124t2015

TWO-WAY STOP CONTROL SUMMARY

0

0 0

0

0.05

Analysis Year



Two-Way Stop Control

CopyrightO 2010 University of Flonda, All Rights Reserved HCS+rM Version 5.6

Page I of I

Generated: 8/2412015 318 p[,rt

TWO.WAY STOP CONTROL SUMMARY

General lnformation Site lnformation

a sis Year

7SI GAS SIA Ii OA/ntersection
urisdiction

SI//VG

Proiect Description SPECTRUM BURR RIDGE
East/West Street: 97Sf North/South Street: GAS SIAI/OAT
lntersection Orientation: East-West Study Period (hrs): 0.25

Vehicle Volumes and Adjustments
Major Street Eastbound Westbound
Movement 1 2 3 4 6

L T R L T R

Volume (veh/h) 52 226 45
Peak-Hour Factor. PHF 0.95 0.9 5 1.00 0.95 0.95
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(vehft) 327 0 47

Percent Heavy Vehicles 0 o
t\.,ledian Type Undivided

0 0
Lanes 0 1 0 0 1 0
Conliguration LT rR
Upstream Signal 0 0

Minor Street Northbound Southbound
L4ovement 7 8 I 10 11 12

L T R L T R

Volume (veh/h) 16 40
Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.95 1.00 0.95
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 0 0 0 16 0

Percent Heavy Vehicles 0 0 0 0 0
Percent Grade (%) 0 0
Flared Approach

Storage 0 0

RT Channelized 0
Lanes 0 0 0 0 0 0
Configuration LR
Del Queue Len th and Level of Service
Approach Eastbound Westbound Northbound
i,4ovement 1 4 7 8 I 10 11

Lane Configuration LT LR
v (veh/h) 54

C (m) (veh/h) 1290 o/o
0.04 0.09

95% queue length 0.13 0.31
Control Delay (s/veh) 7.9 11.5
LOS A

Approach Delay (s/veh) 11 .5
Approach LOS B

--

E-

-I- -

- E

-IIII

IIIII IIIII
IIIIIIII

-IIII

IIIIIIIII

fi le:///C:fu sers/kconolly/AppData,/Loca[/Temp/u2k I C48.tmp 8t24t20ts

Analysis Time

311

0 237

0

0

Southbound

12

1.00

RT Channelized

A



TWO-WAY STOP CONTROL SUMMARY

General lnformation Site lnformation
Analyst Ks
Agency/Co lssE
Date Performed l7/31/2015
Analysis Time Period AM PEAK

97 Srntersection
urisdiction

sis Year TOTAL

GAS SIA I/ON

Proiect Description SPECTRUM BURR RIDGE
Easwvest Street: 97SI Northi South Street: GAS SfATON
lntersection Orientation: East-tyest Study Period (hrs): 0.25

Vehicle Volumes and Adiustments
Maior Street Eastbound Westbound
Movement 1 2 3 4 5 6

L T R L T R

Volume (veh/h) 65 300 200 20
Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 0.95 0.95
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 68 315 0 0 210 21

Percent Heavy Vehicles 0 0

[,ledian Type Undivided

RT Channelized 0 0
Lanes 0 1 0 0 0
Configuration LT rR

0 0Upstream Signal

Minor Street Northbou nd Southbound
Movement 7 B '10 11 12

L T R L T R

Volume (veh/h) 10
Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.95
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 0 0 0 10 o

0 0 0 0 0 0Percent Heavy Vehicles

Percent Grade (o/o) o

Flared Approach

0 0Storage

0 0RT Channelized
0 0 0Lanes 0

LRConfiguration

Delay, Queue Lenqth, and Level of Service
NorthboundApproach Eastbound Westbound

1 7 8 10 11 12[.4ovement

LRLane Conliguration

3668v (veh/h)

C (m) (vehi h) 1349

0.460.05

0.1895% queue length 0.16
11.07.8Control Delay (siveh)

BLOS A

11.0Approach Delay (s/veh)

BApproach LOS

--
IT

--

I-

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

IIIIIII
EIIII IIIIIIII

Two-Way Stop Control

HCS+TM Version 5.6

Page I of I

Gene€red: 8/2412015 3103 PI\,4CopynghtO 2010 l.l n iversity of Florda, All Rights Reserved

fi le :///C :fu sersikconol ly/AppData/Local/Temp/u2kFACF.tmp 8t2412015

1

0

0 0

Southbound

4

LT

640



Two-Way Stop Control

CopynghtO 2010 University of Flonda, All Rights Reserved HCS+TM Version 5.6

Page I of I

Generaled: 8/2412015 3:04 PM

TWO.WAY STOP CONTROL SUMMARY

General lnformation Site lnformation
Analyst KS
Agency/Co SSE
Date Performed 7/31/2015
Analysis Time Period PM PEAK

,SI GAS SIA I/OA/ntersection
urisdiction

EIIGEII 026 TOTAL

Project Description SPECTRUM BURR RIDGE
Eastl/y'est Street: 91Sf North/South Street: GAS SIA I/OA/
lntersection Orientation: Easl-|,'1lest Study Period (hrs): 0.25

Vehicle Volumes and Adjustments
Maior Street Eastbound Westbound
Movement 1 2 3 4 5 6

L T R L T R

Volume (veh/h) 55 340 45
Peak-Hour Factor. PHF 0.95 0.95 1.00 1 .00 0.95 095
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 57 478 o 0 357

Percent Heavy Vehicles 0 0
l\redian Type Undivided
RT Channelized 0 o

Lanes 0 1 0 0 1 0
Conflguration LT TR
Upstream Siqnal 0 0

Minor Street Northbound Southbound
Movement 7 8 10 11 12

L T R L T R

Volume (veh/h) 15 40
Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.95 1 .00 0.95
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 0 o 0 15 0 42

Percent Heavy Vehicles 0 0 0 0 0 0
Percent Grade (%) 0 0

Flared Approach

Storage a 0

RT Channelized 0 0
Lanes 0 0 0 0 0
Configuration LR
Delay, Queue Length, and Level of Service
Approach Eastbound Westbound Northbound South bou nd
I\,4ovement 1 4 7 I 10 11 't2

Lane Conflguration LT LR
v (veh/h) 57 57
C (m) (veh/h) 1166 481

0.12
95% queue length 0.15 0.40
Control Delay (s/veh) 8.2 13.5
LOS A B
Approach Delay (s/veh) 13.5
Approach LOS B

Mil

I-

I-

--E--

-
I

-

I

-

IIIII

-IITIr
IIIIIIIIIIITIITIIIII

IIIrI

file : / / / C JU ser s lkcono lly/AppData/Local/Temp/u2k929 5.tmp

0

0.05

8124t2015



Two-Way Stop Control Page I of I

TWO.WAY STOP CONTROL SUMMARY

General lnformation Site lnformation
Intersection 91ST @ O'NE|LL
Jurisdiction
Analysis Year EXISTING

Proiect Description SPECTRUM BURR RIDGE
Easuwest Street: 97Sf North/South Street: O /VE/LL
lntersection Orientation: Easltyesf Study Period (hts\: 0.25

Vehicle Volumes and Adiustments
Maior Street Eastbound Westbound
Movement 1 2 3 4 5 6

T R L T RL

4 172 129 1Volume (veh/h)
Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 1.00 0.95 0.95

181 0 0 135 1
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h)

Percent Heaw Vehicles 0 0
Median Type Undivided

0RT Channelized
0 1 0 0 1 0Lanes

Confiquration LT TR

Upstream Siqnal 0 0

SouthboundMinor Street Northbound
B 10 11 12Movement 7

T R L T R

1 0Volume (vehih)
1.00 1.00 1 .00 0.95 1.00 0.95Peak-Hour Factor, PHF

0o 0 0 1 0Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h)

0 0 0Percent Heaw Vehicles 0 0 o

Percent Grade (%) 0

Flared Approach
0Storage 0

RT Channelized 0

0 00 0 0Lanes
LRConfiguration

Delay, Queue Lenqth, and Level of Service
Westbound Northbound SouthboundApproach Eastbound

I 10 124 7l\4ovement

LRLTLane Configuration
14v (veh/h)

6711461C (m) (vehi h)

0.000.00
0.0095% queue length 0.01
10.4Control Delay (siveh)

BALOS

Approach Delay (s/veh)
BApproach LOS

--

-

-

I-

EI

-

I

I

-

IIIIIIIIIIII
IIIIIII

EIIII IIIIIIIIIIII

Copy.ight@ 2010 University of Flonda, Al, Righls Reserved HCS+rM Vers on 5.6 Generatedr 8/24120T5 3:17 PM

fi le :///C :Alsers/kconol lylAppData,/Local/Temp/u2kD030.tm p 8124120t5

4

0

L

0

0
0

't11

7.5

10.4

0.95 0.95 1.00

I



Two-Way Stop Control

Copyright O 2010 University of Florida, All Rights Reserved HCS+TM Version 5.6

Page I of I

Genemledr 8/2412015 3:19 pM

TWO-WAY STOP CONTROL SUMMARY

General Information [ETTiIEIliiEIfth
Analyst Ks
Agency/Co ISSE
Date Performed 18/3/2015
Analysis Time Period IPM PEAK

lntersection 91ST @. O'NEILL
Jurisdiction
Analysis Year EXlS I/Ai G

Project Description SPECTRUM BURR RIDGE
EastMest Street: 97SI North/South Street: O NE|LL
lntersection Orientaton: East-West Study Period (hrs): 0.25

Vehicle Volumes and Adjustments
luaior Street Eastbound Weslbound
l\.4ovement 1 2 3 4 5

L T R L T R
Volume (veh/h) 1 326 268 4
Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 0.95 0.95 1.00 1.00 0.95 0.95
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 1 343 0 0 4

Percenl Hea\,y Vehicles 0 0
[,4edian Type Undivided
RT Channelized 0
Lanes 0 0 o 1 o
Confiouration TR
Upstream Signal 0

Minor Street Northbound Southbound
Movement 7 '10 11 12

L T R L T R

Volume (vehih) 0 3
Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 1.00 1 .00 1.00 0.95 1.00 0.95
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 0 0 0 3

Percent Heavy Vehicles 0 0 0 0 0 0
Percent Grade (%) 0 0

Flared Approach

Storage 0 0

RT Channelized 0 0
Lanes 0 0 0 0 0 0
Configuration LR
Delay, Queue Length, and Level of Service
Approach Eastbound Westbound Southbound
l\.4ovement ,|

4 7 8 10 11 12
Lane Conflguration LT LR
v (veh/h) 1 3
C (m) (vehih) 1288 760

0.00 0.00
95% queue length 0.01
Control Delay (s/veh) 7.8 9.8
LOS A A
Approach Delay (s/veh) 9.8
Approach LOS A

-E--

--

IIIII

--E -

I

-

IIIII
IITTIIIIrIII

IITIIIIIITII

II

fi le :///C :/[Jsers/kconolly/AppData,/L ocal/T emp /u2k7 67E.tmp 8t74/201s

0
1

LT
0

0 0

Northbound

0.00



TWO-WAY STOP CONTROL SUMMARY

ite lnformationEril!?IrrililriiErfth
lntersection 91ST @ O'NEILUSITE
Jurisdiction
Analysis Year 2026 TOTAL

s
m m

ate Performed
FrftTEIENiE

SE

Proiect Description SPECTRUM BURR RIDGE
Street: 91Sf orth/South Street: O /VE/LL

0.25ntersection Orientation: Easf-14/est Period hrs

Vehicle Volumes and Adjustments
Maior Slreet Eastbound Westbound
Movement 1 2 3 4 5 6

L T R L T R

Volume (veh/h) 5 200 105 25 145 1

0.95Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 095 0.95 095 0.95
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 5 210 110 26 152 1

Percent Heavy Vehicles 0 0
Ivledian Type

RT Channelized 0 0
Lanes 0 0
Conflquration L IR L TR

Upstream Siqnal 0 0

Minor Street Northbou nd Southbound
[.4ovement 7 B 10 11 '12

L T R L T R

Volume (veh/h) 20 5 1 5
0.95Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95

78 1 21 5 5
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h)
Percent Heavy Vehicles 0 0 0 0 o o

Percent Grade (%) 0 o

Flared Approach

o 0Storage

0 0RT Channelized
0 0 1 oLanes

Configuration L IR LTR

Delav, Queue Lenqth, and Level of Service
Northbound SouthboundApproach Eastbound Westbound

4 7 '10 11 12Movement 1

L L LLane Conflguration

115 26 78v (veh/h)

757 5961440 1251 484C (m) (veh/h)

0.16 0.03 0.020.00 0.02

0.060.06 0.57 0.0995o/o queue length 0.01

11.27.5 7.9Control Delay (s/veh)
BA B ALOS A

11.213.4Approach Delay (s/veh)

BBApproach LOS

MIE-&@tril
Mllll+rfrlllEnnrlr

II

III

IIIIIII

IIIIIII

IIIIIII

Two-Way Stop Control

HCS+TM Version 5.6

Page I of I

Gene?ted 812412015 2:57 PMCopynght@ 2010 University of Florida, AllRights Reserved

fi le:///C:/Users/kconolly/AppDatrl-ocal/Temp/u2k9CCC.tmp 8t24120t5

Undivided

1 1 1 1

1

1

8

9.9

0.95

7/31/2015 
|

AM PEAK

LTR



TWO-WAY STOP CONTROL SUMMARY

General lnformation lsite lnformation
AnalVSt I<s
Aqency/Co lssE
Date Performed 17/31/2015
Analvsis Time Period IPM PEAK

lntersection 91ST @ O'NEILUSITE
Jurisdiction
Analysis Year 2026 TOTAL

Proiect Description SPECTRUM BURR RIDGE
Wvest Street: 97Sf orth/South Street: O NEi LL

0.25tuntersectionOrientation: Easlwest Period hrs

Vehicle Volumes and Adjustments
Major Street Eastbound Westbound
l\.4ovement 1 2 3 4 5 6

L T R L T R

Volume (veh/h) 1 370 100 20 310 5
Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 0.95 0.95
Hourly FIow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 389 105 5

Percent Heaw Vehicles 0 0
[,4edian Type Undivided
RT Channelized 0 0

Lanes 1 1 0 1 1 0
Confiquration L TR L TR

0

Minor Street Northbound Southbound
Movement 7 8 I 10 11 12

L T R T R

Volume (veh/h) 70 1 20 1 1 5
Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 095 0.95
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 73 1 21 1

Percent Heavy Vehicles 0 0 0 0 0 0
Percent Grade (%) 0 0

Flared Approach

Storage 0 0

RT Channelized 0 0
Lanes 0 0 1 0
Conliguration L rR LTR

Queue Le th and Level of Service
Approach Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound
Movement 1 4 7 8 I 10 11 12

Lane Contiguration L L TR LTR
v (veh/h) 1 21 73 7

C (m) (veh/h) 1240 1080 290 499
0.00 0.02 0.25 0.04 0.01

95% queue length 0.00 0.06 0.12 0.04
Control Delay (s/veh) 21 .5 11.3 12.3
LOS A c B
Approach Delay (s/veh) 19.2 12.3
Approach LOS c

E-

-

t

r

IIIIIII

IIIIIII

rIIII

IIII

Two-Way Stop Control

Copydght@ 2010 University of Florida, All Rights Reserved HCS+TM Version 5.6

Page I of I

fi le :///C :fu sers,&conolly/AppData,/Local/Temp/u2k93 5.tmp 812412015

1

L

1 5

1 1

L

0.97
8.4

B

Upstream Signal 0

0.95 | 0.950.95

Generated: 8/2412015 3 01 PM



TWO-WAY STOP CONTROL SUMMARY

General lnformation lsite lnformation
Analyst 1r(s
Aqency/Co lssE
Date Perlormed 18/3/2015
Analysis Time Period IAM PEAK

lntersection 97ST @ PALISADES
Jurisdiction
Analysis Year EXIS7N6

Proiecl Description SPECTRUM BUR RIDGE
Street: 97Sl. orth/South Street: PAIISADES

0.25tnlersectionOrientation: Easlwest Period hrs

Vehicle Volumes and Adiustments
Eastbound WestboundMajor Street

Movement 1 2 3 4 5 6
L T R L T R

3Volume (veh/h) 3 168 0 0 126
0.95 0.95Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 0.95 0.95

132 3Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 3 176 0 0

0Percent Heavy Vehicles 0

Median Type Undivided

RT Channelized 0 0
0 1 0Lanes 0 1 0

LTR LTRConfiguration
o 0Upstream Signal

Minor Street Northbou nd Southbound
Movement 7 8 10 11 12

T RL T R

0 4Volume (vehih) 0 0 0 2
0.95 0.95 0.95Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 0.95 095 0.95

0 2 0 4Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 0 a

0 o 0 0 0 oPercent Heavy Vehicles

Percent Grade (%) 0 0

Flared Approach

0Storage 0

0 0RT Channelized
0 0 0Lanes 0

LTR LTRConfiguration

Delay, Queue Lenqth, and Level of Service
Northbound SouthboundEastbound WestboundApproach

124 8 I 10 11l\.,1ove me nt 1

LTRLTR LTRLane Configuration LTR

60 0v (veh/h) 3
8031462 1412C (m) (veh/h)

0.010.00 0.00

0.020.0095% queue length 0.01

7.5 7.5Control Delay (s/veh)
AALOS

9.5Approach Delay (s/veh)

AApproach LOS

-

II E

-

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

IIII

Two-Way Stop Control

HCS+rM Version 5.6

Page I of I

Generated 8/2412015 3:17 PMCopyngH@ 20l0lJnivercity of Florida, All R ghts Reserved

fi le :///C :/Users,&conolly/AppData/Local/Temp/u2k45 8F.tmp 8124120t5

L

1

7

0.95



TWO-WAY STOP CONTROL SUMMARY

neral lnformation ite lnformation
lntersection 9rSr @ PAL|S/ADES
Jurisdiction
Analysis Year EXISTING

s
SE

a st
en lCo

a sis Time Period
Performed 015

Project Description SPECTRUM BURR RIDGE
astMest Street: grsf orth/SouthStreet: PALISADES

Period 0.25ud rSntersectionOrientation: EaslWest

Vehicle Volumes and Adjustments
irajor Street Eastbound Westbound
[.4ovement 1 2 3 4 5 6

L T R L T R

Volume (veh/h) I 318 0 0 2
Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 334 a o 280 2

Percent Heaw Vehicles 0 0
l\,4edian Type

RT Channelized 0
Lanes 0 1 0 0 1 0
Configuration LTR LTR
Upstream Siqnal 0 0

Minor Slreet Northbound Southbound
l\,4ovement 7 8 I 11 12

L T R L T R

Volume (veh/h) 0 0 2 0 6
Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 0 0 2 0 6

Percent Heavy Vehicles 0 0 0 0 0 0
Percent Grade (%) 0 0

Flared Approach

Storage 0 0
RT Channelized 0 0
Lanes 0 0 0 a
Configuration LTR LTR

Delay, Queue Length, and Level of Service
Approach Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound
fulovement 1 4 8 I 10 11 12
Lane Configuration LTR LTR LTR
v (veh/h) I 0 0 I
C (m) (veh/h) 1292 1237

0.01 0.00 0.01
95% queue length 0.02 0.40 0.04
Control Delay (s/veh) 7.9 10.9
LOS A A B
Approach Delay (s/veh)

Approach LOS B

I

-

II I

-

--

I

II

III

IIIIIIIIIIIIIITIrIII

II IIII

Two-Way Stop Control

Hcs+IM Version 5.6

Page I of I

Genemted: 8/2412015 3:19 pMCopyrightO20l0 University of Ftodda, All Rights Reserved

file: / / I C : N ser slkconolly/AppData,ilocallTemp/u2kCE8 I .tmp 8124t2015

B

Undivided

0

'10

0

1 1

7

LTR

618

7.8

10.9

PMPEAK I

0

I

I



TWO.WAY STOP CONTROL SUMMARY

General lnformation Site lnformation
Analyst KS
Agency/Co ssE
Date Performed 7/31/2015
Analysis Time Period AM PEAK

97Sr

a s Year

ntersection
urisdiction

TOTAL

PALlSADES

Proiect Description SPECTRUM BURR RIDGE
Easuwest Street: 9rSf North/South Street: P,4LlSADES
lntersectionOrientation: Easlwest Studv Period (hrs): 0.25

Vehicle Volumes and Adiustments
iraior Street Eastbound Westbound
Movement 1 2 3 4 6

L T R T RL

Volume (veh/h) 5 205 10 5 160 5
Peak-Hour Factor. PHF 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 095 0.95

5 215 10 5 168 5
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h)

Percent Heaw Vehicles 0 0
Median Type Undivided

RT Channelized 0
Lanes 0 1 0 0 1 0
Conliguration LTR LTR
Upstream Siqnal 0 0

l\rinor Street Northbound Southbound
11 12Movement 7 8 9 10

R RT

0 1 5 0 5Volume (veh/h) 5
0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95Peak-Hour Factor, PHF

5 0 1 5 0 5Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h)

0Percent Heavy Vehicles 0 0 0 0 0
0Percent Grade (%) 0

Flared Approach

0 0Storage
00RT Channelized
00 1 0 0 1Lanes

LTRLTRConfiguration

Delay, Queue Lenqth, and Level of Service
Westbound SouthboundApproach Eastbound

10 117 B Il\.4ovement I
LTRLTR LTRLane Configuration LTR

105 6v (veh/h) 5

579 6781356C (m) (vehi h)

0.010.010.00 0.00

0.040.01 0.030.0195% queue length
10.47.7Control Delay (s/veh)
BBA ALOS

10.411.3Approach Delay (siveh)

BApproach LOS

-- --

IE
-

IIIIIII

IIIIIIIIIIIIII

IIII

I

Two-Way Stop Control

HCS+rM Version 5.6

Page 1 of I

Generated: 6/2412015 3:07 PMCopyng @ 2O1O University of Flofida, AllRights Reserved

fi le:///C :fu sers/kconolly/AppData,/Local/Temp/u2kC I ED.tmp 812412015

0

L L T

Northbound

4 12

1416

7.6 11.3

B



TWO-WAY STOP CONTROL SUMMARY

General lnformation lSite lnformation
Analyst KS
Agency/Co. SSE
Dale Performed 7/31/2015
Analysis Time Period PM PEAK

lntersection 97SI@ PALiSADES
Jurisdiction
Analysis Year 2026 TOTAL

Proiect Description SPECTRUM BURR RIDGE
Easwvest Street: 9rSf North/South Street: PALlSADES
lntersection Orientation: East-West Study Period (hrs): 0.25

Vehicle Volumes and Adiustments
Maior Street Eastbound Westbound
Movement 1 2 3 4 6

L T R L T R

Volume (veh/h) 10 5 5 320 5
Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 095 0.95 0.95 0.95
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 10 394 5 5 336 5

Percent Heavy Vehicles 0 o

Median Type Undivided
RT Channelized 0 0

Lanes 0 1 0 0 1

Conflguration LTR
Upstream Siqnal 0 0

Minor Street Northbound Southbound
l\,4ovement 7 8 10 't1 12

T R L T R

Volume (veh/h) 10 0 5 5 0 5
Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95 0.95
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 10 0 5 5 0 5

Percent Heavy Vehicles 0 0 0 0 0
Percent Grade (%) 0 0
Flared Approach

Storage 0 0

RT Channelized 0
1 0 0 1

Configuration LTR LTR

Delay, Queue Length, and Level of Service
Approach North bound Southbound
lvlovement 1 4 7 8 '10 11 12

Lane Configuration LTR LTR LTR LTR
v (vehih) 10 5 15

C (m) (veh/h) 1171 382 437
0.01 0.00 0.44 0.02

95% queue length 0.02 0.01 0.12 0.07
Control Delay (s/veh) 8.0 8.1 14.8 13.4
LOS A A B B
Approach Delay (siveh) 14.8 13.4
Approach LOS B B

-

IIIIIII

IIIIIIIIIIIIIT

IIIII

Two-Way Stop Control

HCS+rM Versio. 5.6 Generated: 8/2412015 3109 PMCopydghl@ 2010 Univercily of Florida, AIt Righls Reserved

fi le:///C :/Users/kcono I lylAppData,/Local/Temp/u2k3F9F.tmp 8t24t2015

Page I of I

0
LTR

L

0

0

Westbound

10

0.95 0.95

0
Lanes 0

Eastbound



TWO-WAY STOP CONTROL SUMMARY

General lnformation Site lnformation
lntersection 97SI@ SKYL/NE
Jurisdiction
Analysis Year EXST/NG

Project Description SPECTRUM BURR RIDGE
East^/Vest Street: 97Sf North/SouthStreet: SKYL/NE
lntersection Orientation: East-West Study Period (hrs): 0.25

Vehicle Volumes and Adiustments
Maior Street Eastbound Westbound
Movement 1 2 3 4 6

L T R L T R

3Volume (veh/h) 5 165 127
0.95 0.95Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 0.95 0.95 1 .00 1.00

Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 5 173 a 0 133 3

Percent Heaw Vehicles 0 a

Undivided[.4edian Type

RT Channelized 0 0
Lanes 0 1 0 0 1 0

Confiquration LT rR
0 0Upstream Signal

l\ilinor Street Northbound Southbound
Movement 7 8 I 10 11 12

L T R L T R

Volume (veh/h) 6 2

Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.95 1.00 0.95

2Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 0 0 6

0 0 0 0 0 0Percent Heavy Vehicles

o 0Percent Grade (%)

Flared Approach

0Storage 0

0RT Channelized 0

oLanes 0 0 0
LRConfiguration

Delay, Queue Length, and Level of Service
SouthboundEastbound Westbound NorthboundApproach

I 10 1'l 121 4 7 8L4ovement

LRLTLane Configuration
85v (veh/h)

7261461C (m) (vehi h)

001ulc 0.00
0.030.0195% queue length

Control Delay (s/veh)
BLOS

10.0Approach Delay (s/veh)
BApproach LOS

II II

-I--

-

I

IIIII IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

Two-Way Stop Control

Hcs+TM Version 5.6

Page I of I

Generated 8/2412015 3:18 PMCopyrightO 201O lJniversity of Florida, All Rights ReseNed

fi le :///C :/Users/kconol lylAppData/Local/Temp/u2kB020.tmp

0o

00

10.0

ssE

i

8124120t5



TWO-WAY STOP CONTROL SUMMARY

General lnformation lsite lnformation
Analyst l,<s
Aqencv/Co. ISSE
Date Performed lu3/2015
Analvsis Time Period IPM PEAK

lntersection grsr @ sKvL/NE
Jurisdiction
Analysis Year EXSI/NG

Proiecl Description SPECTRUM BURR RIDGE
Easwvest Street: 97Sf North/South Street: SKYLiNE
lntersection Orientation: Easlwest Study Period (hrs): 0.25

Vehicle Volumes and Adiustments
Maior Street Eastbound Westbound
lvlovemenl 1 2 3 4 6

L T R L T R

Volume (vehih) 7 262 I
Peak-Hour Factor. PHF 0.95 0.95 1 .00 1.00 0.95 095
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 7 331 0 0 275 8

Percent Heavy Vehicles 0 0
Median Type Undivided
RT Channelized 0 0

Lanes 0 1 0 0 1 0
Conflquration LT TR
Upstream Siqnal o 0

Minor Street Northbound Southbound
l\rovement 7 8 10 11 12

L T R L R

Volume (veh/h) 11 7
Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.95 1.00 0.95
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(vehih) 0 0 0 11 0 7

Percent Heavy Vehicles 0 0 0 0 0
Percent Grade (%) 0 0
Flared Approach

Storage 0

RT Channelized 0 0
Lanes 0 0 0 0 0 0

LR
Delay, Queue Length, and Level of Service
Approach Eastbound Westbound Southbound
Movement I 4 7 8 10 11 12

Lane Configuration LT
v (veh/h) 7 18
C (m) (veh/h) 1291 536

0.01 0.03
95% queue length 0.02 0.10
Control Delay (s/veh) 7.8 11.9
LOS A B
Approach Delay (s/veh) 11.9
Approach LOS B

--

--
II

---

-IIII-IIII

IIIIIIIIIIITITIIIIIII

-

I

IIIIII

II

Two-Way Stop Control

Copyright@ 2010 University of Flodda, All Righis Reserued HcS+rM Version 5.6

Page I of I

Generaled: 6/2412015 3:19 PIL,I

fi le :///C :fu sers/kconol lylAppData/L ocal lT emp I u2k2E A2.tmp 8l24l20ts

T

0

0

Northbound

I

ponfiguration

LR



Two-Way Stop Control

HcS+rM Version 5-6

Page I ol I

Generated: 8/2412015 3:14 Pl\,|CopyrightO 201o Universily of Florida All Rlqhts Reserved

TWO.WAY STOP CONTROL SUMMARY

General lnformation lsite lnformation
Analyst Ks
Aqencyi Co ISSE
Date Performed l7/31/201 5
Analysis Time Period AM PEAK

lntersection 97Sr @ SKyL/A/E
Jurisdiction
Analysis Year 2026 TOTAL

Proiect Description SPECTRUM EURR RIDGE
EastMest Street: 97Sf North/SouthStreet: SKYL/NE
lntersectionOrientation: East-West Study Period (hrs): 0.25

Vehicle Volumes and Adiustments
Maior Street Eastbound Westbound
Movement 2 3 4 5 6

L T R L T R

Volume (veh/h) 5 205 165 5
Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 0.95 0.95 1 .00 0.95 0.95
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 5 215 173 5

Percent Heavy Vehicles 0 0
[.4edian Type Undivided

0 0RT Channelized

Lanes o 1 o 1 o

TRConllguration LT
0Upstream Siqnal o

Northbound SouthboundMinor Street
7 B I 10 11 12Movement
L T R L T R

Volume (veh/h) 5 5
Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.95 1.00 0.95

0 5 5
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h)

0 0 0 0 0 oPercent Heavy Vehicles

Percent Grade (%) 0 0

Flared Approach

0Storage

0 0RT Channelized

0 0 aLanes 0
LRConfiguration

Delay, Queue Length, and Level of Service
SouthboundWestbound NorthboundApproach

8 10 11 121 4l\,4 ovement
LRLTLane Configuration
105v (veh/h)

716C (m) (veh/h) 1410
0.010.00

0.040.0195% queue length
10.17.6Control Delay (s/veh)

BLOS
10.1Approach Delay (s/veh)

BApproach LOS

--

--E

II

IIIIIIII

-IIII

EIIII IIII
IIIIIIIIIIII

fi le :///C :fu sers/kconol lylAppData./Local/Temp/u2k2 E6 I .tmp 812412015

0 0

0

00 0

0

0 0

Eastbound

7

A

1.00

1



TWO-WAY STOP CONTROL SUMMARY

General lnformation lsite lnformation
Analyst Ks
Aqency/Co ISSE
Date Performed l7/31/2015
Analvsis Time Period IPM PEAK

lntersection grsr @ sKvL//vE
Jurisdiction
Analysis Year 2026 TOTAL

Proiect Description SPECRUM BURR RIDGE
Wvest Street: 97Sf orth/South Street: SKYL//VE

0.25ntersectionOrientation: Easlwest Period hrs

Vehicle Volumes and Adiustments
Maior Street Eastbound Westbou nd

1 2 3 4 5 6
L T R L T

Volume (veh/h) 10 375 10

Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 1 .00 1 .00 0.95 0.95
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 10 394 a 0 336 10

Percent Heavy Vehicles 0 0

l/edian Type Undivided

RT Channelized 0 0

Lanes 0 1 0 1 0

Configuration LT TR
Upstream Siqnal 0 0

l\rlinor Street Northbound Southbound
Movement 7 8 10 11 12

L T R R

Volume (vehih) 10 10
Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.95 1.00 0.95
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) a 0 0 10 0 10

Percent Heavy Vehicles 0 0 0 0 0 0

Percent Grade (%) 0 0

Flared Approach

Storage 0 0
RT Channelized 0 0
Lanes 0 0 0 0 0 0
Configuration LR
Delay, Queue Length, and Level of Service
Approach Eastbound Northbound Southbound
Movement ,| 4 I 10 11 12
Lane Conflguration LT LR
v (veh/h) 10

C (m) (veh/h) 1224 491
0.01 004

95% queue length 0.02

Control Delay (s/veh) 12.6
LOS A B
Approach Delay (s/veh) 12.6
Approach LOS B

---

--
II

IITIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII

-I-

E

-

I

IIIr

I

-

Two-Way Stop Control

CopyrightO20l0 University of Florida, All Righis Reserved Hcs+TM Version 5.6

Page I of I

Generated: 6/2412015 3:15 pM

fi le:///C :iUsers/kconol lylAppData,/Local/Temp/u2k5 8E7.tmp 8124t2015

R

320

0

L T

Westbound

7

20

0.13
8.0

Movemenl

0.95 0.95

=



TWO-WAY STOP CONTROL SUMMARY

eneral lnformation ite lnformation

Analyst KS
Aqencv/Co. ISSE
Date Performed l7/31/2015
Analysis Time Period IAM PEAK

lntersection
lL 83 @ RTGHT tN RTGHT
OUT

Jurisdiction
Analysis Year 2026 TOTAL

Proiect Description SPECTRUM BURR RIDGE
asl y'Uest Slreet: RIGHT lN RIGHT OUT orth/South Street: /L 83

0.25ntersectionOrientation: Notih-South Period hrs

Vehicle Volumes and Adiustments
Major Street Northbound Southbound

1 2 3 4 5
L T R T R

Volume (veh/h) 1310 90 775
0.95 1.00Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 1 .00 0.95 0.95 1.00

Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 0 1378 94 0 815 0

Percent Heavy Vehicles 0 0

UndividedLledian Type

RT Channelized 0 0

0 2 1 0 2 0Lanes
Configuration T R T
Upstream Siqnal 0 0

WestboundMinor Street Eastbound
7 B 9 10 11 12

L T R L R

140Volume (veh/h)
Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 1.00 100 1.00 1.00 1 .00 0.95

0Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 0 o 0 0

0 0 o 0 0 0Percent Heavy Vehicles

0 0Percent Grade (%)

Flared Approach

0 0Storage
00RT Channelized

o 0 0 1Lanes 0 0
RConfrquration

Delav, Queue Lenqth, and Level of Service
Westbound EastboundSouthboundApproach

't1 124 7 81Movement
RLane Conflguration

105v (veh/h)
449C (m) (veh/h)
0.23

0.9095% queue length
15.4Control Delay (s/veh)
cLOS

15.4Approach Delay (s/veh)
cApproach LOS

I- I-
E-

----E

I-

IIIIIIIIIIII

IIIIIIIIII

III
-II IIIIII

Two-Way Stop Control

HCS+TM Version 5-6

Page I of I

Generaled: 8/2412015 3:11 PMCopyright@2010 UniveBily of Flonda, AllRighls ReseNed

fi le:///C:/Users/kconolly/AppData/Local/Temp/u2kFA5F.tmp 8t24t2015

T

105

Northbound
10

Movement
LI

Movement



Two-Way Stop Control

Hcs+rM Version 5.6

Page I of I

Genemtedr 8/2412015 3:12 pMCopynghtO2010 University ol Flodda, All Righrs Reserved

TWO.WAY STOP CONTROL SUMMARY

eneral lnformation ite lnformation

Analyst KS
Aqencv/Co lssE
Date Performed lt/31/201s
Analysis Time Period IPM PEAK

lntersection tL 83 @ RTGHT lN RIGHT
OUT

Jurisdiction
AnalVsis Year 2026 TOTAL

Project Descrjption SPECTRUM BURR RIDGE
suwest Street: RIGHT lN RIGHT OUT orth/South Street: /L 83

0.25tntersectionOrientation: Nofth-South Period hrs

Vehicle Volumes and Adjustments
Maior Street Northbound Southbound
l,,lovement 1 2 3 4 5 6

L T R L T R
Volume (veh/h) 75 1145
Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 1.40 0.95 0.95 1 .00 0.95 1 .00
Houriy Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 0 973 78 0 1205 0

Percent Heaw Vehicles 0 0
Median Type Undivided
RT Channelized 0 0
Lanes 0 2 1 2 0
Configuration T R T
Upstream Siqnal 0 0

Minor Street Eastbound Westbound
Movement 7 I '10 't1 12

L T R L R

Volume (veh/h) 100
Peak-Hour Factor, PHF 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.95
Hourly Flow Rate, HFR
(veh/h) 0 0 0 a 0 105

Percent Heavy Vehicles 0 0 0 0 0 0
Percent Grade (%) 0 0

Flared Approach

Storage 0 0
RT Channelized 0 0
Lanes 0 0 0 0 0
Conflouration R

Delav, queue Length, and Level of Service
Approach Northbound Southbound Westbound Eastbound
l\.4ovement 1 4 7 8 '10 11 12
Lane Conflguration R
v (veh/h) 105
C (m) (vehih) 585

0.18
95o/o queue length 0.65
Control Delay (s/veh)

LOS B
Approach Delay (s/veh)

Approach LOS B

-

E

-

E--I-

-

-
I

-

I

IIIIIIIIIIIT

IIIIIIIITrII

-

IIIIrr- III

fi Ie :///C :fu sersikconol lylAppData,/Local/Tempiu2kFC2A.tmp 8l24l20ts

0

T

1

12.5



lL 83 @ Central Ave. - lL 83 @ 91st St.

Controller Timing PIan (MM)2-'l
Plan 1

Phase ,| 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 I 10 't'l 12 13 14 15 '16

Min Green 3 2a 3 8 3 20 3 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

BK I\,,lin Green 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

CS Min Green 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Delay Green 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 1 0 7 0 0 1 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0

Walk 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Ped Clear 0 17 0 0 17 0 36 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Ped Clear 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Ped Clear I\,lax 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Ped CO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Vehicle Ext 30 70 3.0 5.0 30 7.0 30 5.0 00 00 00 00 oo 00 00 00
Vehicle Ext 2 00 0.0 0.0 00 0.0 00 0.0 0.0 o0 00 00 0.0

20 65 15 30 2A 65 15 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Max 2 20 65 15 30 2A 65 15 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

l\rax 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

DYM Max 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
DY[,,l SlP 0.0 00 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 00 00 0.0 0.0 00 0.0 00 0.0 0.0

35 45 45 3.5 45 3.5 00 00 00 00 0.0 00 0.0 00
Red Clear 2.4 1.0 20 10 20 10 20 00 0.0 0.0 00 0.0 00 0.0 00
Red Max 0.0 00 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 00 0.0 0.0 00 0.0 00 0.0 0.0

Red Revert 0.0 0.0 0.0 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 0.0 00 0.0 00
ACT 84 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

SEC/ACT 0.0 15 0.0 00 00 15 00 0.0 00 00 0.0 00 0.0 00 0.0 00
l ax lnt 0 25 0 0 0 25 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 o

Time 84 0 25 0 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cars \M 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

STPT Duc 0.0 00 00 00 0.0 0.0 00 00 00 00 0.0 00 00 0.0 0.0 0.0

Time To Reduce 0 20 0 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o

MnGap 0.0 40 0.0 0.0 00 4A 0.0 0.0 0.0 00 0.0 00 0.0 00 0.0 0.0

1.0



lL 83 @ Central Ave. - lL 83 @ 91st St

Coordination Paftern Data
Pattern Data MM 3-2

Paftern Timing Plan
Actuated
Walk Rest Sequence Phase

Reservice r"tion er"n lllf",n
Vehicle
Perm 'l

Vehicle
Perm 2

Vehicle
Perm 3

1 0 No 0 lo
2 0 No 0 Io
3 o No 0 lo

Pattern Ring Split
Ext I

Ring Split
Ext 2

Ring Split
Ext 3

Ring Split
Ext 4

Split
Demand
Pattern 'l

Split
Demand
Pattern 2

Ring Displ 2 Ring Displ 3 Ring Displ4

1 0 0 o 0

2 0 0 0 0

3 0 0 0 0

S il Preference Phases

S cial Functions

Split Pattern Data (MM)3.3
Coord Phases S liUModes
Split
Pattern Phase Split

T 1 12

1 2 54

T 3 10

1 24
1 5 12

1 6 54

1 1 10

1 8 24

2 1 11

2 2 60

2 3 9

2 4 20
2 5 11

2 6 60

2 7 9

2 8 20

3 1 12

3 2 57

3 3 I
3 4 22
3 5 12

3 6 57

3 1 9

3 8 22

Pattern Split Pattern TS2 Cycle srd(cos) Offset Value Splits ln Offsets In
Actuated
Coord

l 1 130 111 55

2 a-2 150 211

3 150 311 27

Preference 1 Preference 2triilEil

@@@

PhaseSplit
Pattern Mode

1 2 3 4 5 7 8 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

X
Vehicle
Recall

X

Recall
x

Coord X

Vehicle
Recali x x

2
Reca I

X X

3 Coord x

3

3
Recal

!tIIII
Ilr

llEt

I
TllI ltTIIlil

llril
llrllr

lo lruo lo lo o

lo lNo lo lo 0

lo lNo lo lo o

lo 0 lo lo lo
lo 0 lo 0 lo
lo lo lo lo lo

lo-l
12 141

l3 lo-3

[]

Coord

Ltt
l

tT-T
EEFIII[T[

II-TfIFITI

IfT1

1

1

2

2



lL 83 @ Central Ave. - lL 83 @ 91st St.

Time Base Day Planrschedule
Plan

Plan Event Action Plan Start Time
1 1 2 6:00 At4

1 2 1 9:00 A[4
1 3 3 3:30 PL,

1 11 7:00 PM

1 5 100 11:00 Pl',

2 1 7:00 Al\,,1

2 2 11 6:00 P[,
2 3 100 11:00 P[,,!

3 1 1 9:00 A[,
3 11 5:00 P[4

3 3 100 9:00 P[4

Schedule
Schedule Number Day Plan Number Months Days of Week Days of Month

T 1

Jan, Feb, Mar, Apr, Iuay
Jun, Jul, Aug, Sept, Ocl,
Nov, Dec

I\,!on, Tues, Wed, Thurs, Fri

1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11,
12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19,
20,21,22, 23,24, 25, 26,27,
28,29,30,31

2 2
Jan, Feb, Mar, Apr, lvay
Jun, Jul, Aug, Sept, Ocl,
Nov. Dec

Sat

1, 2, 3, 4, 5. 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11,
15, 16, 17, '18, 19,
23,24,25,26,27,
31

12.13,14,
20.21.22,
24.29,30,

3 3
Jan, Feb, Mar, Apr, May,
Jun, Jul, Aug, Sept, Oct,
Nov Dec

Sun

1, 2, 3,4,5,6, 7,8, 9, 10, 11,
12,13, '14,15,16, 17, '18, 19,
20, 21 , 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27 ,

28,25,30,31

l1

lz



Google Earth image of L85'westbound left-turn queue on 91't Street shown as yellow line.

l._"_r l:

l

C2015 Google

L

I
I

-:
rT

-
@

1

U)

f,
j

.:
I'

earthCorryle

I

t:
I

a

.l
{}

*f,#I*'- *,,



wnliJ'iW'li - • • 

I, 

o· J 

·-""'lli•~ .. .... 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~___, 

-~~~)~w,~ 
l'...'.:Ml.l~ASIT'.'+i''' .. 
31:~ .\1NG~~Tt ~~:.'•: 

PllOJ ECTDE.sCRJPTION:: 

~~Ofb\.TOD 

~lW~~~~~~~,& 
Ill.CUC 
~~4 ~~.~'!11 <I ~TRFFl; 

~.:!!! ··-~ 
14.fll ·'f.; 

rLDOll A~U· 
FU · 
Ol'EN SP.t.CE 

~~=~~~~: 
LMNGUIKIS 
lfl MAlfl8Ull.l'.ft:l: 
CH .UNff r11x: 

r~nvs: 
~~. :tl)ff'RO«:E0 1ff\.i 

1 MC 1 STO~ :S kW:. J-J 

MlllN BIJll.L'lllG ~All!K ING SUMMIO': 

~!Mf~~ ~~rf"~ MltNIDC) 

~m-100~~~'1Jt1J: 
P~~{~G R~TI:: 

CC>TlAGCllUl..DINGtoO:lftT: 

MJMlfHOfCO'TTIW~lllJLOING:S 

TOTAL NUIA!lfl! Dl' OOlTMle lMIT:S 

i:mlAGfl'Aft~IN~WMIM!i:r: 

ltEOUl~!:C ~.waiG-
1UHS~ 2 • 

PAA~INGPR~WILlC() 

TOTM.OOTTMil"Pill/M"u:;: • ~JTAilS 
fl'(tll ~TRU1P4ili(ING ON r»Jfllll"IFJIEfllftlj 

COt.!MERCIA~: 

.oi~~=·~e~;: ti~~ill: ~~w,~ ,.,,"" PJO 

<!I OC~- ~f lflfnl_\~lW4.'·: 

~S I H..l.!. •;l:S 1 w. 1tu: 

9/ol1'.Sl.11l.S P~:'-'ICU0:J ~EOOIRDI 

t~H.'i.lSIU(t S=:ESTl'·\t..
4

:c:~ 

~~T~ ~r,lA·-r:&_oc I ivi!lg I ~X.l.rJI'<, 

DEVELOPMENT ST ANDA.RDS 

~lff ~'jl ~C J.b~'DEll J. ~·)'tf "C:6I; 
ltu tlli~il; frdC:m;iee • 21~.(o.(- Sf 

Llil)SO:.f'C~FE.~ 

~~-~,,,~~C ~F.) 

1 Sl' ,'.: t F[l! 3XOS"l.US t "CR(','ffi\l[~'l'lOV[C! 

lllfllNCORPORATEO 
DUPAGE COUNTY 

·---~-~ONING ___ ·-------

·---- CJJ.i~·U 

-:tum.--

··;;:.:,«1;., 

N 
0 ~ 100 w.·....----w 

SCALE IN FEET 

l tlE 

~-·~1.:1 .. 

C~ss 
~::~r~~-:::) 

uJ 

8 
Ci' 
a' 
a' 
:::J 

"' 
(!) 
z 
> 
:J 
a' 
g 
z 
uJ 
Cl) 

:;:, 
:::J 
a' 
f-
'-' uJ 
0.. 
Cl) 

" >:UOO:•<l«l< l :tA:< O"r;: .... I _ 

PRELIMINARY 
SITE PLAN 



--~;;..~~-- I EGFND (PRQPQSFD)· 

- >--@- :>-MtlTMYEMRlolllH 

- ) --@-- ) - Slt11Wa.K6MH 

- )--@- } -l'TOAlllCUUT 
0 YNIDILl!T 

- ·~ flNED EK>NCTIONWMl'RN" . ""'"""""" 
- 11'--(t-W-VICIJl.Tiilll.IMIMloYM.Vll: 

COM lo!CM. r l<NONN "'5 
105521 RCUT"E 83 . HINSD"1...E. L UNOIS 6052 1 

--.--_....., 

, "'----.:::...._ 
( 

r 1 1100 '1 

i w:..~ -~~ 
.-L __ ! ____ , __ _) 

f--------1 

ts. C 
'j 

•, ~~~---t_ ____ _: ·. 

:------: 
:-m ·: w;:.,.. 1' 

: ·--- -; 

····· .. l:::--:----:---:--.--1 ... -···--

D IO 100 

" " iiiiiiiiiil 8CAI.£ IN FEET 

~ -------1· -·---

PREUMlolARY 
ENOINEERINO 

PIAN 

- ' 



PREPARED FOR:
Spectrum Retirement Communities, LLC
200 Spruce Street, Suite 200
Denver, CO 80230
tel: 303.360.8812 fax: 303.360.8814
www.spectrumretirement.com

SPECTRUM SENIOR LIVING  BURR RIDGE
VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE, ILLINOIS

PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE  PLANS

LANDSCAPE PLAN SHEET INDEX

SHEET # SHEET TITLE

CVR COVER SHEET

GENERAL NOTES:

1.  THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO CONTACT J.U.L.I.E., THE COUNTY
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT, THE VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE, AND ANY OTHER PUBLIC OR
PRIVATE AGENCY NECESSARY FOR UTILITY LOCATION PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION.

2.  THIS DRAWING IS PART OF A COMPLETE SET OF BID DOCUMENTS, SPECIFICATIONS,
ADDITIONAL DRAWINGS, AND EXHIBITS.  UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHOULD THESE PLANS
BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES WITHOUT EXAMINING ACTUAL LOCATIONS OF
UTILITIES ON SITE, AND REVIEWING ALL RELATED DOCUMENTS MENTIONED HEREIN,
INCLUDING ANY RELATED DOCUMENTS PREPARED BY THE PROJECT ENGINEERS.

3.  THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT AND CONSULTANTS DO NOT WARRANT OR GUARANTEE
THE ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS OF THE WORK PRODUCT THEREIN BEYOND A
REASONABLE STANDARD OF PROFESSIONAL CARE.

4.  IF ANY MISTAKES, OMISSIONS, OR DISCREPANCIES ARE FOUND TO EXIST WITH THE
WORK PRODUCT, THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT SHALL BE PROMPTLY NOTIFIED SO THAT THEY
MAY HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO TAKE ANY STEPS NECESSARY TO RESOLVE THE ISSUE.
FAILURE TO PROMPTLY NOTIFY THE OWNER AND THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OF SUCH
CONDITIONS SHALL ABSOLVE THEM FROM ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSEQUENCES
OF SUCH FAILURE.

5.  ACTIONS TAKEN WITHOUT THE KNOWLEDGE AND CONSENT OF THE OWNER AND THE
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR IN CONTRADICTION TO THE OWNER AND THE LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT'S WORK PRODUCT OR RECOMMENDATIONS, SHALL BECOME THE RESPONSIBILITY
NOT OF THE OWNER AND THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT BUT FOR THE PARTIES RESPONSIBLE
FOR THE TAKING OF SUCH ACTION.

6.  THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AND/OR DRIVEWAYS ARE LOCATED
ON ENGINEERING DRAWINGS PREPARED BY THE PROJECT ENGINEER, CROSS ENGINEERING
ASSOCIATES. THE MOST CURRENT REVISIONS ARE HEREIN MADE PART OF THIS DOCUMENT.

7.  UNDERGROUND UTILITIES EXIST THROUGHOUT THIS SITE AND MUST BE LOCATED
PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

8.  WHERE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES EXIST, FIELD ADJUSTMENT MUST BE APPROVED BY
A REPRESENTATIVE OF THE OWNER PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

9.  NEITHER THE OWNER NOR THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT ASSUMES RESPONSIBILITY
WHATSOEVER, IN RESPECT TO THE CONTRACTOR'S ACCURACY IN LOCATING THE INDICATED
PLANT MATERIAL.

10.  UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHOULD THESE PLANS BE USED WITHOUT REFERENCING
THE ABOVE MENTIONED DOCUMENTS.

11.  CIVIL ENGINEERING BASE INFORMATION HAS BEEN PROVIDED BY CROSS
ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES.  SEE CROSS ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES DRAWINGS FOR UTILITY
LOCATIONS.  THE LOCATIONS OF VARIOUS UTILITIES ON THIS SET OF DRAWINGS IS ONLY
ILLUSTRATIVE AND SHOULD NOT BE RELIED UPON FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES.

12.  REFER TO CIVIL ENGINEERING DOCUMENTS FOR DETAILED INFORMATION REGARDING
SIZE, LOCATION, DEPTH AND TYPE OF UTILITIES.

13.  LANDSCAPE PLANS CONTAINED HEREIN ILLUSTRATE APPROXIMATE LOCATIONS OF
ALL UTILITIES AS PROVIDED BY CROSS ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES  IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY
OF THE CONTRACTOR TO FIELD VERIFY THEIR ACCURACY.

14.  LOCATIONS OF ALL PLANT MATERIAL ILLUSTRATED ON THE LANDSCAPE PLANS ARE
APPROXIMATE.  FINAL LOCATIONS SHALL BE DETERMINED IN THE FIELD.

15.  LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL REFER TO THE PROVIDED WRITTEN SPECIFICATIONS
WHEN LOCATING AND PLANTING SPECIFIED PLANT MATERIAL.

16. CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE SOD IS PLACED BELOW SIDEWALK AND PATIO ELEVATIONS
TO ALLOW FOR PROPER DRAINAGE.

17. A NEW, FULLY AUTOMATIC IRRIGATION SYSTEM IS TO BE INSTALLED FOR ALL AREAS
WITH NEW LANDSCAPE PLANTINGS.

EXISTING SITE INFORMATION

THE EXISTING SITE INFORMATION INDICATED ON THIS PLAN WAS PROVIDED BY CROSS
ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES.

THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT MAKES NO WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION WITH REFERENCE
TO THE ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS OF THE EXISTING CONDITIONS INDICATED OR NOT
INDICATED ON THIS DOCUMENT.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THE LOCATION OF ALL
EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS INCLUDING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

THE PLANS CONTAINED HEREIN HAVE BEEN PREPARED TO MEET CERTAIN LANDSCAPING
ORDINANCE REQUIREMENTS.  ANY DEVIATION FROM THESE PLANS MAY RENDER THEM IN
NON COMPLIANCE WITH THE VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE LANDSCAPING ORDINANCE.

WEST LANDSCAPE PLAN

EAST LANDSCAPE PLAN

SITE LOCATION AERIAL
Scale: 1"=100'

LP-2

REVISIONS

DATE DESCRIPTION

. .

PREPARED BY:
Allen L Kracower & Associates, Inc.
900 North Shore Drive, Suite 205
Lake Bluff, Illinois 60044
tel: 847.604.9600  fax: 847.604.9601
www.kracower.com

91ST STREET

LP-3 STORMWATER LANDSCAPE PLAN

LP-1

PROJECT LOCATION

PRINCIPAL:

S
P

E
C

T
R

U
M

 S
E

N
IO

R
 L

IV
IN

G
 B

U
R

R
 R

ID
G

E

PUD SUBMITTAL 7-15-15

21510

COPYRIGHT
The drawings, designs, ideas, specifications, and other documents contained within and prepared by the Landscape Architect /
Land Planner for this project are instruments of the Landscape Architect's / Land Planner's service for use solely with respect to
this project and, unless otherwise provided, the Landscape Architect / Land Planner shall be deemed the author of these
documents and shall retain all common law, statutory, and other reserved rights,including the copyright.  This drawing is not to
be reproduced without the expressed written consent of Allen L. Kracower & Associates, Inc.

A
LL

E
N

 L
. K

R
A

C
O

W
E

R
&

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
S

, I
N

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

D

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
TS

 - 
U

R
B

A
N

 P
LA

N
N

E
R

S
 - 

R
E

A
L 

E
S

TA
TE

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
N

TS
90

0 
N

O
R

TH
 S

H
O

R
E

 D
R

IV
E

, S
U

IT
E

 2
05

 |
 L

A
K

E
 B

LU
FF

 IL
LI

N
O

IS
 6

00
44

C
O

V
E

R

CVR

LD

LD

LD

AS SHOWN

7-1-15

PROJECT NUMBER: DESIGNED BY:

REVIEWED BY:

PROJECT MANAGER:

SCALE:

DATE:

SHEET NUMBER:

ISSUED FOR: DATE:

S
H
E
E
T
 T
IT
LE

:

B
U

R
R

 R
ID

G
E

, I
LL

IN
O

IS

56

LP-4 PLANT LIST
TP-1 TREE PRESERVATION / REMOVAL WEST

TP-2 TREE PRESERVATION/ REMOVAL  EAST REV. PUD SUBMITTAL 09-16-15



72
0

72
0

72
0

720

720

72
0

71
9

719
718

71
8

72
1

721

72
2

721
723

726

722
721

710

720
720

720
720

719

722
722

722

723

721 720 719
719

718
718

771
8

71
8

71
2 71

1

70
9

8

712713

711712713714715716
717

71
071

0

71
0

71
0

71
0

710

71
1

71
1

711
712

71
2

71
2

712 711

713

71
3

71
3

71
4

71
4

714

71
4716

717

718

719

721

72
1

721

71
7

71
7

71
7

717
716

71
8

71
9

719

71
9

719

71
8

718

711

711

71

711

711

709

709

709

709

710

710

710
719 718

718

711
711
710

709

11

11
9

10

5

5

5

15

15

709
711

8

12

8

10

12 10
21

10

4

14

9

4

19

6

14

10

16

10

12

15

HWL 717.0

HWL 717.0

NWL 712

NWL 712

12
HWL 717.0

720

720

719

72
1

721

72
2

723

24+00

720

71
4

717

718

719

. LD

LD

LD

AS NOTED

7-1-15

PROJECT NUMBER: DESIGNED BY:

REVIEWED BY:

PROJECT MANAGER:

SCALE:

DATE:

SHEET NUMBER:

ISSUED FOR: DATE:

S
H
E
E
T
 T
IT
LE

:

B
U

R
R

 R
ID

G
E

, I
lli

no
is

PRINCIPAL:

S
P

E
C

TR
U

M
 S

E
N

IO
R

 L
IV

IN
G

 B
U

R
R

 R
ID

G
E

A
LL

E
N

 L
. K

R
A

C
O

W
E

R
&

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
S

, I
N

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

D

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
TS

 - 
U

R
B

A
N

 P
LA

N
N

E
R

S
 - 

R
E

A
L 

E
S

TA
TE

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
N

TS
90

0 
N

O
R

TH
 S

H
O

R
E

 D
R

IV
E

, S
U

IT
E

 2
05

 |
 L

A
K

E
 B

LU
FF

 IL
LI

N
O

IS
 6

00
44

PUD Submittal 7-15-15

REV. PUD Submittal 09-16-15

P
R

E
L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N
-W

E
S

T

LP-1

WEST PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE PLAN
RTHSCALE: 1"=30'

1



69
5

700

705

690

71
0

71
0

710

710

710

710

720
720

718
718

771
8

71
8

71
2 71

1

70
9

8

711712713

70
9

70
9

70
9

70
9

709

709 708

708

70
8

70
7

706

707

706

706
707

711712713714715716
717

71
1

711

711

71
1

701

702

699

698

697

69
6

694

693

691

689
688

02

68
8

688

68
8

688

68
8

687
68

7

68
6

686

71
071

0

71
0

71
0

71
0

710

71
1

71
1

711
712

71
2

71
2

712 711

713

71
3

71
3

71
4

71
4

714

71
4

71
3

712

711

716

717

718

719

721

72
1

721

71
7

71
7

71
7

717
716

71
8

71
9

719

71
9

719

71
8

718

703

681

68
1

68
1

681

681

68
0

68
0

711
711
710

709 6

681680

680

680 679

679

679
678

678

678
677

677

677

67
9

15

15

702 696

695

69
5

69
6

70
2

70
3

70
3

70
2

68
5

10

HWL 717.0

HWL 687

HW
L 6

87

HW
L 6

87

HWL 687

NWL 682.0

NW
L 6

82
.0

NW
L 6

82
.0

NWL 682.0NWL 712

_8+00

720

71
4

717

718

719

. LD

LD

LD

AS NOTED

7-1-15

PROJECT NUMBER: DESIGNED BY:

REVIEWED BY:

PROJECT MANAGER:

SCALE:

DATE:

SHEET NUMBER:

ISSUED FOR: DATE:

S
H
E
E
T
 T
IT
LE

:

B
U

R
R

 R
ID

G
E

, I
lli

no
is

PRINCIPAL:

S
P

E
C

TR
U

M
 S

E
N

IO
R

 L
IV

IN
G

 B
U

R
R

 R
ID

G
E

A
LL

E
N

 L
. K

R
A

C
O

W
E

R
&

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
S

, I
N

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

D

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
TS

 - 
U

R
B

A
N

 P
LA

N
N

E
R

S
 - 

R
E

A
L 

E
S

TA
TE

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
N

TS

90
0 

N
O

R
TH

 S
H

O
R

E
 D

R
IV

E
, S

U
IT

E
 2

05
 |

 L
A

K
E

 B
LU

FF
 IL

LI
N

O
IS

 6
00

44

PUD Submittal 7-15-15

REV. PUD Submittal 09-16-15

P
R

E
L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N
-E

A
S

T

LP-2RTH

SCALE: 1"=30'1 EAST PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE PLAN



725725 724 723
722721 722

723 724 726

723

726

71
5

720

720
720

725

719 718 717 716

719
718

718 718
717

716

714

724
723 722

721

722
722

722

723

721

715

720 719
719

718
718

714

71
6

71
771

8
71

8

71
4 71

3
71

2 71
1

71
712

717
716

71
8

71
9

711

711

711

711

711

711

711

709

709

709

709

709
709

710

710

710

710

710

710

711
711

711

719 718

718

711
711

711
710

710
709

709

717
716

715

715

11

11
9

10

5

5

5

15

15

709

709

711

711

713.5

12 10
21

10

4

14

HWL 717.0

HWL 717.0

HWL 717.0
HWL 717.0

NWL 712

NWL 712
NWL 712

NWL 712

NWL 712
HWL 717.0

725725 724 723
722721

723 724 726

723

71
5

71
0

70
5

690
71

0

710

710

718
718

71
6

71
771

8
71

8

71
4 71

3
71

2 71
1

70
9

70
8

70
7

70
6

711712713

70
9

70
9

689
688

70
4

70
3 70

2

68
8

688

688

688

68
8

688

68
8

688
687

687

68
7

68
6

686

686

68
4

68
3

68
2

71
071

0
71

1

711
712

71
2

71
3

71
4

721

71
7

717
716

71
8

71
9

703

696 694 693 692 691

681

68
1

68
1

681

681

681

68
0

68
0

711

711
711

711
710

710
709

709

681

681680

680

680 679

679

679
678

678

678
677

677

677

67
9

15

15

70
1

69
9

69
8

69
7

702 696

695

69
5

69
6

70
2

70
3

689

68
5

68
5

10

HWL 717.0

HWL 687

HWL 687

HW
L 6

87

HW
L 6

87

HWL 687

HWL 687

NWL 682.0

NWL 682.0

NW
L 6

82
.0

NW
L 6

82
.0

NWL 682.0

NWL 682.0

NWL 712

71
4

. LD

LD

LD

AS NOTED

7-1-15

PROJECT NUMBER: DESIGNED BY:

REVIEWED BY:

PROJECT MANAGER:

SCALE:

DATE:

SHEET NUMBER:

ISSUED FOR: DATE:

S
H
E
E
T
 T
IT
LE

:

B
U

R
R

 R
ID

G
E

, I
lli

no
is

PRINCIPAL:

S
P

E
C

TR
U

M
 S

E
N

IO
R

 L
IV

IN
G

 B
U

R
R

 R
ID

G
E

A
LL

E
N

 L
. K

R
A

C
O

W
E

R
&

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
S

, I
N

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

D

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
TS

 - 
U

R
B

A
N

 P
LA

N
N

E
R

S
 - 

R
E

A
L 

E
S

TA
TE

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
N

TS

90
0 

N
O

R
TH

 S
H

O
R

E
 D

R
IV

E
, S

U
IT

E
 2

05
 |

 L
A

K
E

 B
LU

FF
 IL

LI
N

O
IS

 6
00

44

PUD Submittal 7-15-15

REV. PUD Submittal 09-16-15

P
R

E
L
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 P

L
A

N
-S

T
O

R
M

W
A

T
E

R
 A

R
E

A
S

LP-3

WEST STORMWATER PRELIMINARY PLANTING PLAN

EAST STORMWATER PRELIMINARY PLANTING PLAN

RTH
SCALE: 1"=30'2

1 SCALE: 1"=30'



... 
j!lildlllJNt ~~~~~~---~~~~~---~~~'--~~~~~ 
ltt';IA ,.,._~_.--.4.816f'r9;vw A.;1.1m81W~ •C. M 

N:;1qs At:M•.,-•A.Ntr9.ollll ~11at11.....,.. !IC. w 
A(MA f<•~~~l.tM'"'IO U.•<lltl,.._._.~ 3'¢9 AA 

~." ........ ""*'°"' M....ir>'-'w- 1.l(Jllf •C. ~flli 
C.11.~.MCt•~----~rri~-'""' 3'Cllll l'ee --+-----< 
G'1!d'M~·~,.. ~,..M..l"f>Jb:.i11 J'Cll AB 

c..~CllCIC4 l(p'"'°' C.C....11"9 .1'C. ue 
.,.,_.~~Ch"'°"" OwtCMierc.e.,'- c-o:.i fue 

""5 __ !i',:A~ nA""'-15er! "'(lf?:!~Ptw----·~------< 
Olfll O.C1Aba*7 ...... 'P 'Al •09il J"Cll AR 

Cl.lift 0...Cl.4~ 

01.MU 0.-:.""" ...... ~I 
JIAU foiil....,,....arwA.i$rU'd' 

~ 11""41allpt l llil"'°>" 
~~~11 .... 

~ 
i;.._.,o._ 

"9111N'rdA.~l.IOtf 

,._""'~....,.n 

NI/CO ~C(FQllOt W'wi.~ '"' AOCO ""-""CO'lCOlcr ....,.,,, ,.,_ '° H1 
AOCO At .. c~ W'•1tif 11H1 
PQ p .. ~~~~ ~kHiltSrl.Q ttft' 

PQ. ? .... Sl*!•Olr'a:..:..:'~·----~"""-"' ... -"""""°==""-----"'0~HI"---" 
PG. P.:..~~41 f',.ir:kHlll~ l?HT 
P()M p._ .. O'l'ICJI I.Ji y.,._,.~.... • tft 
PC»i4 p,._O"W;lllll S..1 ..,~1 .. u t QHf 

Pt:)l.4 P .... O"'l"ll UJ S.1tiwt .1 • 

PA.I P<-~ 

Pf'\J p~P"?!"'=---------= 
M.I POM~ 

~L l'<CM.,_. 

PSMr P< .. _.,.. 
f'!Ml. P-....,... 
JHOC T"'-411QOCOerl'a.a Tro:t't"f 
THOS T"f&o::>OOIWll•• T~ 
o. .. , ....... ,~ 

"""" au 
COR 

1,1,lff; ""·"'~~ 
~ Spttv.:aJilflClJ~ 

12'K1 Bii 

... , ~ .. •OHi 

tZHT 
IOHl 8B "" fi 
ltfT P8 .. 

t.w ..... ~ ,.,, 

~~-~Oc:ljjowo:iolHT Rf! 

~..._.Cl~ a HT t.s 
•~TrwUac ttf'T dB 

l 

__, __ 
~~..C:«en 

•"'.:!i'.1.~"" 
.-.s.. ....... 
~S,«- I --~s.,..c'"""" 

·~~-"'*' fi,..,Sr«,._ 
~$f«4"llll\ 

HNw',5(:-.cm.in 

........,Sf.«6*' 

Alt'.A lvWlll"'""' lo:.•• lf'fl41... '4 M 

C:OSE ~~··-----~-~---~CtC'.AL~+-----< 
f'Uo'l.. E..icrorrrutolldtlA~ l'.>-t&.nW'gtu11 J6 Ill 

HIU +~f ho.A<ll• t..llle~ l.£1nl.r(IHJ$1,..._,. ~"- U8 
1-M>A ~V-N•Nill'l.O• JM!h9 .. 8•tcltt'¥1t~• 

Pt<)P "'Y'"~q'UUo1tS.•-""'- S. 1-W#9~Nr..rwll 

,,,,..l.Ofifri1JQ'lf"ll~ 

IV'll::c.ACM.ftlm 

kd. ... ~"·· 
0.-tll'.oelnl.JIM:: 

... 

"""' 

411..bl•~tr..ll"'*f!l 

CPCA ~.!-''f""Coant~ 
~r ~ .. Sf.-.o.Oia 

,...,._.,.., ·c~...-

~="':'c=•~---,,~---'~~ ~u ..,,., ,_,_ 
.UOCA 1,1o~.,..1r!.t~h11C-t_l-r 

HAf'C tWCli,...,.~,..., ..... ig~ .. Dl!b:9 Ill• 
r ....... C#la"'ll IC'.A&. 

P/laJ P~•~ .. t:t.a 'lofUot"\o•Creep.et 1<W_ :t 

PA\111 P~S;_d~~·•l_M.:!.w'_ ~...,...,S..:~0.- ;?_CM,. _I 

NN. .,._.,.1"'.iw"°"'''dM """""°"'* 11.:-AL 
R.f\J lheit-~ ·~~'*'Ct-'"""~~----~·"'llC~S... !GAL 
SPHT ~~ Ptai<.~$eeo1 tGAt_ 

~M1• 

Pfr'rilfl1..,~"1H't\rit' ,,....,_..l""I.,.,._,_ 
f\.dlet*Vgdi o.Jd•1.1• 

k~f(UY .... ('"..-;

Fo,n.W'tQo

k.lifytd.$.a.aitl 

..... --..,.._ ----
pr .... ~. 

...i.llQN ... 

~l)l#IJllODN'-,.,.... 

JCILIQl"blal'ng------,.,,. ... ~ 

.................. --

............. ent ...... -- "" ...... 
"•"'l'Jo 

0 .11r1hty """ 

"" ""' 200 ""' 

""' ""' '"" .... 
200 ..... 

""' ""' 200 .... 
200 .... 

""' .... ""' .... 

...... ..... 
"" .... 
"" .... 
200 .... 

""' .... "" .... ""' .... "" .... 
200 .... 

"' .... "" .... "" .... 

§ 
..... 

-!?· 
~....... T 

"'' "" ""' 
Wet-.. ........ -- --- ........ 
AltWN ~~ CCll"'l'ICJ'..,Ppilrcwl 

~ ~ lllll'll'!lp~ 

..... ~.. --~~-..... 
C.11• ~ ~ty-'Q9 

c..- 0\811.... CJ'9111!1(t ..... ..,,,,. 

C.11• ...... ~lye.!~~ 

en. .upil'nltlo fllll'M'I•-. 
r..,.._. ~ ~ ..... 'Mldr,. 

~ 9lll&a IUllllNtNQ-
.. 'tWO"'IC4 l"'9119 
N'IC\& ..-,.,. (CW"'fTIO'l1"91 

i...... ~· ~~ 
llll>llhll ~a O'MlbUllllX*'ll 
Ldii..-. ~ .,._,,..,..,.. 

l)IC.Wla ~~~ 

Ym.M ~ lr'ONy .... 

,.,,,~ ~ t)t(:fl~ 

....,,.,..,.. - ,,.._ 
Slglt.WWll illlkilill ~8r!ORt"IMd 

bJ)la "*""""' woo.-
5pbo;.-""" ~ COl"'l'V'IW_, 

.... ""' 
"'-"'" 

" -.. -,, -,, -
216 _. 

,. -,, -,. -,. -.. -
02 -

2' -,, -
" -" -., _ 
" -" -" -" ,,, -
,, -,. -

--.,..,, .... 

--~"""'"""" -...-.... 
~.t: .... ~ - ....... ------------~-""""""'"'"'-'-· -..-. --·-°"""'l""" ....... ·-E~'fl.«*:J·~ --...... _. 
._..._ -·......_._......, --· --... "'°'*""~""~ ....... _ 
......_. .... ........,.._ -~~11191111 _,_ 
Tt~!.A~ 
_ _.. 

-.... ... 
v.cnr.....,.,. ... ~ 

... o.t.~ ..... 
,.,.,.c.-,1r,1 • 
~WIQF\iie ...... .,.. 
s-a
l.~t•~ 

C:0-<WN"f'l0. _.,. 
,_ ..... -C..-M-
6.AWt)-11•""«1 --.,,_ ..... _ 
'-w[ng....,,,.., 

~W~lf'<J-00 _ ... 
""'"-' .. ... ._.. 
-MwPr.-..c:ao.,., 

"""".._.,_ 
.. l'Cll ....... "-" 

8'!ml~P\lo'plt~ 

R.t~ .. "-
ltutd~~Cb9 

~·a1119StM 
NIOL.-. ,, .. ,......, 
"'~"""" 
~llmllldt~ 

ttllry .. t~ 

~ ................. rt 

-~ _..,...._ 
s.....a..c.u-..:tS.-
.. __ 
··-.,,._,,,.,,_. 

................. 
s. ..... -...... 
""" "'"' 
"'"' 

-....... ---... ~. -.. .---....... 

_..., -..
GOlf'f'V'lf.-::0~ 

____ 
- .. _ 
..... ....,.,. .. ........ _ 
... bli••~ - ·.......-..... 

PIS .,.,__ 
'"' •oo 

"'"" "" "" '""" """" '"'"" 050 

050 

'"' '"" 01' 

"" ... 
200 ,,., 
soo 

"" •50 ... 
•oo 
100 

•oo 
200 ... 
'"" .,. 
'"' ... 
050 

'"' '"' soo 

'"' 050 

"" 050 

07' 

'"' ,,. .,. 

"" ..... """"""' ..... 
"" -"" .... "" ..... 
"""'"" ""' .... ... ""° """"-

w 
Cl 
0 
a: 
a: a: 
:::> 
m 
Cl-~ 
z~ 
~ ui 
_J CJ 

a:~ 
0 
z~ 
w :::> 
C/J CD 

:.:ii! 
:::> a: 
1-
(.) 
w 
a.. 
C/J 

ASNOllD LD 

M·tl5 LD 



. LD

LD

LD

AS NOTED

7-1-15

PROJECT NUMBER: DESIGNED BY:

REVIEWED BY:

PROJECT MANAGER:

SCALE:

DATE:

SHEET NUMBER:

ISSUED FOR: DATE:

S
H
E
E
T
 T
IT
LE

:

B
U

R
R

 R
ID

G
E

, I
lli

no
is

PRINCIPAL:

S
P

E
C

TR
U

M
 S

E
N

IO
R

 L
IV

IN
G

 B
U

R
R

 R
ID

G
E

A
LL

E
N

 L
. K

R
A

C
O

W
E

R
&

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
S

, I
N

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

D

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
TS

 - 
U

R
B

A
N

 P
LA

N
N

E
R

S
 - 

R
E

A
L 

E
S

TA
TE

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
N

TS
90

0 
N

O
R

TH
 S

H
O

R
E

 D
R

IV
E

, S
U

IT
E

 2
05

 |
 L

A
K

E
 B

LU
FF

 IL
LI

N
O

IS
 6

00
44

PUD Submittal 7-15-15

REV. PUD Submittal 09-16-15

T
R

E
E

 P
R

E
S

E
R

V
A

T
IO

N
 /

 R
E

M
O

V
A

L
 P

L
A

N

TP-1

TREE PRESERVATION / REMOVAL PLAN- WEST1 Not to Scale

Trees to be Removed

LEGEND

NO. 382

6"

Existing Tree to be Removed

Trees to be Removed



. LD

LD

LD

AS NOTED

7-1-15

PROJECT NUMBER: DESIGNED BY:

REVIEWED BY:

PROJECT MANAGER:

SCALE:

DATE:

SHEET NUMBER:

ISSUED FOR: DATE:

S
H
E
E
T
 T
IT
LE

:

B
U

R
R

 R
ID

G
E

, I
lli

no
is

PRINCIPAL:

S
P

E
C

TR
U

M
 S

E
N

IO
R

 L
IV

IN
G

 B
U

R
R

 R
ID

G
E

A
LL

E
N

 L
. K

R
A

C
O

W
E

R
&

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

TE
S

, I
N

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
TE

D

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
TS

 - 
U

R
B

A
N

 P
LA

N
N

E
R

S
 - 

R
E

A
L 

E
S

TA
TE

 C
O

N
S

U
LT

A
N

TS
90

0 
N

O
R

TH
 S

H
O

R
E

 D
R

IV
E

, S
U

IT
E

 2
05

 |
 L

A
K

E
 B

LU
FF

 IL
LI

N
O

IS
 6

00
44

PUD Submittal 7-15-15

REV. PUD Submittal 09-16-15

T
R

E
E

 P
R

E
S

E
R

V
A

T
IO

N
 /

 R
E

M
O

V
A

L
 P

L
A

N

TP-2

TREE PRESERVATION / REMOVAL PLAN-EAST1 Not to Scale

LEGEND

NO. 382

6"

Existing Tree to be Removed

Existing Tree Line to Remain
Selective Removal at the Direction of the
Landscape Architect per Final Grading

NO. 323

6"

Existing Tree to be Saved



West

SPECTRUM BURR RIDGE
600 Emerson Rd. Suite 401    .    St Louis, Missouri 63141    .    p:314.521.0123    .    www.vesselarchitecture.com

ELEVATIONS
East

North

South

0 5' 10' 20'

SCALE: 1/16"=1'-0"

LEVEL 1
0'-0"

LEVEL 2
11'-2"

TOP OF ROOF
36'-0"

Enlarged Entry

LEVEL 1
0'-0"

LEVEL 2
11'-2"

TOP OF ROOF
36'-0"

LEVEL 1
0'-0"

LEVEL 2
11'-2"

TOP OF ROOF
36'-0"

HIGHEST POINT
39'-0"

LEVEL 1
0'-0"

LEVEL 2
11'-2"

TOP OF ROOF
36'-0"

HIGHEST POINT
39'-0"

8/20/15



SPECTRUM BURR RIDGE
600 Emerson Rd. Suite 401    .    St Louis, Missouri 63141    .    p:314.521.0123    .    www.vesselarchitecture.com

RENDERING

Enlarged Entry

8/20/15



SPECTRUM BURR RIDGE
600 Emerson Rd. Suite 401    .    St Louis, Missouri 63141    .    p:314.521.0123    .    www.vesselarchitecture.com

RENDERING
8/20/15



SPECTRUM BURR RIDGE
600 Emerson Rd. Suite 401    .    St Louis, Missouri 63141    .    p:314.521.0123    .    www.vesselarchitecture.com

ELEVATIONS

Side Side

0 5' 10'

SCALE: 3/16"=1'-0"

LEVEL 1
0'-0"

EAVE HEIGHT
10'-0"

HIGHEST POINT
18'-7 3/4"

LEVEL 1
0'-0"

EAVE HEIGHT
10'-0"

HIGHEST POINT
18'-7 3/4"

LEVEL 1
0'-0"

EAVE HEIGHT
10'-0"

HIGHEST POINT
18'-7 3/4"

Front

Rear

20'1'

8/20/15



12'-0"
2'-0" 8'-0" 2'-0"

8"
1'

-4
"

8"

2'
-8

"

~21'-6" -  DIMENSIONS TO BE COORDINATED
WITH WASTE COMPANY

9'
-0

"

VERIFY W/ WASTE COMPANY VERIFY W/ WASTE COMPANY

20
'-1

0"

10'-10"

11
'-4

"

10
'-8

"

11'-7 1/2"

STRUCTURES

TOP OF WALL
6'-4"

8/20/15
SPECTRUM BURR RIDGE

600 Emerson Rd. Suite 401    .    St Louis, Missouri 63141    .    p:314.521.0123    .    www.vesselarchitecture.com

Transformer Enclosure Trash Enclosure

Plan

Front

Side

Monument Sign

TOP OF STONE
5'-9"

FrontSide

Plan

SITE

FrontSide

Plan

TOP OF STONE
6'-4"

TOP OF STONE
6'-4"

LEVEL 1
0'-0"

           LEVEL 1
0'-0"

           LEVEL 1
0'-0"

LEVEL 1
0'-0"



VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE
COMMUT{IW DEVETOPM ENT DEPARTM ENT

STAFF REPORT AND SUMMARY

Z-13-2015:15W300 South Frontage Road (Vega Hospitality); Requests special use approval as
per Sections VIII. C.2.w and VIII.A.9 of the Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance to permit additions
to an existing hotel and remodeling of the building faqade.

Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission / Zoning Board of Appeals
Greg Trzupek, Chairman

Doug Pollock, AICP
Community Development Director

September 21, 2015

Petitaoner:

Property Owner:

Exasting Zoning:

Existing Land Use:

Sate Area:

Subdivision:

Vega Hospitality Group

Suresh Sukhramani

Hotel Owner and Manager t

B-2 General Business District

Hotel

Approximately 4 Acres

None

Land Use Plan: Recommends Commercial Uses

EE@

E

Prepar€d For:

Prepared By:

Date of Hearing3

GENERAL INFORMATION

Petitione/s
Status:

t-

R.2A

=f

ts

m7Z



Staff Report and Summary
2-13-2015: 15W300 South Frontage Road (Vega Hospitality)
Page 2 of 3

SUMMARY

The owner of the hotel at 15W300 South Frontage Road is in the process of changing the hotel to
a Crown PlazaHotel. It was previously a Quality Inn and is currently operating as The Oaks Hotel.
The conversion ofthe hotel to a Crown PlazaHotel includes construction of two building additions,
remodeling of the interior and exterior of the building, and resurfacing and landscaping of the
parking lot and parking lot perimeter.

Hotels are categorized as special uses in the B-2 District. Any expansion of a special use requires
the review and approval of a new special use application. The proposed building additions include
a 971 square foot addition to be used as office space and a 2,299 square foot addition to be used
as additional meeting and banquet facilities.

A special use is also required for the review and approval of the site and building plans related to
a building addition in the B-2 District. Building elevations, a site plan, and landscaping plan have
been provided.

Comrrliance with the Zoning Ordinance

Subsequent to publication of notices for this hearing, it has been determined that the proposed
additions do not comply with the maximum permitted floor area ratio or the minimum required
parking. The current floor area already exceeds the maximum permitted floor area. The maximum
permitted floor area for the property, based on a 0.40 floor area ratio, is 73,215 square feet. The
existing floor area rs 73,520 square feet. The combined floor area of the building additions is
3,270 square feet. The FAR would be increased to 0.419.

It has also been determined that the number of parking spaces does not comply with the Zoning
Ordinance. There are a total of 197 parking spaces and the ZoningOrdinance requires 204 parking
spaces.

Site and Buildins Plan Review

Section VIII.A.9 of the Zoning Ordinance requires that all new building additions are subject to
site and building plan review by the Plan Commission and approval by the Board of Trustees. The
proposed building additions are part of a larger building fagade remodeling. Building elevations
have been provided and are attached.

The petitioner also intends to resurface the parking lot and repair perimeter curbing. Landscaping
islands within the parking lot and perimeter landscaping is also planned.

Findings of Fact and Recommendations

The petitioner intends to request variations for the floor area ratio and the parking requirements.
The notices for this hearing did not include those variations. Thus, new notices will have to be
provided before the Plan Commission can make a final recommendation on this request. In the
meantime, the petitioner would like to proceed with the fagade remodeling and would like the
Commission to open the public hearing and review the building elevations so that they may
proceed with some of the fagade remodeling work while waiting for the consideration of the



Staff Report and Summary
2-13-2015: 15W300 South Frontage Road (Vega Hospitality)
Page 3 of3

floor area ratio and parking variations. Ifthe variations are not approved, the petitioner would
proceed with the remodeling without the additions.

It is stafls recommendation that the Plan Commission open the public hearing for discussion and
public comments and then continue the hearing to October 19,2Ol5 lbr a new legal notice.



Burr Ridge Crowne Plaza Conversion
Business Plan

Vega Hospitality Group of Burr Ridge, IL (VHG) proposes the redevelopment of an
existing Hotel at 3oo S. Frontage Road, County of DuPage, Burr Ridge, IL. The project will include a
complete interior and exterior renovation of the building and re-branding of the hotel by converting it into
a full service Crowne Plaza franchise.

Burr Ridge is the first and last hotel district in and out of Chicago on Interstate 55. It is a very young and
upscale community having a median income of $r89,5o7 and average home value of $527,9o8 (as per
Wikipedia).

Burr Ridge is a very strong business travelers market and frankly, business travelers don't stay at a Quality
Inn, especially the current state of the hotel. However, once the hotel is renovated, we will be able to
increase the profits significantly. The project will be at least 4-6 months. The renovation will consist of
new windows, exterior, roof units and new PTAC units well as all new FF&E, a complete interior and
exterior facelift.

Upon reopening, the property will be managed by Cheseapeake Hospitality Group. The current hotels in
the market set are a Full service Marriot and a Springhill Suites which are doing very well.

AII areas within the hotel will be completely modernized including the conference rooms, banquet hall,
restaurant, lounge, reception area, common areas and guest rooms. The new contemporary environment
will create a unique experience for guests who will benefit from the modern amenities, warm atmosphere
and exceptional services expected in a top quality hotel.

The redevelopment and modernization of this hotel will be a valuable asset to the Burr Ridge
community and the County of DuPage, IL. It will increase economic activity by attracting
additional leisure and business travelers to the area and by appealing to both groups within one
setting, thus helping to enhance the area as a point-of-destination for hospitality, entertainment
and food/beverage services. The hotel will complement local businesses and foster sustainability and
economic growth in the area through the creation of approximately 30 new jobs and the increase of tax
revenues. The hotel is a z4l7 operation. The redevelopment of this hotel and resulting aesthetic
enhancement will be visible from the Stevenson Expressway (l-55) to approximately 16o,8oo vehicles per
day. This development will have a significant and positive community impact, and will help promote the
growth and stability of the Village of Burr Ridge and Counry of DuPage, IL.

Vega Hospitality Group acquired the property in June, zoo9. At the time of purchase, the
rz5-room hotel was a independent hotel under-performing as a privately owned building in dilapidating
conditions; However, VHG saw great potential as the building is ideally positioned near the busy
exPressway interchange of I-55 and l-294, and in close proximity to Midway Airport and the city
of Chicago, IL. VHG made substantial investments to improve the building, and successfirlly
branded the hotel as a Quality Inn franchise.

Despite the physical and operational enhancements incorporated by VHG, the Quality Inn Hotel
of Burr Ridge has severe disadvantages that cause it to lose a significant market share on a regular basis.
The Hotel is one of the oldest commercial structures in Burr Ridge, IL. As such, the interLr/exterior
finishes of the building, including windows, doors, walls, floors, and fixtures in addition to many other
features, are in urgent need of replacement, upgrade and modernization. VHG will perform a complete
facelift and gut-rehab of the building, and will enhance it to meet the standards of a new Crown plaza Aotel
fianchise. An important part of the improvement will be the expansion of the banquet and conference



facilities and addition of a business center and new business services for guests. These improvements will
enable the hotel to secure additional business by appealing to business and leisure travelers alike, and to
capture a much larger national and international market.

Proiect Development Summary
. Interior and exterior renovation and modernization of the Hotel
. Expansion and renovation ofconference center and banquet facilities, and construction
ofa new lobby for guests
. Exterior landscaping and additional open areas and pedestrian environments
. Parking lot enhancement
. New signage

Synergistic and Sustainable Development
This development will be a key component to the economic growth and stability of the area, as it
will stimulate additional business and foster sustainability by creating synergistic demand for
goods and services between businesses within the Village of Burr Ridge and DuPage County,
IL. The hotel property is ideally located minutes from Midway Airport and Downtown Chicago,
and in proximity to the expressway interchange of I-55 andl-294. The property is situated along
I-55 and is visible from the expressway. It is exposed to visibility by over 16o,8oo cars per day.
The physical and operational improvements, and the aesthetic enhancement of the property will
draw additional traffic to the area creating a positive economic impact for surrounding
businesses and the area at large.

Conclusion
VHG is excited to work with the Village of Burr Ridge and the County of DuPage in this development effort.
VHG is confident that this will be a mutually-beneficial relationship for all Parties.



\es 'r+ .!\ \\ .

ft .^rill ho+.

-vt w'll ^+

-:. ..-.t ;-r'.i1,:..s.':"-'.1. : .'- ilrC.:, ..:,:, .. ::: : :::::,,:.. -.:a :-,..t.- ::. :::-. -:.:.=:-.. -._'.:.-.-::3:: -".....:
. ::::'.i., -.:''.: ., '...u 

=-.:-'. ., ..,: .. a :.-,'."3:'.r .,: -.::: ,-.:.-.t".lt.. ... ..-.: --. .:.:_...

Tt i^;,t\ 
^o{-

. ii! ,.1 
-



\es

b"5

& Tta pqoacd specid sse is nm cssry o &e o@vcs of dte Officiai Cm+trAssfue Plan oftfrc
Yillags of Burr Ridgs as aruded-

t\o

9.-:

.- _:-i- . : '.r-..' ' j .. 
. ,., .,, .'. :: 

.-,-.- 
-: -:. -;-:!:.---

i.r '.r , i,



A
LT

A
/A

C
S

M
 L

A
N

D
 T

IT
LE

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

Im

:-
dm

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 S
C

A
I,E

o o o @ @ a E +

u 
qr

[Y
 

!^
e.

 
(*

)
il o!

E

,/,

&
 

-d
rl{

tft
.r

t*
(

!

I
U

]
er .I G 5! lo

:
*A

"6
^

a#
*-

 ^.
o*

'
s: T

i
.i t! !lu E

I
E F t 'E

I
,tn

 
lm

E
r

(d
dp

tu
)

.-
l

t

- 
€A

E
U

E
N

T
 1

M
 

S
N

E
F

1
P

rR
 D

m
 

N
o 

'6
2"

'

ui <
3:

2?
i

o;
,

F
 9

3

=
8" I

/_
H

LR
E

T
O

@
E

 
D

'0
cr

t0

Z
--

--
--

--
 

L-

\

1{
?r

\
o

'-\

) tr F z U o U o z d G U r z o o z z E = f

a 5 z l J ui o e G E E f E ci o G u o F 2 o G qi I

U E f @ u F F o z I = o F

2-
2u 1, 1"
. e ul \, o IJ

o ? - tr oo

Li
s

lE
 i'

,/z

,1

?

^-
^j

I

-.
1 I I





















TO

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE

MEMORANDUM

Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission
Greg Trzupek, Chairman

FROM: Doug Pollock, AICP

DATE: September 17,2015

RE Board Report for September21,2015 Plan Commission Meeting

At its August 24,2075 and September 14,2015 meetings, the following actions were taken by the
Board of Trustees relative to matters forwarded from the Plan Commission.

Z-09-2015: 6679 Lee Court (Salviola); The Board approved an Ordinance amending the Zoning
Ordinance to add underground basketball court and swimming pools to the list of permitted
underground structures in residential districts subject to the same restrictions as wine cellars.

Z-10-2015: 101 Tower Drive (Global Luxury Imports); The Board approved an Ordinance
amending the special use approval for automobile sales at this location to lower the minimum
value of cars sold from $30,000 to $10,000 subject to a two year expiration with the possibility of
renewal after two years.

Z'll'2015: 8310-8361 Waterview Court (McNaughton); After the Plan Commission forwarded
this petition to the Village Board without a recommendation, the petitioner withdrew the request
prior to consideration by the Board of Trustees. Attached is a copy of the letter withdrawing the
petition.



ffi Naughton,*,,ooMENr,, NC

August 24,2075

Mayor Straub
Village of Bun Ridge
7550 South County Line Road
Burr Ridge, Illinois 60527

RE: Waterview Estates

Dear Mayor Staub,

Please accept this letter as notice of our withdrawal of the application for rezoning and
preliminary plat approval for the Waterview Estates developrnent. After much consideration, we
have detennined that there is no financial viability in this property without the proper zoning.
Ultimately we have come to the conclusion that the proper zoning should be a Savoy Club type
of developrnent. As you know, the current Village comprehensive plan and zoning codes are not
written to even consider such a development. Therefore, it makes no sense for us to continue
pursuing this parcel at this time. We hope that the Village is seriously considering updating its
comprehensive plan from the 1990's. The Village and real estate trends have changed greatly
since the last update. A revised plan and zoning classification would be extremely beneficial to

its residents, Thank you.

,l
( l

Bary

JB/kn

CC: Paul McNauglrton
Steve Stricker
Doug Pollock
Tony Schiappa
Robert Sodikoff

Waterfall Glen Executive Office Center o (Route g3 & Bluff Road)
ll5220JacksonStreet, BunBidge, lllinois 60527 c P: 630.325,3400 o F: 630.325.3402 r W: mcnaughtondevelopment.com

I-AND DEVELOPI\4ENT - CUSTOIM CONSTRUCTION



09/ t't /2015

Permit Number Date Applied Property Address

Permits Applied For August 2015

Applicsnl Name & Contrct lnfo Description

JCAD- t5-224

JCMSC- t5-2 | r

JDEK- t5-2 t6

JPF-15-2 t9

JPF- t 5-223

JPPL- r5-209

JPR- 15- 198

JPR-r5-212

JPR-r5-2r4

JPR-15-217

JPR-t5-23 |

J RAD.I 5-212

JRAL- r5-207

JRAL- | 5-208

JRAL- t5-226

0vt9D0t5

o8/o't Dot5

08 7t20t5

06/ r6/2015

0E/19t20t5

oEn9t20t5

$n5D0t5

0t/13/2015

$n7D0t5

0t/t7t2015

0En7Dot5

0U3tD0t5

062E/2015

0f,04D015

0t/05/20t5

oE/zUZot5

0w412015

6801 High Grove Blvd

Burr Ridge Village Center

8437 Park Ave

t526 Clynderven Rd

6679 L€c Ct

6545 County Line Rd

r5w 170 60th sT

Woodview Rd.

Garfield Av.

l5W 580 North Frontage Rd.

l0S 570 Clenn tr.

8550 Clyrdewen Rd

6679 Lee Ct

6726 Fieldstone Dr

419 60rh PL

t6w 341 94th PL

t72t Wedgewood Dr

Phoenix Builders, Ltd.

Trademsrt Property

Ridgeland Construction

Anaya & Sons Fence Co.

Freeman Fence, Inc.

Starl Fence Mariani Landscape

Platinum Poolcare Aquatech, L

lnMantia Entcrpriscs, lnc.

American Scalcoating

Compass Holding LLC

Sealcoat Solutions

LPI Construction & Paving LL

ECA Architects & Planners

McNaughton Brothers Constru

Luxe Showroom. Ltd.

Andrzej Tkacz

Plahn, Barbara Dawn

Com Addition

Commercial Miscellaneous

Deck Permit

Fence Permit

l'cnce Pcrmit

Pool Permit

ROW Permit

ROW Permit

ROW Pennit

ROW Permit

Residential Addition

Residential Alteration

Residential Aheration

JRAL- 15-227

It0l Winnetla Circ.
Rolling Meadows IL 6000E

701 village Center Dr.
Burr Ridge IL 60527

2364 Essington Rd
Joliet lL 60435

I I S. 20th Av.
Maywood lL 60153

351 5 Cleveland Ave.
Brookfield lL 60513

1000 Vandusrial
Westmont IL 60559

300 Industrial Ln.
Wheeling lL 60090

5100 Williarns St.
Downcrs Grovc IL 60515

8620 S. 77th Av.
Bridgeview IL 60455

l5W5E0 North Frontage Rd.
Burr Ridge IL 60527

550 S. River St.
Balavia lL 60510

2275 Holt Rd.
Minooka IL 60,147

24 N. Bennen St.
Geneva IL 60134

16W347 83rd St.

Burr Ridge IL 60527

221 E. Ogden Av.
Wcstmont IL 60559

l6W34l 94rh Pl.
Burr Ridge lL 60527

E72E Wcdgcwood Dr
Burr Ridge lL 60521

Fence Permil

ROW Permit

Residential Alteration

JPF.I5-2IE

Residential Alteration



m09/17 /20t5

Permil Numbcr DElc Applied Property Addr€ss

Permits Applied For August 2015

Applic8nt Nrme & Contacl lnfo Description

JRDB-t5-222 4 Norris Dr

JRDB-t5-228 08t25D0t5 8533 Heather Dr

JRPE- t5-229 0825D015 I 12 Carriage Way Dr.

JRSF'-15-210 08/06/20 t5 9l5l Garfield Av

TOTAL: 2l

Premier l,andscape Contractors

Nancy D'Alessio

Premier Electrical Service

RRK Buildcrs, Inc.

l6W 179 Jeans Rd.
Lemont IL 60439

8533 I lcather Dr-
Burr Ridgc lL 60527

5559 W. l43rd St.
Midlothian lL 60445

909 Euclid Av.
Elmhurst IL 60126

Residential Detached Building

Rcsidcntial Detachcd Building

Res Flectrical Permil

Residcntial Ncw Singlc Family

0E/r920t5



Pentrit Nrmbcr Dotc lssued Property Address

Permits Issued August 2015

Applicrnt Namc & Contact lnfo Description

V.lue & Sq Ftg

08/05/2015 510 Village Center Dr

JCA- l5-r43 0E/03/2015 60 Shore Dr

08/2 t/20 t5 8330 Madison St

JCA- t 5-172 08/10/2015 561 South Fronrage Rd

JCMSC-I5-074 08/28t2015 144 Tower Dr

JDEK"t5-t59 0E/26/2015 l12 79rh Sr

JDEK-15-204 08i l912015 6420 Hillcrest Dr

JDS- t5- t37

JGEN-t5-065 08/r t/20 r s 8650 Castle Ct

JPF- l5-218 08/28/2015 t526 Clynderven Rd

JPR- l5- r20 08/03/20 t5 t360 Walredon Ave

JPR- l5- 144 08/24/2015 9299 Fallingwarer Dr E

JPR-r5-r88

JPR.l5. t95 0E/04/20r5 E6l I Cr€st Ct

JPR- l5-2 t7 08/?.1/201s

Aria Group Architects, lnc.

Cisnems Brothem Ranodeling

The Naleway Group

Falco's Restaurant

M idwest Industrial Funds

Archadeck of Chicagoland

TCI Contractors

Distinguished Design

Dulcedo Construction

Anaya &. Sons Fence Co.

Kim & Johrt Eisenschenk

Rafiq Ahmed

Commurity Asphah Paving

King's Landscaping

Sealcoat Solutions

RML Norway. lnc

Com Altcration
$122.035 16a

Com Alteration
st,194,160 t4.900

Com Altcration
$556,767 6.947

Com Alterdtion
$39.176 550

Commcrcial Miscellaneous

Deck Permit

Demolition Structure

Fence Permit

ROW Permit

ROW Permit

ROW Permit

JRAD-t5-076 0Ei03/20 t5 66 Deer Path Trail

09 / t'7 /2015

JCA-15-t02

JCA-15-t54

08/28/2015 7E00 Circle Dr.

08114/2015 t6l7 Heather Dr

l0S 570 Clenn Dr.

t30 N Boulevard
Oak Park lL 60301

26354 N Willow Ave
Mundelein IL @060

1434 Brook Dr.
Downers Grove IL 60515

56 | South Frontage Rd.
Burr Ridge lL 60527

9450 W. Bryn Mawr Ave., Ste 550
ROSEMONT IL 600IE

3,145 KirchoffRd
Rolling Meadows IL 6000t

7968 Madison St.
Bun Ridge IL 60527

4 t2 75th Sr

Dovmers Grove lL 60516

203 Sccond St
crystal Lake lL 60014

I I S. 20th Av.
Maywmd lL 60153

8350 Walrcdon Avc
Bun Ridgc IL 60527

9299 Fallingwater Dr
Bun Ridge lL 60527

5224 Walnut Av.
Downers Crovc IL 60515

5545 S Elm St.
Hinsdale lL 60521

550 S. River St.
Batavia lL 60510

4532 Middaugh
l)owners Crove IL 60515

Deck Pcrmil

Generator

ROW Permit

ROW Permit

Residential Addition
s264.300 t.762



09 /t'7 /2015

Permit Number Datc lssued Property Address

Permits Issued August 2015

Applic8nt Name & Contact Info Dcscription

Vrlu€ & sq Ftg

JRAL-t5-166

JRAL.I5.I EO

JRAL.I5-208

JRDB-t5-202

JRPE- I5- ]E I

JRAD-t5-t t5 0E/05/2015 E0l Bun Ridge Club Dr Tiburon Homes t_t.C

JRAD-15-t9t 08120/2015 724 Tomlin Dr Gregory Szymski

08/t8/20t5 64 Berkshire Ct Hamerman Construction

0E/?0/2015 126 Tomlin Cir Frank Heitznan

08/ r9i20l5 4 t9 60th PL Luxe Showroom, Ltd.

08110/20t5 | 5W t70 60th sT Garber Construction

0E/2Et20t5 Kraml Estates Subdivi AK Fllectric

JRPE- l5-200 08/13/2015 9520 Fallingwater Dr E Newberry Electric Co., lnc

08/28/20t 5 I 1976 Crosscreek CT Ted Barr

JRSF-r5-r3E 08/28/2015 7t00 Circle Dr. Distinguished Design

Residential Addition
3235,800 3.144

Residential Addition
$2,14,500 1.630

Residcntial Alteralion
$23,625 3 t5

Residential Alteration
335250 470

Residential Altcrdtion
$37,800 504

Residcntial Dctachcd Building

Res Electrical Permit

Res Electrical Permit

Residential New Singlc Family
s833,8s0 5,559

Residential Ncw Single Family
$6t7,900 4,586

TOTAL: 26

J RSF- | 5- 136

I 15 S Garfield
Hinsdale IL 60521

724 Tomlin Dr.
Bun Ridge ll. 60527

5416 Fairview Av.
Downers Grove IL 60515

I I I N. Marion St.

Oak Park IL 60301

221 E. Ogden Av.
Westmont ll. 60559

I 15 S. Vine
Hinsdale IL 60521

9501 Britta
Franklin Park lL 60131

301 N. Park Sr.

Westtnont l1- 60559

536 Ridgemoor Dr.
Willowbrook IL 60527

412 75dr St
Downers Grove IL 60516



Occupancy Certificates Issued August 2015
09111/15

).
a

co# CertificateofOccuDancyDate OccuDant Re{.-ord Address

oFt 5024

oFt502E

ot'r 5029

08/25n5
08/28/r5

08/ r9l l5

Edward Breen ll
lnfinity Building Contractor. lnc.

James E Wolfe

| 38 Surrey Ln

7706 Grant St

1060 Laurie Ln



(Does not include miscellaneous Permlts)

MONTH

SITIGTE FAMILY

RESIDEl{TIAt

lNEw)

ADOITIONS

AITERATIONS
(RESI

NON.
RESIDENTIAT

(NEwl

ADDITIOiIS
ATTERATIONS
(r{or{-REsl

TOTAT FOR

MOI{TH

JANUARY s3,594,9s0 5241,s75 5t97,264 54,133,789
t6l t61 t1l

FEBRUARY ss47,575 ss62,880 s1,110,455
t41 t2l

MARCH s25s,97s 56,s42,s52 5t,o14,284 St,87z,8zt
t4l 111 t3l

APRIL S2,901,7s0 s305,22s S139,40s s3,347,380
t4l tel tu

MAY S2,399,700 Ss7,7oo s 136,312 s2,s93,712
t4l tst tU

JUNE 51,948,s00 s278,400 s280,621 s2,s07,s21
t21 t4l t2)

JU LY ss68,3s0 ss80,0s0 s359,230 Sr,su,630
t1l t41 t1l

AUGUST S1,521,750 5841,275 s 1,912,138 54,27s,L63
t2l t6l l4l

SEPTEMBER

OCTOBER

NOVEMBER

DECEMBER

2015 TOTAT S13,035,ooo 93,r08,77s S6,s42,s62 54,612,t 4 527,t58,47t
llel l42l tU [1s]

MONTHTY SURVEY OF BUILDING PERMITS - 2015



2 3 5 6 7 8 10 l1 12 13

.20li| 72

1

9 9 30 76 30 38 17 20r
.2015 l9 77 16 24 31 2-t 34 25 194

Village of Burr Rldge 2015 Eulldlng Permlt Actlvity Compared to 2014
300

280

260

210

220

26

tm

160

140

120

r@

m

60

40

20

0

r 2014

r 2015



1 2 3 4 5 6 8 9 l0 11 l2 l3
r 2014 I 3 I I o 3 3 t6
r 2015 6 0 o 2 I 2 19

Village of Burr Rldge 2015 New Housing Starts Compared to 2014

35

30

25

20

15

r 2014

r 2015

10

5

o
,l



09/'t1/2A15 1l:08 A.u

Breakdown of Permits by Project Type

Psrrib by Type lssued Aurgust 2015

Rrridatirl Oetdrcd Buildin g
r (G)

Rr'adcrtt.l Ahcrltion
3 (12!r)

ReriddtirlAd&o.r
3 (tZr5)

Permits by Type Issued Auqust 2015

Rt'idriti.l ilcn gn9l. F.mih
2 (Er)

ROW Pcrmit," s (rer)

R.! Ecrtriol Prflrit ,..
2 (rr)

Gcrarrtor
r&.efi*'lt

I (.%)

Oemolitrof, Strudurc ,."I (+t6,

Com Altcratioo. (1s*)

Corrmerrirl Mirccllancous
! (.1r)

'... Dr* Parmit
2 (r*)

Pdqe 1 o:1

! Com Altcrrtion

! Comrcrrid t,tisccllgrcous

! oc* rc*nit

Osnolitioa$lxtrc
Fcrltc Pam*t

! Gcncrrtot

! ne acoicl ecnmt

! ecc,acnilrOOirin

! Reida*trtlttcretion

I R6idrrtid Oa.drcd Suldiog

! ncriOcnirt ncwsoglc F.rrih

! nOwecmrit



TO:

VIL1AGE OF BURR RIDGE

MEMORANDUM

Village of Burr Ridge Plan Commission
Greg Trzupek, Chairman

FROM: Doug Pollock, AICP
Community Development Director

DATE: September 17,2015

PC-05-2015; Subdivision Fence Approval; Carriageway ClubRE:

The Carriageway Club Subdivision requests approval to replace a subdivision fence located on
the south side of the subdivision adjacent to the Tower Drive business park. Carriageway Club
is located on Caniageway Drive north of Tower Drive and northeast of County Line Road and
r-55.

Fences owned, maintained, and constructed for the benefit of subdivisions are regulated
differently than private fences for private residential properties. The Subdivision Ordinance
permits such fences when adjacent to arterial streets and allows subdivision fences to be 6 feet
tall (rather than 5 feet). All subdivision fences, whether conforming or not, require review by
the Plan Commission and approval by the Board of Trustees.

The proposed subdivision fence does not conform to the regulations of the Subdivision
Ordinance. It is proposed to be 8 feet tall rather than the permitted 6 feet; of solid wood
construction rather than being at least 50% open; and located on an interior lot line rather than
adjacent to an arterial street. The height of the fence, its solid/opaque design, and its location
on an interior lot line is intended to provide a screen between the residential properties in

i-]
iL..

AVERY SPECIAL PLACE

frfl/4
R.A

{-

a

,t'

t

Fence Locationi .- -:r



PC-05 -20 I 5 ; Subdivision Fence Approval ; Carriageway Club

Carriageway Club and the industrial park to the south. There is currently a fence in this location
but it is shorter, the height does not provide the screening desired by the residents, and it is in
need ofrepair.

The current regulations are intended for decorative fences that divide the side and rear yards of
residential properties from arterial streets. It is recommended that the Plan Cornmission
consider amending the Subdivision Ordinance to permit solid fences up to 8 feet in height for
residential subdivisions abutting non-residential properties. Such a recommendation can be
made by the Plan Commission without a public hearing since it would be an amendment to the
Subdivision Ordinance.



PC-05-2015: SUBDIVISION FENCE APPROVAL: CARRIAGEWAY CLUB

h -lilI t

I

I
;

Fetffi Locilin
rL.f'a tt I

t

I t

I t B
J I

f
T

r
trrlJ I I.I

t

I
T r

a

TE
fi t

a '-

t !tl
I I

I
I

I

*
I



VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE
PETITION TOR PI'BLIC EEARTNG

Pr.AlI COI'S{ISSrON/ZONING BOaRD OF APPEALS

)

ntA Y\i\\ Lo"<, B,rarr Rt ,\c^{ 'A \ i"oSz^)
ADDRESS OF PROPERTY: iub PIN #{ la

PET]TIONER ev.rc#o
will ected to the Petitioner)

PRoPERTY oWNER: ( WE,{0f,
OWNERIS ADDRESS:

cor

I

I o e

I

h3o-Abl-b4PHONE:

GENERAL INFOR!,IATION

(A1

PETITIONER'S ADRESS:

STATUS OF PE?ITTONER

PHONE

EMAIL:

FAX:

A CURRENT PI.AT OF SURVEY IrITH I.EGAI DESCRIPTION }.l(,ST BE TTACHED

EXISTING ZONTNG:

PROPERTY INfORIt{Af ION

EXISTING USE,/IMPROVEMENTS :

SITE AREA

SUBDIVISION

PLEASE INDICATE THE TYPE OF PUBLTC HEARING REQUES?ED AND PROVIDE A DETAILED
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED SPECIAT USE, REZONING, TEXT AMENDMENT, OR VARIATION(S)

INCLUDING A REEERENCE TO THE APPROPRIATE ORDINA}ICE SECTION(S) AND REGULATION(S):

special use Rezoning Text Amendment, Variation(s)

Please Provide tfri tten Erescriptlon of Reguest - Attach !:xtra pa9e9 If Necessary

DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST

The above information and the attached plat of Surve
I understand the information contained in this

ce for public hearing. I acknowledge that f wi

t

.o the best
11 be used
11 be heldresponsible

y are true and accurate tof my knowledge petition wiin preparation of a I
costs necessary by an error in this petition.



n

l. This proposal, when accepted by
you, the customer, becomes a binding
contrad.

2. By signing below, on the signature
line for the "Customef you have
acceptd the proposal and are bound by
this Contract.

3. The Customer is solely responsible
for removal oftrees, bushes and other
obstructions which are in the way of
construction ofthe fence. First Class
Fence (FCD does not haul away brush.

4. Any excess dirt is to b€ left on the site
unless otherwise specifi ed.

5. Customer is solely responsible for
the location ofthe 6ence; FCF is not
responsible for locating lot linet for any
encroachment or violation of lot lines
set-back required by any governrnenal
authority which may occur or location
of utilities or underground obstructions,
such as but not limited to spdnklers,
Fivate gas or electric lines.

6 Customer agrees that there may
be additional charges for unforeseen
underground obstructions.

7. Customer agrees that FCF is
not responsible for obtaining any
applkable building or location permits
or permission required by any unit
of govemment, association of home
ownas or adjacent land owners.

& Customer agrees that any and all
permit fe€t inspection fees or other fee
or tax not set forth in the proposal will
not be part ofthe proposal price set
furth, above; and the Customer shall be
solely responsible fior paying all such
permh, inspection or other fees and
taxes.

9. Customer agrees that FCF must have
access to the property to install the
ferrce and while using reasonable care,
may cause damage to the grass, floweE
and shrubs contiguous to the fence
line; and Customer agrees that FCF shall

1456 East Cours€ Drive
Riverwoods, lllinois 6OOl 5
www.FCFence-com

not be responsible for such damages
resulting while using reasonable care.

10. Customer agrees to pay all costs
and attorney'fees incurred by FCF in
litigation or other proceeding, including
mechanics'liens arising from this
contract. lf FCF prevails, regardless of
which party initiates the proceeding.

11. Substitutions shall be made only on
written amendment of this agreement,
signed, and dated by Customer and FCF.

12. FCF shall not be in breadr ofthis
agreement if performance is made
impossible by an act ofGod, naturg
wars, stikes, riott govemmental
reguhtion or restdction, or shortages of
labor and materials, or any other event
not within the control of FCF.

13. The balance due on the Foposal
price is due upon completion of the
fence. Any sum not paid on that date
shall bear interest at the rate of I 8% per
annum-

l,47-90,,-r23t
847-3174364 Fax
info@FCFence.com

14. The work required in this contnct
shall be commenced within a reasonable
time following the date of acceptance.

15. This agreement shall be construed
in accordance with the laws ofthe State
of lllinois.

16 This agreement shall be binding on
the heirs, executort administrator and
assigns ofthe parties hereto.

1 7. More or less matedal other than
amount contracted for will be debited or
credited at per lineal foot.

18. FCF does not guarantee and cannot
be held responsible for damages caused
by kk of conainment of pets and
children.

18. Wanantee -Three (3) years on fence.
Ninety (90) days on gates.

FIRSITCLASS
FENCE Proposal

sffi V

\

N ffi
T#

P E

ffi
rl'rt-Ef -t-{ -q** -t_ q- * --t "{r-t-tr-t t -&**#i I

t

ffitue+
&+'++rl

++{ro
,,
,1_

Acceptance

By Customer:

Acceptance Date:

D Visa O Mastercard Card Number:

First Class Fencr

By:

Proposed Date:

Plopos.l - P.ge 2 of 2

Exp. Date Signature

<<< continucd frorn prcrdous pcgc

Note: Credit card will not be charged at time of completion.

I I
I I

L

\

) ,f\ {^
J.. A I

h
\

/
N



n FIRSITCLASS
FENCE Proposa!

1456 Ean Cours€ Drive
Riverwoodt lllinois 6001 5

u7-9&3231
847-317436, Fax
info@FcFence.com

Proposar Date: 8l 21 20 1 5 Retunal Source: fi\/ f CunorEr to obtain permit I FCF to contad J.Ul.l.E.

Name: Canieage Way Townhomes c/o Greg Sengpiel a Private uMerground lines to b€ ma*ed by Custorier

! Residence a Company:

rddress: 16 S. Old Mill

city / srate /zp: BUn Ridge, lL
On-site Contact: Gfeg
Mobire Phone: 630-561 -il27

E-Mail:

site location D same a5 above n other: SOUth and EaSt Pfopefty lines
Addressl

City/Stare/zip:

Crorr Street:

I Cunomer responsible for filling gaps under fence due to
irregularities in grade.

& An addhional cost will b€ incured ifany boxing aroundobrtruc-
tions on the fen(e line requhes additional materialSy'or labor.

O Any brush trimming to be charged extra- (FCF does not haul
away brush.)

I Any Removal and Haul ofexisting fence will have post cut off atlor
ilightly below ground level.

a Any excess din to remain on cu5tomer's prop€rty
a Excess din to be spread und6 fence. Q Other:

I Fence to fo]low aontour ofground. D Fenceto be levelon top.

L FCF i5 not responsible fior underground sprinkler lines.

FenceType: Westefn Red Cedar Height 8'0!' Finished side O lN a OUT

No.ofcates: n/a Size(s)

Post Gp5: O Standard il Other I Remove & haulexining tunce rootage: $$$r
Comments:

Quantity Dercription

656

OPTION

OPTION2

A(captrn<a

Linoalft. of 8' high Dogear W$tem Red cedarfence W (4) horizontal2'x 4'rails and galvanized,

steel 'Postrnaste/ posts by Master Halco

lncludes removal and haul of existing fence

Sarne as above but boards to be ovedapped 'Board and Batten'to eliminale gaps

Pressure Treated I' high Dogear on Pressure treated 4" x 6' posts in lieu of Cedar

Posts to be set in 36'@ncrete: excess dirt from post holes to be spread under fence line

FCF to call utilities before installation

Complete price:

50% Down Payment

Balance Due Upon Compl€tion:

Price

$23,100.00

$24.540.00

$17,160.00

By Customei

Ac(eptan(e Date:

PLEASE SIGN PAGE I AND 2

Propor.l - P.gc t or 2

Pleas€ pay innaller upon completion.

@odnlaa oll naxt paga >>>



\

L
.a

i

J

4. 4

..
. 

.. 
-,

ra
r

ts
'

\

rl I

l

I

I a

\ \'r



]l MASTER
HALCO

A Tradition of fencing 5olutions

I

I

PostMaster@ Steel

r

T('
t

I /\

i

t
:

[,J

I

!

I
I

I

t
!t



PoSTMASTEFI
@,/fr

aster@ Delivers...
patented PostMaster steel post for

s

:!

Easily

is engineered to you of steel without

sacrificing the natural beauty of wood. Constructed of structural

steel with a heavy galvanized coating, PostMaster can withstand

high winds and heavy rain and will never rot or warp. Master Halco

guarantees it - every PostMaster steel post

is backed by a 1S-year limited warranty.*

PostMaster provides longevity and

performance in a wood fence system

which results in uncompromised value.

4

I
I

a

.&
t;

ffi MASTER
HALCO

A Tradition of tencing Solutions

Mastcrtlalco.crom | 888-illH-Fence

Why use a steel post when I could use wood?
Wood posts rot over time and can warp or twist due to rain, wind or extreme

temperatures.The integrity and appearance of a wood fence is lost after the wood

posts begin to rot from exposure or termite infestation.

This deterioration weakens the post, sometimes to the

point where it can no longer hold the fence up. PostMaster

gives an ordinary wood fence the strength of steel.

f PostMaster lCedarWood post

*See actual warranty for details

H-
\

r60l-? 50loP--
zE 40
IJJ P

F= 30

r,n 
20

i0

TIME

,

aaaaaooaatoaaaaaaaaaaooaaaoatooaoaotoaoaaaoaaataaaoa

;:

1'

{,

\
I

E
r)



PostMaster@ Works With Most Styles

v
Y(

w

w

8',

B

d

sl

Will PostMaster limit
my design options?
No. You are only limited by your imagination.

PostMaster can be incorporated with most

wood fence styles, adding natural beauty

and warmth that only a wood fence can

provide. Your professional fence contractor

can help you with a design that is right

for you and can assure proper installation

practices for your local conditions.

t
P

c

h

i:

c

c

I

(

(

I

!

(

a

Privacy

l

!

l

with Lattice
j

Privacy with Cep

t
lr

Il

l

iI
i
I



80

70

=60Ie
Es0
rc,

3+o

E:o

= 20

10

The Strength of Steel and the Beauff of Wood

Will steel posts withstand high winds?
Yes, if properly engineered. Steel posts are available in a wide range of

weights (gauges) and strengths. PostMaster' posts are designed to

withstand a 70-mph wind load (6'Privacy fence with posts spaced every

8') determined in accordance with the requirements of the 1994 Uniform

Building Code for exposure"B'i This is the requirement for building

departments in many cities. Be sure to check your local requirements and

space your posts accordingly.

A - Cedar (a x 4) / 49 MPH

B - Redwood (a x 4) / 59 MPH

C -Tube {2-3/8 x.065) / 6t MPH

- Pipe (2-318, Sch 40) I 68 MPH

- PostMaster / 70 MPH

0

Will PostMaster rust?
PostMaster's open design keeps moisture from

collecting and the heavy galvanized (zinc) coating

helps prevent premature rusting. PostMaster

is manufactured using a steel base material

conforming to the requirements of ASTM A 653,

coating designation G90 galvanized (zinc) coating.

ls PostMaster more
expensive than wood posts?
Only slightly. Good quality materials, like good workmanship, always cost a

little more. While the initial cost of PostMaster may be slightly more than a
wood post, and often less expensive than heavy pipe posts with brackets, the

cost of future maintenance outweighs the benefits of a lower initial price.

A

e

7

llv

any advers
affecB to t,he
enyironrne

nt
No. postMaster 

is made frorn resteel. Chemica cycled
treated woposts raise od fenceconcerns

about ssuitability afe{randfor resi,dentialuse,
warranties 

for and sornechernically 
treahaye exclusio ted postsns for ground contact

wiil a steel
post cause

B CD

!{

I



Do I have to sacrifice
the look of wood?
No. PostMaster's in-line design can be easily covered or
concealed with matching wood, retaining the esthetics of
a wood fence. lt can be finished with both sides identical -

a true good neighbor fence.

Wood fences built with steel pipe posts

ond brackets ore unsightly because

they protrude from the line of fence.

..t""""aaaaaoaaataaaaaaaaaatoaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaataaa

ls PostMaster hard to install?
No. Unlike most other steel posts which require

brackets and/or fittings, PostMaster has pre-punched holes on
flange for attaching rails, eliminating the need for expensive

brackets for most designs.

frr ffff,'6F
A Iradition of Iencing Solutions

lUlaster*lalco.com I g8g-MH-Fence

Are all product
warranties the same?
A warranty is only as good as the

company that stands behind it. you

should understand the reputation of
the company behind the warranty.

PostMaster's 15-year limited warranty is
as strong as the company that stands behind it

a a a a a a a a a a a o a a a a a a aa a a a a a a a a a a a a a a o

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

o

a

a

a

a

a

a

a



Technical Information

T
1-sl8',

1-1/2"

3-1/2"

l*- -{

I

.120"

iL-
T

H HALCO
MASTE

Dimensionsz 3-'l/2" x"l-3/4" 88.90mm x44.45mm

Dimensions (hole): Dia..2@" 6r t" O.C. Dia.5.08mm @ 25.40mm O.C.

Thickness: .120" 3.05mm

Weight 2.64lbs/ft 3.93 kg/m

Material: Galvanized (Zinc) Coated Steel

CoatingDesignation: G90

us Patents 6,17j,945 and 6,530,561

R

A Traditioo of tencing Solutions

Ma$erllalco.com I E88-Mll-Fencc

Branch service centers are located
throughout North America.

PosTMASTEFI
@./l

We r:ffer a compiete line of high quality fence systenrs in both traditional and unique styles. Our fui! Iine

of products include vinyi, wood, ornamentai, and chain-linl< fences and automated gates for residential,
cornrnerciai, irrdusiri;i, and high security applicatiorrs.

MH 046145 @ 07/09

Available from:

I

Er

T

il

For all your fencing needs, you can trust MASTER HALco.
As North America's leadirrg rranufacturer and wholesale distributor of perinreter security ancl fencing, \,ve are

the provider of choice for thousands of professional fence and security contractors and quality building material
retailers. Since'i 96'i, we have been the industries'premierfencing provider.


	Plan Commission Agenda - 09-21-15
	Plan Commission Minutes 2015-08-17
	V-01-2015 - 512 Kirkwood Cove
	V-02-2015 - 39 Fawn Ct
	V-02-2015 - 39 Fawn Ct
	39 Fawn Ct Plans
	39 Fawn Ct Plans 2
	39 Fawn Ct Plans 3


	Z-12-2015 - Spectrum Acquisition
	Z-12-2015-Spectrum
	Spectrum Submittals 9-21-15 Plans

	Z-13-2015 - 15W300 South Frontage  - Vega
	Z-13-2015 - 15W300 South Frontage-Vega
	Vega Hospitality Plans
	Vega Hospitality 1
	Vega Hospitality 2
	Vega Hospitality 3
	Vega Hospitality 4
	Vega Hospitality 5
	Vega Hospitality 6
	Vega Hospitality 7
	Vega Hospitality 8
	Vega Hospitality 9


	Board Report
	August 2015 Building Report
	PC-05-2015 - Carriageway Club Fence

